The Center for the Humanities at the Graduate Center CUNY – Leon Levy Foundation Garment Center Initiative

The Garment Industry in the United States, 1860-1975 A Historian's Bibliography

By Shirley Idelson Leon Levy Fellow / Bibliographer Ph.D. candidate, Department of History The Graduate Center, City University of New York

Submitted: August, 2007

Table of Contents

Introduction	p.	iii
Primary Source Material		
I. Corporate and Family Business Archives	p.	1
A. Privately-Held Corporate and Family Business Archives	p.	1
B. Corporate Archives Located in University and Public Libraries	p.	3
C. Other Ways to Find Business Records	p.	9
II. Collections of Clothing Trade Catalogs	p.	12
III. Photograph Collections	p.	35
		37
V. Oral Histories.	_	
VI. Records of the International Ladies Garment Workers Union	p.	44
VII. Case Law	p.	48
VIII. Government Publications		
A. Federal	_	
B. New York State	•	
C. New York City	•	
IX. New York Times Obituaries.	•	
Secondary Source Material	Γ.	-
I. Until 1900	n	60
II. 1901-1975	.ь.	
A. Garment Industry	p.	61
1. General Studies		
2. Women's Apparel	_	
3. Children's Apparel	•	
4. Accessories and Embellishments		
B. Business and Finance		
1. General Studies	•	
2. Manufacturing	•	
3. Retail.	•	
4. Advertising	•	
5. Technology	_	
6. Management	_	
C. Fashion and Business		
D. Work, Workers, Labor	_	
1. General Studies	•	
Worker Biographies and Autobiographies		
T 2	_	82
1. General Studies	•	
2. Jewish Experience.		
F. New York		
G. Gender		
III. Dissertations and Theses.		
	•	103

Introduction

This bibliography is primarily intended for use by business historians interested in pursuing scholarship focused on the United States garment industry during the period 1860-1975. The area is complex and fertile for research, bringing traditional business concerns such as manufacturing, retail, entrepreneurship and management together with such disparate topics as immigration, fashion, labor, and gender.

The text is divided into two main sections: Primary Source Material, and Secondary Source Material. The Primary section is organized according to collection and source-type. Much of the material included here is annotated. *Please note that in most cases, the annotation derives directly from the finding aid or online description of holdings provided by the library, private company or government agency housing the source or database.* The Secondary section is organized by subject, as described in the Table of Contents. Books and articles that directly address more than one of these subjects are cross-listed.

This bibliography can be best utilized electronically. With the "find" function, the researcher can search the text by author, title, subject, collection, or any other criteria.

Corrections and additional citations are welcome, and may be sent to sidelson@gmail.com.

I am most grateful to the Leon Levy Foundation and the Center for the Humanities at the Graduate Center of the City University of New York for jointly sponsoring this project. Particular thanks go to Shelby White, co-founder and trustee of the Leon Levy Foundation, for her vision and generosity in funding this endeavor, and to Dr. David Nasaw, Director of the Humanities Center, for bringing it to fruition. I am deeply indebted to Dr. Thomas Kessner, Project Director, for the wisdom and expertise he so generously offered throughout; I benefited greatly not only from his wealth of knowledge, but also from his kindness and enduring patience. I am grateful, too, to Judith Dobrzynski of the Leon Levy Foundation, and Aoibheann Sweeney of the Humanities Center, for their ongoing support and guidance.

This bibliography also benefited from the contributions of the scholars who presented papers at "The Golden Age of Gotham's Clothing Industry: Unraveling an Enterprise," an academic symposium held in February 2007 at The Graduate Center of the City University of New York: Regina Blaszczyck, an independent scholar associated with the Department of the History and Sociology of Science, University of Pennsylvania; Hasia Diner, Professor of American Jewish History, New York University; Andrew Dolkart, James Marston Fitch Associate Professor of Historic Preservation, Columbia University School of Architecture, Planning and Preservation; Jill Fields, Associate Professor of History at California State University, Fresno; Richard Greenwald, Director of the Business, Society & Culture Program and Associate Professor of History at Drew University; Roger Horowitz, Associate Director of the Center for Business, Technology and Society at the Hagley Museum and Library; Marc Levinson, economist, journalist and author; and, Bernard Smith, Associate Professor of Economics at Drew University. Those who commented on the papers also offered important contributions: Margaret M. Chin, Assistant Professor of Sociology at Hunter College; and, Dan Levinson Wilk, Assistant Professor of American History at the Fashion Institute of Technology.

Through the work of scholars like these, the complex story of the garment industry continues to come to light. I hope this Bibliography will prove useful as historians further uncover and write this significant chapter in the history of the United States.

Sincerely,

Shirley Idelson Leon Levy Fellow and Bibliographer

I. Corporate and Family Business Archives

There are several ways to locate corporate archives. The Business Archives Section of the Society of American Archivists (SAA) maintains a Directory of Corporate Archives in the United States and Canada which is updated regularly and available online at:

http://www.hunterinformation.com/corporat.htm.

Some corporate-owned archives have home pages posted on the web. Other firms have donated their archives to university libraries. Overseen by professional archivists, these are more likely to have extensive and searchable finding aids. In general, these archives can be accessed through libraries' Special Collections departments.

In many cases, the only way to determine whether or not a company still in existence maintains an archive that is accessible to researchers is to contact the company's office of public relations. Below is a partial list of corporate archives containing primary material related to the garment industry. Some but not all of these are included in the SAA's Directory cited above.

A. Privately-Held Corporate and Family Business Archives

BILL BLASS, LTD.

550 Seventh Avenue New York, NY 10028

Contact: Linda Edgerly or Deborah Shea, Winthrop Group

Telephone: 212-221-6660 or 212-865-6181 Type of Business: Couture clothing design

Hours of Service: By appointment Conditions of Access: Restricted

Holdings: 1930s - present; bulk dates, 1960-present Total Volume: 200 cubic feet (not including clothes)

Drawings and sketches of couture designs, showroom books, some fabric swatches, photographs and transparencies, editorial coverage, advertisements, correspondence and subject files, awards and artifacts. Materials document the designs, licensees, and career of Bill Blass.

BROOKS BROTHERS, INC.

346 Madison Avenue New York, NY 10017 www.brooksbrothers.com

Contact: Archival Services Department, The History Factory

14140 Parke Long Court, Chantilly, VA 20151-1649

www.historyfactory.com Telephone: 703-631-0500 Fax: 703-631-1124

E-mail: brooksbrothers@historyfactory.com

Type of Business: Clothing Retail Hours of Service: 9:00am - 5:30pm

Conditions of Access: Restricted. Outside requests for information subject to approval by

Brooks Brothers. Holdings: 1824-1989

Total Volume: 180 linear feet

Holdings consist of papers, documents, assorted books and artwork (1915-1945); booklets, circulars and catalogs, as well as original artwork created by the advertising department. Collection also contains historical articles and clippings of business operations as well as Brooks family genealogy, memorabilia and photographs.

LEVI STRAUSS & CO.

1155 Battery St.

San Francisco, CA 94111

Contact: Lynn Downey, Historian

Telephone: 415-501-6577

Fax: 415-501-6443

E-mail: <u>ldowney@levi.com</u>

Type of Business: Apparel manufacturing

Conditions of Access: Restricted. Phone reference only for non-employees. Access to the collections subject to approval of historian and global communications department. Holdings: 1906-present. (All corporate records prior to 1906 lost in earthquake and fire. Some 19th-century invoices and advertising materials have been purchased in this century.)

Holdings (in order of volume, greatest to least) consist of: Clothing, marketing materials, photographs, documents (correspondence, speeches, newsletters, financial records, legal records), audio and video tapes, phonograph records, artifacts, oral history tapes and transcripts, books.

POLO RALPH LAUREN CORPORATION

Photography 650 Madison Avenue New York, NY 10022

Contact: Pamela Robin Anderson, Cybil Genevieve Walsh Powers

Telephone: 212-765-7950 Fax: 212-765-7240

Type of Business: Clothing, fashion.

SEARS, ROEBUCK & CO.

Historical Archives
3333 Beverly Road, CC-745
Hoffman Estates, IL 60179
www.searsarchives.com

Telephone:847-286-9555 Fax: 847-286-3501

E-mail: archive@searshc.com

NEW YORK STOCK EXCHANGE, INC.

11 Wall Street

New York, NY 10005

Contact: Janet Linde, Archivist Telephone: 212-656-2442

Fax: 212-656-5629 E-mail: <u>ilinde@nyse.com</u>

Type of Business: Securities exchange

Hours of Service: M-F 9:00am-5:00pm, by appointment only

Conditions of Access: Reference requests must be submitted by letter or e-mail.

Holdings: 1792-present; bulk dates, 1817-present

Total Volume: 3,500 cubic feet

Administrative records of the New York Stock Exchange and its affiliates, information on listed companies, members and member firms, records of stock sale prices, NYSE publications, books on the history of the stock market, photographs, films, videotapes and artifacts.

B. Corporate Archives Located in University and Public Libraries

HAGLEY MUSEUM AND LIBRARY

PO Box 3630 Wilmington, DE 19807-0630 (302) 658-0545 http://www.hagley.lib.de.us/contact.html

Singer Company Records

1860-1985 (10 linear feet) Accession 2207

The Singer Company, once the world's leading producer of sewing machines, was the successor to I.M. Singer & Company, established in 1851. Isaac M. Singer had patented improvements resulting in the first commercially viable sewing machine. The records of The Singer Company comprise a group of materials from its Trademark Department that were collected by a former employee.

The largest file is devoted to trademark registrations for all the countries in which Singer sold its products, plus U.S. and Canadian registrations for the Wheeler & Wilson Manufacturing Company. There are many samples of logos such as the "Red S" and "Singer Girl". File copies of a wide variety of manuals, sewing guides, trade catalogs, trade cards and advertisements depict Singer products in English and other languages, reflecting the world-wide scope of Singer sales. A patent file covers sewing machine improvements from 1860 to 1932. An album of decals displays the elaborate lettering and figurative designs applied to the machines.

The other major category of materials relates to company history, particularly records assembled for or created in connection with the company's centennial. These include an unpublished manuscript, "The Story of Singer" (1951); a 1945 history of the Singer Manufacturing Company, Ltd., which operated the Clydebank factory; an account of the early development of the Singer machine by James Bolton, a

machinist; a 1930 booklet on the Singer Building in London; memorials of President George Ross Mackenzie; illustrated brochures on the Elizabethport factory; a program of a Singer Employees Association athletic meet (1923); and samples of company magazines.

Newsclippings, 10-K annual reports, and letters to stockholders describe the company's decline in the 1970s and 1980s, as do several case studies from the Harvard Business School.

Strawbridge & Clothier Records, 1793-1996

47 linear ft.

Strawbridge & Clothier was a major department store chain in the Greater Philadelphia area focused on a middle-class clientele. The firm was founded as a partnership by Justus C. Strawbridge and Isaac H. Clothier on July 1, 1868, and incorporated on February 14, 1922. The firm was operated on Quaker principles of simplicity and community service, control remaining with the founding families, especially the Strawbridges, for four generaltions. It was the last locally-controlled, family-owned department store chain in the Philadelphia area. Despite an early and innovative move into suburban branches beginning in 1930 and the development of the popular Clover line of discount stores and "Clover Day" sales, the firm eventually succumbed to changing patterns in retailing and sold its stores to the May Department Store Company of St. Louis, which had previously bought the Wanamaker chain, on July 15, 1996.

The Strawbridge & Clothier records are not a complete corporate archive but rather a mix of corporate and legal documents and materials collected for a two-volume anniversary history. Nevertheless, they give a good overall picture of the evolution of retailing in the Philadelphia area, particularly in the 20th century. The corporate records include incorporation papers, board and committee minutes, and annual reports, which give an overall view of the firm's operations. The management records are limited to very fragmentary correspondence of the corporate secretaries and president Herbert J. Tily. Much of it concerns bank financing, authorizations, and accounts. There are also executive payrolls (1931-1950), employment contracts for top executives, and notes on executive development programs.

Brooks, Thomas S., Account book, 1859-1861

Description: 1 v.

Thomas S. Brooks was a drygoods merchant of New York City, with a shop at 37 1/2 Catharine Street, in what was once the center of the city's garment trade. Scope & Content Note: The account book records activities in what was apparently a small retail drygoods and clothing store with three or four employees. There are entries for sales of yard goods, including calicoes, flannels, and muslins, and for finished goods, including underpants, "drawers", chesterfields, cloaks, shawls, and tablecloths. There are separate sections on "Cloak making" and "store expenses" plus one page of diary notes. A two-page section lists "goods forfeited" when customers were unable to pay bills.

The "store expenses" section lists three people who may have been employees. One, John McCabe, is identified from directories as a tailor. Another, Samuel C. Yeaton, is

listed as a stevedore who lived above the store. Other entries imply that Brooks's and Yeaton's wives and daughters were employed as seamstresses or piece-workers. Apparently, some clothing was being made for Brooks Brothers, whose original store was located a few blocks further down Catharine Street. Whether Thomas S. Brooks came from a different branch of the family cannot be determined. Another page records transactions with George Vanhouten, whose own drygoods shop was located two doors down the street.

Call Number or Accession Number: 2098

HARVARD UNIVERSITY BUSINESS SCHOOL BAKER LIBRARY

Soldiers Field, Boston, MA 02163 617-495-6040 http://www.library.hbs.edu/

The Harvard Business School's Baker Library houses a number of department store archives, including the following:

Resseguie Collection

Mss 776 c.1945-1966 Cartons 1-30

The Resseguie collection on department stores, which covers the years 1945 to 1966, contains the research files of Harry E. Resseguie, editor at Fairchild Publications, for a never-published book on the history of the department store in the second half of the twentieth century. The collection consists largely of clippings from *Women's Wear Daily* and other newspapers, as well some photostats and printed items, and Resseguie's manuscript notes. The main alphabetical series includes both names and subject, and there are also manuscript notes by the donor on many of these topics. A second, smaller, series contains material on men's clothing stores. There are also notes for Resseguie's work in progress on Alexander T. Stewart. Resseguie worked for nearly forty years for Fairchild Publications, publishers of Women's Wear Daily. Because the Fairchild publications have not been indexed, the Resseguie Collection offers a valuable resource to researchers.

The collection offers a wealth of information on all aspects of the history of department stores and the retail industry. Resseguie collected clippings on such subjects as individual stores and chain retailers, new methods in sales and service, retail in specific cities, labor-management relations, and on the unionization of department stores from 1940 to 1958.

Gimbels and Saks Collection

Mss 776 1939-1960 Volume 3

Attorney Louis Broido compiled this collection of material about Gimbels and Saks Fifth Avenue from 1939 to 1960, during the peak period of big city department stores. Of particular interest are the collective bargaining agreements between the stores and labor unions between 1939 and 1952.

These agreements contain information about the management and labor practices of department stores in which women were both a majority of the employees and a majority of the customers. They document a rise in retail workers' wages, a decrease in hours, and occasional labor unrest. Women labor union officials are signatories to several of the contracts, notably Anna Blank, who was Business Manager and later Vice President of Local No. 2, United Retail, Wholesale & Department Store Employees of America in the 1940s.

E. H. Stewart/Higbee Company Collection

Mss 776 1932-1944 Carton 1

The collection consists of papers relating to a survey of the Higbee Company, a department store in Cleveland, Ohio, conducted by E. H. Stewart of the Associated Dry Goods Corporation on behalf of the store's creditors in 1932 and subsequent years. It includes a series of reports analyzing Higbee's inventory, financial picture, wages as a percentage of sales, salary ranges, competitiveness as compared to other stores, and floor plans of the store.

The collection also contains training manuals, some written by women, for all parts of an operation that centered on women consumers. Stewart did an extensive survey of buying habits and store confidence comparing several department stores in the Cleveland trading area. The materials include the questionnaire, instructions for administering it to consumers (who are assumed to be women), notes on the survey and its survey results, and Stewart's suggestions to the Higbee store, "Notes on Public Opinion," of October 19, 1932.

C.F. Hovey Company Business Records, 1837-1920 Mss: 776 1837-1920 H846

In 1841, Charles Fox Hovey entered into a partnership with Washington Williams and James H. Bryden. Calling themselves Hovey, Williams and Company, the three men worked as importers and wholesale dealers in dry goods, with offices located at 65 Water Street, Boston. Hovey, however, developed an interest in the retail side of the business, and in 1846, Hovey, Williams and Company joined Richard C. Greenleaf and John Chander, who already owned a retail dry goods store on Washington Street. Within a short time, the establishment moved to 13 Winter Street, the first commercial firm to locate in the area. Eventually the company settled on Summer Street. In 1848 the company was renamed C. F. Hovey and Company.

The collection consists of department sales books, a cash book, statements, receipts, and calculations. Department sales volumes contain names of the salesmen; daily, weekly and monthly sales for both individuals and departments. Remark columns include comments on weather, political and civic events, and personnel news. Cash book contains monthly sales volumes. Statements show accounts payable and receivable for C. F. Hovey on a monthly basis.

A. Lincoln Filene Collection

Mss 776 1921-1925 Volume 1, boxes 1-4 The papers of Boston department store President and civic leader A. Lincoln Filene (1865-1957).

Papers relating to R. H. Macy and Company, 1858-1965 (inclusive).

Chiefly source material gathered and used by Ralph M. Hower for his study of Macy's department store of New York. Includes correspondence, copies of advertisements, forms, interviews, and a numbered documentary history prepared by Mildred L. Hartsough in 1928-1929. Also includes tapes and typescripts of interviews with four store officials, 1965; hearings in the case of Macy et al. vs. United States, 1958; and selected papers of Donald K. David as director of Macy's, 1942-1955.

THE NEW YORK PUBLIC LIBRARY

Fifth Avenue and 42nd Street New York, NY 10018 212-340-0849 http://www.nypl.org/

Straus family papers, 1810-1962, bulk (1870-1912)

9 linear feet (25 boxes)

The Straus family of New York City were the descendants of Lazarus Straus (1809-1898) and Sara Straus (1823-1876) who emigrated from Otterberg, Germany in the early 1850s with their four children: Isidor (1845-1912), Hermine (1846-1922), Nathan (1848-1931), and Oscar (1850-1926). They settled in Talbotton, Georgia where Lazarus opened a dry goods store. In 1865 the Strauses relocated to New York City and Isidor and Nathan joined their father in establishing L. Straus and Sons, a glass and chinaware store. They became partners with R.H. Macy's & Company in 1888 and by 1892 were also partners in the Brooklyn N.Y. retail company Abraham & Straus. Isidor Straus represented New York City's fifteenth district in the U.S. Congress, 1893-1894; and was founder and president of the Educational Alliance, an organization for immigrants living in New York. He and his wife were among the passengers who lost their lives in the sinking of the Titanic. Oscar Straus served as U.S. ambassador to Turkey from 1887 to 1900 and 1909, Secretary of Commerce and Labor from 1906 to 1908, and advisor to Woodrow Wilson during the first World War.

Collection contains correspondence, speeches, photographs, scrapbooks, and other items concerning Lazarus, Oscar and Isidor Straus, and Isidor's sons and grandsons. Family papers include genealogical charts and family history. Oscar and Isidor Straus papers consist of one box of materials concerning Oscar Straus's 1912 campaign for governor of New York and other political and family matters; the remaining eleven boxes are papers of Isidor Straus and include family and business correspondence, speeches and writings, notebooks, scrapbooks, materials related to his political career and to his death on the Titanic, and biographical information. Papers of Isidor Straus's sons consist of personal and business papers with correspondence, speeches, scrapbooks, and clippings. L. Straus & Sons records concern the operations of the partnership.

Nathan Straus Papers (13 linear feet) are located in Rare Books & Manuscripts Division, New York Public Library.

SOUTHERN METHODIST UNIVERSITY DEGOLYER LIBRARY

P. O. Box 750396 Southern Methodist University Dallas, TX 75275-0396 214-768-3231

http://www.smu.edu/cul/degolyer/

JC Penney Company

Contact: Joan Gosnell, University Archivist

Phone: 214-768-2261 Fax: 214-768-1565

E-mail: jgosne@mail.smu.edu Type of Business: Retail

Hours of Service: M-F 8:30am-5:00pm

Conditions of Access: The collection is closed to the public. Holdings: 1876-present; bulk dates, 1902-1932, 1950-present

Total Volume: 1,500 linear feet

The JCPenney Archives and Historical Museum contains both the corporate records of the JCPenney Company and the personal papers of Mr. James C. Penney, founder, as well as store photographs, advertisements, catalogs, and other audiovisual records.

DUKE UNIVERSITY PERKINS LIBRARY

Durham, NC 27708 919- 660-5822 http://library.duke.edu/

Selected J. Walter Thompson Company (JWT) Collections in the Hartman Center

J. Walter Thompson Company

Part of the Hartman Center for Sales, Advertising & Marketing History

Duke University

Box 90185

Durham, NC 27708

Contact: Ellen Gartrell, Director or Jacqueline Reid, Reference Archivist

Telephone: 919-660-5827

Fax: 919-660-5934

E-mail: hartman-center@duke.edu Type of Business: Advertising agency Hours of Service: 9:00-5:00 M-F

Conditions of Access: All records older than 15 years are open to the public, with a

few exceptions

Holdings: 1860s to the present; bulk dates, 1920s-1980s

Total Volume: 4,000 cubic feet

The J. Walter Thompson Company Archives documents the history, operations, policies, and accomplishments of one of the world's oldest, largest and most innovative advertising firms. J. Walter Thompson is a multi-national advertising agency, founded in 1864 in New York City. Because of the Company's pioneering role in the development of the advertising industry and the unparalleled degree to which Company executives saved documentary evidence of its operations, the J. Walter Thompson Company stands alone as the single most complete and informative corporate record of the history of modern advertising. It consists of over 5,000 linear feet of printed, manuscript and audiovisual materials, including many advertisements. A sampling of collections includes within the Archives are the following materials:

Thompson advertisement tear sheets and proofs, 1875-1990s, arranged by client Advertisement tear sheets of competing agencies, 1916-1990s, arranged by product category

Company publications, 1887+, including newsletters, 1916-1990s, and annual reports

Biographical files for Thompson employees, 1914-1990s

Personnel files, 1910s-1950s

Speeches and writings of Thompson executives, 1908-1990s

Internal staff memoranda, 1924-1990s

Verbatim staff meeting minutes, 1927-1938

Market and product research reports, 1916-1949

Radio-Television Department files, including microfilm of scripts of most of the agency-produced radio and television shows, 1930s-1960, including Kraft Music Hall, Lux Radio Theatre, and Lux Video Theatre

Board of Directors' minute books, 1896-1980s

Photographs of staff, offices, and activities

Records relating to the agency's offices abroad, especially in Latin America and Europe

Tapes and transcripts of oral interviews with Company staff and officers, 1963-1979

Press clippings and press releases

A list of collections and finding aids is available at:

http://ezproxy.library.nyu.edu:12834/specialcollections/hartman/guides/jwt.html.

Some collections are unprocessed and may not be accessible. In addition, other restrictions may apply. All unpublished JWT documents created within the last 15 years are closed for research to non-JWT individuals. Please contact the Hartman Center Reference Archivist for more information about access to these collections.

C. Other Ways to Find Business Records

1. New York State Archives in Albany, NY

Business and labor records held at the New York State Archives and State Library can be found by searching the online catalog Excelsior using terms such as "garment industry and <u>economic development</u>," garment industry and <u>banking</u>,"etc. Excelsior is located at:

http://nysl.nysed.gov/uhtbin/cgisirsi/Qb03AKQi2O/0/0/49

The Rediscovering New York History and Culture website provides a list of business and labor records and resources at:

http://iarchives.nysed.gov/RNYHC/r subSearchServlet?cat=BUS

Find out if a business archives has a web site and/or online catalog by searching the New York listing in Repositories of Primary Sources at:

http://www.uidaho.edu/special-collections/east2.html#usny

All of these State Archive finding aids can be accessed from:

http://www.archives.nysed.gov/a/researchroom/rr business.shtml

2. Credit Reports

Harvard's Baker Library holds the **R.G. Dun credit ledgers**. These handwritten ledger volumes date back to the 1840s and include extensive information on hundreds of New York City businesses. Entries are listed by firm name, and identify the business' industry, individuals involved, geographic location, net worth, real estate and other holdings, holdings, and credit worth.

After the 1890s, when **Dun and Bradstreet** took over maintenance of these records, they provided less narrative and little information beyond each firm's credit rating.

The Mercantile Agency Reference Book is also a good source for credit information. The Mercantile Agency reports were available in serial publication by subscription, beginning in the 1860s. The records are arranged geographically. Because they always indicate a firm's industry, one can use these records to locate the apparel industry records of a particular business district. The Library of Congress has the most complete collection of Mercantile Agency reports.

Moody's Industrials: Beginning in the early twentieth century, Moody's provided information for investors in the form of investment banking reports. Moody's began with the railroads, then turned to utilities and eventually covered a wide range of industries. NYPL/SIBL has Moody's Industrials for the period 1931-1970.

Fitch's Bonds Summary is similar to Moody's Industrials, but includes only companies that sold bonds.

3. Corporate Reports and Other Publications

Every business library holds a different collection of corporate reports (annual reports, etc). Electronic data bases exist for these reports, going back only as far as about 1965 (the Thomson data base has the oldest material).

Harvard's Baker Library houses a large collection of corporate reports, beginning in the 1820s and covering a wide range of industries. Baker only has an in-house index tool, so the researcher cannot search the collection on-line. Here too, one cannot search by industry (ex. garment or apparel industry); the researcher must search by company name.

The Baker Library also houses Baker Old Class, a collection of publications 1850-1971 focused on American business. This collection includes trade literature, company histories and government documents. This collection can be searched online, and search terms like "apparel," "shirt" and "dress" yield substantial company-specific materials.

4. Harvard Business School Case Studies

Harvard Business School has been using the case method since 1908, and therefore is one of the largest sources of business school case studies. However, the only cases currently available to the public are those still being published and sold by Harvard Business School. These can only be searched online by case author, company or case number at:

http://www.hbsp.harvard.edu/

A search of this site in the spring of 2007 using the term "apparel" yielded 137 cases. A partial list includes:

Benetton S.P.A., Industrial Fashion. A. Boston: Harvard Business School, 1988. Davis, Nancy J. Londontown Corporation. Boston: Harvard Business School, 1975.

Fournier, Susan, and Jessica Boer. *Calvin Klein, Inc. V. Warnaco Group, Inc.* Boston: Harvard Business School Pub. Corp., 2002.

Gershun, Martha. *Dragonfly Corporation*. Boston: Harvard Business School, 1988.

Hallisey, Bill, and Susan Sanabria. [Tc]2 and the Apparel Industry. Boston: Harvard Business School, 1987.

Katzenstein, Liora. *Hart Schaffner & Marx*. Boston: Harvard Business School, 1981

Kets de Vries, Manfred F. R. *The Chantel Corporation*. Boston: Harvard Business School, 1984.

Kotchman, David. *Prochnik: Privatization of a Polish Clothing Manufacturer*. Boston: Harvard Business School, 1994.

L.L. Bean, Inc. 1974. Boston: Harvard Business School, 1985.

L.L. Bean, Inc. 1974, Supplement. Boston: Harvard Business School, 1985.

Marshall, Cheri T. *Great American Knitting Mills, Gold Toe Socks*. Boston: Harvard Business School, 1984.

Matthews, Glenn. Rugged Wear, Ltd. Boston: Harvard Business School, 1987.

Merliss, Penny Pittman. *Chipman-Union, Inc., Odor-Eater Socks*. Boston: Harvard Business School, 1987.

Merliss, Penny Pittman, Hirotaka Takeuchi, and Cheri T. Marshall. *Career Women's Clothing Store*. Boston: Harvard Business School, 1981.

A. Schwartz & Company. Boston: Harvard Business School, 1977.

Shapiro, Benson P. *Levi Strauss & Company*. 1980. Reprint, Boston: Harvard Business School, 1985.

Singer, Harvey. L'eggs Products, Inc. A. Boston: Harvard Business School, 1974.

- -. L'eggs Products, Inc. (Condensed). Boston: Harvard Business School, 1985.
- Tedlow, Richard S. Hart Schaffner & Marx: The Market for Separately Ticketed Suits. Boston: Harvard Business School, 1983.
- —. The Jordan Marsh Company: Merchandising Men's Tailored Clothing. Boston: Harvard Business School, 1984.
- —. Danton's: The Specialty Store Men's Apparel Business. Boston: Harvard Business School, 1990.

Teopaco, John L., and Stephen A. Greyser. Crafted with Pride in U.S.A Council. Boston: Harvard Business School, 1991.

Young, Robert F. Gant Shirtmakers. Boston: Harvard Business School, 1982.

5. Trade Associations

The following trade associations conducted private research on the apparel industry, and published reports, directories, and conference proceedings:

American Apparel Manufacturers Association Clothing Manufacturers Association of New York Clothing Manufacturers Association of the United States National Clothiers' Association of the United States New York Clothing Manufacturers' Exchange

II. Collections of Clothing Trade Catalogs

CORNELL UNIVERSITY LIBRARY DIVISION OF RARE AND MANUSCRIPT COLLECTIONS

2B Carl A. Kroch Library Cornell University Ithaca, NY 14853 607-255-3530 http://rmc.library.cornell.edu/

Clothing catalogs, 1879-1929.

8 items.

Location: NIC Call Number: 6657 Notes and Summaries:

Catalogs of women's, men's, and children's clothing from various stores, including B. Altman & Co., National Cloak & Suit Co., Sears, Roebuck and Co., E. Butterick & Co., Butler Brothers, and The Royal Tailors.

This collection covers: Clothing and dress Catalogs.

Advertising - Clothing and dress. Corporate Author: B. Altman & Co.

Corporate Author: National Cloak & Suit Co. Corporate Author: Sears, Roebuck and Company. Corporate Author: E. Butterick and Company. Corporate Author: Butler Brothers (Firm) Corporate Author: Royal Tailors (Firm).

RLG Union Catalog Record ID: NYCV05-A10017

UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, SANTA BARBARA (UCSB) LIBRARY, DEPARTMENT OF SPECIAL COLLECTIONS

University of California, Santa Barbara

Santa Barbara, CA 93106 Telephone: 805-893-3062 http://www.library.ucsb.edu/

Romaine [Lawrence B.] Trade Catalog Collection, ca. 1850-1968

Lawrence B. Romaine (1900-1967) was an antiquarian book dealer, who bought and sold rare books, manuscripts, trade catalogs, and other Americana. Romaine was recognized as the leading expert in the U.S. on trade catalogs, and was the author of A Guide to American Trade Catalogs, 1774-1900 (New York: R. R. Bowker Company, 1960), the standard reference work in this field. Romaine collected over 41,000 trade catalogs from the 19th and early 20th centuries, including many on clothing and department stores. The collection is arranged in accordance with his published guide. The following descriptions are provided on Archivegrid:

Trade catalogs of clothing, 1876-1929.

26 items (1 box): ill.

University of California, Santa Barbara

Location: University of California, Santa Barbara. Library., Dept. of Special Collections., Santa Barbara, CA 93106.

Notes and Summaries:

Trade catalogs of men's, women's, and children's clothing and other ephemera relating to the selling of clothing.

Forms part of: Romaine trade catalog collection.

This collection covers:

Boys - Clothing - Catalogs.

Children's clothing - Catalogs.

Clothing and dress - Catalogs.

Coats - Catalogs.

Corsets - Catalogs.

Dry goods - Catalogs.

Hats - Catalogs.

Infants - Clothing - Catalogs.

Lingerie - Catalogs.

Skirts - Catalogs.

Underwear - Catalogs.

Waists - Catalogs.

Trade catalogs - Michighan.

Trade catalogs - New York (State) Corporate Author: Bedell Company. Corporate Author: Bellas Hess & Co.

Corporate Author: National Cloak & Suit Company. Uniform Title: Oakland post-enquirer. March 2, 1927. Uniform Title: Oakland tribune. March 14, 1929.

Uniform Title: Oakland tribune. 1927.

¹ http://bibliophilebullpen.blogspot.com/2006 08 01 archive.html

_

Uniform Title: San Francisco chronicle. November 25, 1928. Uniform Title: The San Francisco examiner. March 10, 1929.

Corporate Author: Sears, Roebuck and Company.

Corporate Author: Universal Fashion Co.

Corporate Author: W.P. Treet

Host Item: Romaine trade catalog collection (CStRLIN)CASX87-A!

RLG Union Catalog Record ID: CASX88-A108

Trade catalogs of clothing, 1900-1921.

13 items (1 box): ill. Notes and Summaries:

Trade catalogs of women's and children's clothing and accessories relating to the selling of clothing.

This collection covers:

Children's clothing - Catalogs.

Clothing and dress - Catalogs.

Coats - Catalogs. Corsets - Catalogs.

Hats - Catalogs.

Lingerie - Catalogs.

Skirts - Catalogs.

Underwear - Catalogs.

Waists - Catalogs.

Trade catalogs - Michigan.

Trade catalogs - New York (State)

Corporate Author: Greenhut-Siegel Cooper Co. Corporate Author: National Cloak & Suit Company.

Corporate Author: Newcomb Endicott Co.

Corporate Author: Sterns Brothers.

Host Item: Romaine trade catalog collection (CStRLIN)CASX87-A1

RLG Union Catalog Record ID: CASX88-A107

Trade catalogs of clothing, 1879-1924.

90 items (1 box): ill. Notes and Summaries:

Trade catalogs, newspaper advertisements, price lists, order forms, invoices,

manufacturer's correspondence and other ephemera relating to the buying and selling of clothing.

This collection covers:

Royal Arch Masons.

Boys - Clothing - Catalogs.

Buttons.

Celluloid.

Children's clothing - Catalogs.

Clothing and dress - Catalogs.

Collars - Catalogs.

Corsets - Catalogs.

Cuffs (Clothing)

Dressmaking materials.

Footwear.

Girls - Clothing - Catalogs.

Infants - Clothing - Catalogs.

Lace and lacemaking.

Neckwear - Catalogs.

Overalls - Catalogs.

Secret societies - Insignia - Catalogs.

Sleepwear - Catalogs.

Waists - Catalogs.

Trade catalogs - Connecticut.

Trade catalogs - Illinois.

Trade catalogs - Indiana.

Trade catalogs - Michigan.

Trade catalogs - Missouri.

Trade catalogs - New York (State)

Trade catalogs - Ohio.

Corporate Author: A.E. Parker (Firm)

Corporate Author: Best & Co.

Corporate Author: Bortree Manufacturing Company.

Corporate Author: C.E. King & Co.

Corporate Author: C.E. Ward Company.

Corporate Author: Chicago Corset Company.

Corporate Author: Corliss, Coon & Co.

Corporate Author: Culver Tailoring Co.

Corporate Author: D.C. Griswold & Co.

Corporate Author: David H. Posner (Firm)
Corporate Author: Doggett Dry Goods Company.

Corporate Author: E. Jacobs & Co.

Corporate Author: E.M. Emerson (Firm)

Corporate Author: George C. Batcheller & Co.

Corporate Author: H.W. Robinson & Co.

Corporate Author: Henderson Ames Company.

Corporate Author: Hoke & Appenzellar.

Corporate Author: J.M. Boone (Firm)

Corporate Author: J.S. Shields & Co.

Corporate Author: Janalene Incorporated.

Corporate Author: King Collar Button Co.

Corporate Author: Lewis, Brown & Co.

Corporate Author: Lilley Co.

Corporate Author: R.H. Van Horn (Firm)

Corporate Author: Reversible Collar Co.

Corporate Author: Sargent, Kimball & Co.

Corporate Author: Shepard, Norwell & Co.

Corporate Author: Sherman & Keech.

Corporate Author: Thomas W. Love & Co.

Corporate Author: Victor Manufacturing Co.

Corporate Author: W.A. Wieboldt & Co.

Corporate Author: Warner Bros.

Corporate Author: Wise Smith & Co.

Corporate Author: Worcester Corset Company.

Corporate Author: Wright & Bolling.

Host Item: Romaine trade catalog collection (CStRLIN)CASX87-A1

RLG Union Catalog Record ID: CASX88-A25

Trade catalogs of clothing, 1876-1976.

53 items (1 box): ill. Notes and Summaries:

Trade catalogs, advertisements, brochures, price lists, and other ephemera relating to the

selling of clothing.

This collection covers:

Bathing suits - Catalogs.

Children - Clothing - Catalogs.

Clothing and dress - Catalogs.

Hats - Catalogs.

Hosiery - Catalogs.

Lingerie - Catalogs.

Selling - Lingerie.

Textile fabrics - Sample books.

Dr. Richard's supporters.

Equipoise waist.

Middy suits - Catalogs.

Petticoats - Catalogs.

Trade catalogs - Georgia.

Trade catalogs - Illinois.

Trade catalogs - Maryland.

Trade catalogs - Massachusetts.

Trade catalogs - Michigan.

Trade catalogs - New York (State)

Corporate Author: Anton Martin & Cie.

Corporate Author: Aurora Silk Products Co.

Corporate Author: Belfast Mesh Underwear Co.

Corporate Author: Bellas Hess & Co.

Corporate Author: Bentingue Ltd.

Corporate Author: Diana Studios.

Corporate Author: Fasheen Knitwear.

Corporate Author: French Fashion Mfg. Co.

Corporate Author: Geo. Am Plummer & Co.

Corporate Author: Greenhut-Siegel Cooper Co.

Corporate Author: Henry S. Lombard (Firm)

Corporate Author: Ideal Skirt Mfg. Co.

Corporate Author: John M. Smyth Co.

Corporate Author: L.W. Brockway (Firm)

Corporate Author: Lane Bryant (Firm)

Corporate Author: Leiter Brothers.

Corporate Author: M. Harold Brown (Firm)

Corporate Author: Martha Lane Adams (Firm)

Uniform Title: McCall's magazine. Oct. 1902.

Corporate Author: McGee Brothers Company.

Corporate Author: Muskegon Knitting Mills.

Corporate Author: National Cloak & Suit Company.

Corporate Author: Priscilla Undermuslin Co.

Corporate Author: Schlesinger's.

Corporate Author: Sears, Roebuck and Company.

Corporate Author: Siegel Cooper Co.

Corporate Author: Siegel's. Corporate Author: Society Style.

Corporate Author: Standard Mail Order Co.

Corporate Author: Tog Shop. Corporate Author: Warner Bros.

Corporate Author: Weatherby, Knaus & Company.

Host Item: Romaine trade catalog collection (CStRLIN)CASX87-A1

RLG Union Catalog Record ID: CASX88-A33

Trade catalogs of clothing, 1872-1948.

68 items (1 box): ill. Notes and Summaries:

Trade catalogs of men's, women's, and children's clothing and other ephemera relating to clothing.

This collection covers:

Cloaks - Catalogs.

Clothing and dress - Catalogs.

Coats - Catalogs.

Dress accessories - Catalogs.

Dressmaking - Patterns.

Fur garments - Catalogs.

Household linens - Catalogs.

Knit goods - Catalogs.

Lingerie - Catalogs.

Manufactures - Catalogs.

Sweaters - Catalogs.

Textile fabrics - Sample books.

Trade catalogs - Connecticut.

Trade catalogs - Illinois.

Trade catalogs - Maryland.

Trade catalogs - Massachusetts.

Trade catalogs - Michigan.

Trade catalogs - Missouri.

Trade catalogs - New York (State)

Trade catalogs - Ohio.

Trade catalogs - Paris - France.

Trade catalogs - Pennsylvania.

Trade catalogs - Virginia.

Trade catalogs - Wisconsin.

Corporate Author: Au Bon Marche (Paris, France).

Corporate Author: B. Altman & Co. Corporate Author: B. Siegel Company.

Corporate Author: Bedell Company. Corporate Author: Boggs and Buhl.

Corporate Author: Boston Store.

Corporate Author: Bradley Knitting Company. Corporate Author: Brooklyn Knitting Co.

Corporate Author: Butterick Publishing Company.

Corporate Author: Charles William Stores.

Corporate Author: Cloak Drummer Co.

Corporate Author: Country Store (Concord, Mass.)

Corporate Author: E. Butterick and Company. Corporate Author: Edward B. Grossman & Co. Corporate Author: Fraser Dry Goods Company.

Corporate Author: Gimbel Brothers.

Corporate Author: Greenhut-Siegel Cooper Co.

Corporate Author: H. Black & Co. Corporate Author: H.K. Green & Bros. Corporate Author: H. O'Neill & Co.

Corporate Author: Hofmeister Woolen Mills.
Corporate Author: J.B. Fullerton & Co.
Corporate Author: John Wanamaker & Co.
Corporate Author: Lace Shop (Philadelphia, Pa.)
Corporate Author: Leask Manufacturing Co.
Corporate Author: Le Boutillier Brothers (Firm)

Corporate Author: London (Firm).

Corporate Author: National Cloak and Suit Company.

Corporate Author: Newcomb Endicott Co. Corporate Author: P.A. Brugh & Son. Corporate Author: Philipsborn's (Firm)

Corporate Author: Pictorial Review Company.

Corporate Author: Polly Pride Products. Corporate Author: Roberts-Frank & Co.

Corporate Author: Russell & Green Merchants. Corporate Author: Salomon & Burroughs.

Corporate Author: Salomon & Burroughs.
Corporate Author: Skidmore & Turnbull.
Corporate Author: Standard Mail Order Co.
Corporate Author: Strawbridge & Clothier.
Corporate Author: Universal Fashion Co.

Corporate Author: Universal Trading & Supply Company.

Corporate Author: W. and H. Walker. Corporate Author: W.H. Hall Furrier.

Corporate Author: Wm. Barr Dry Goods Co. Corporate Author: Wm. Broadhead & Sons.

Corporate Author: Wooltex (Firm)

Host Item: Romaine trade catalog collection (CStRLIN)CASX87-A1

RLG Union Catalog Record ID: CASX88-A32

Trade catalogs of clothing, 1874-1930.

84 items (1 box): ill. Notes and Summaries:

Manufacturer's and retailer's catalogs, chiefly of women's clothing and accessories, with sections of men's and children's clothing and household goods; dress pattern books; and newspaper clippings, magazine issues, pamphlets and newspaper supplements dealing with fashion.

This collection covers:

Children's clothing - Catalogs.

Clothing and dress - Catalogs.

Coats - Catalogs.

Dress accessories - Catalogs.

Dressmaking - Patterns - Catalogs.

Fashion - United States - History.

House furnishings - Catalogs.

Household linens - Catalogs.

Lingerie - Catalogs.

Men's clothing - Catalogs.

Shoes - Catalogs.

Sweaters - Catalogs.

Underwear - Catalogs.

Irene Castle Corticelli fashions - Catalogs.

Trade catalogs - Connecticut.

Trade catalogs - Illinois.

Trade catalogs - Maryland.

Trade catalogs - Massachusetts.

Trade catalogs - New York (State)

Trade catalogs - Ohio.

Trade catalogs - Pennsylvania.

Tru-Pal garments - Catalogs.

Corporate Author: A. Piat & Cie.

Corporate Author: Bedell Company.

Corporate Author: Benjamin Moseley (Firm)

Corporate Author: Boggs and Buhl. Corporate Author: Butler's (Firm)

Corporate Author: Butterick Publishing Company.

Corporate Author: Cherry & Co.

Corporate Author: Cockcroft Silk Co.

Corporate Author: Corticelli Silk Co.

Corporate Author: D.M. Hough & Co.

Uniform Title: Distinction in dress and how to retain it. 1903.

Corporate Author: Domestic Sewing Machine Co.

Corporate Author: DorVola Mills Company.

Corporate Author: E. Gately & Co.

Corporate Author: Eastern Garment Co.

Corporate Author: Edward B. Grossman & Co.

Corporate Author: Edward Ridley & Sons.

Corporate Author: Fashion Frocks Inc.

Corporate Author: Franklin Simon & Co.

Corporate Author: Fred N. Whitman (Firm)

Corporate Author: Gimbel Brothers.

Corporate Author: H.C. Capwell Company.

Corporate Author: Hutzler Brothers Co.

Corporate Author: Jordan, Marsh & Co.

Corporate Author: Mme. Demorest (Firm)

Corporate Author: May Manton Pattern Co.

Uniform Title: Metropolitan Fashions. Vol. 41, no. 1. 1895.

Uniform Title: Mirror of fashions. Vol. 1, no. 12. 1892.

Uniform Title: The mode-- and rayon. 1928.

Corporate Author: Montgomery Ward and Company.

Corporate Author: National Bellas Hess Co.

Corporate Author: National Cloak & Suit Company.

Uniform Title: Oakland tribune. Sept.1, 1927.

Corporate Author: Perry, Dame & Co.

Corporate Author: Philipsborn's (Firm)

Corporate Author: Polly Pride Products. Corporate Author: Printz Biederman & Co.

Corporate Author: Rayon Institute. Corporate Author: Roos Bros.

Corporate Author: Simpson, Campbell & Watson.

Corporate Author: Standard Fashion Co.

Corporate Author: Swift (Firm)

Corporate Author: Taft & Pennoyer Co. Corporate Author: Updegraff's (Firm)

Corporate Author: Van Orden Corset Company. Corporate Author: Walker Dry Goods Company. Corporate Author: Winder Service Company. Corporate Author: Wm. Filene's Sons Co. Corporate Author: Wm. Smith & Son.

Host Item: Romaine trade catalog collection CCStRLIN)CASX87-A1

RLG Union Catalog Record ID: CASX88-A34

Trade catalogs of clothing, 1850-1953.

102 items (1 box): ill. Notes and Summaries:

Trade catalogs, newspaper advertisements, price lists, order forms, manufacturer's correspondence, fabric sample books of wools, fabric sample books of rubber and waterproof fabric for raincoats, 1 cardboard "age guesser" with tailoring company logo, 1 home-ordering kit for raincoats that includes a measuring tape, and other ephemera relating to the buying and selling of clothing.

This collection covers:

Aprons - Catalogs.

Children's clothing - Catalogs.

Clasps.

Clothing and dress - Catalogs.

Cloaks - Catalogs.

Coats - Catalogs.

Coats - Sample books.

Corsets - Catalogs.

Dry-goods - Catalogs.

Gloves.

Hosiery.

Infants - Clothing - Catalogs.

Lace and lacemaking.

Raincoats - Sample books.

Sleepwear.

Tailoring - Sample books.

Underwear.

Waists.

Wool - Sample books.

Bread cutter.

Trade catalogs - California.

Trade catalogs - Connecticut.

Trade catalogs - Illinois.

Trade catalogs - England - London.

Trade catalogs - Maryland.

Trade catalogs - Massachusetts.

Trade catalogs - Michigan.

Trade catalogs - New York (State) Corporate Author: A.J. Tower (Firm) Corporate Author: Albee, Lyons and Co. Corporate Author: Aquascutum Ltd.

Corporate Author: Bell Tailors.

Corporate Author: Blue Front Clothing Company.

Corporate Author: Burberrys (Firm) Corporate Author: C.G. Glass (Firm) Corporate Author: C.V. Boller Company. Corporate Author: Chas W. Borzell (Firm)

Uniform Title: The Cloak review. Vol. 10, no. 9. 1897.

Corporate Author: Comer Manufacturing Co. Corporate Author: Consumers Manufacturing Co. Corporate Author: Continental Clothing House.

Corporate Author: Dixie Raincoat Co.

Corporate Author: Eastern Raincoat Company.

Corporate Author: Economy Clothing Manufacturing Company.

Uniform Title: Ehrichs' fashion quarterly. Spring, 1879. Corporate Author: English Raincoat Tailors Company.

Corporate Author: Eutaw Clothing House. Corporate Author: Franklyn Products Corp. Corporate Author: Geo. S. Cos & Bro.

Corporate Author: Goodyear Rubber Mfg. Co. Corporate Author: Gorham-Revere Rubber Co.

Corporate Author: H.M. Sawyer (Firm)

Corporate Author: Hall's (Firm) Corporate Author: Hamilton & Co.

Corporate Author: Horsey-Bassett Company.

Corporate Author: Hub (Firm)

Corporate Author: Hydro Raincoat Company.

Corporate Author: J.A. Godfrey & Co. Corporate Author: J.B. Mullings (Firm) Corporate Author: J. Meier & Bro. Corporate Author: J.P. Bogani (Firm) Corporate Author: J.S. Van Anglen (Firm) Corporate Author: Jackson Raincoat Co. Corporate Author: Jacob Reed's Sons.

Corporate Author: Jeffrey Manufacturing Company.

Corporate Author: John Stilz & Son. Corporate Author: John Wanamaker & Co. Corporate Author: L.H. Pierce Textile Co. Corporate Author: Leinbach & Bro.

Corporate Author: Lincoln, Brooks Company. Corporate Author: Litchfield & Stebbing.

Corporate Author: Marshall & Ball.

Uniform Title: The Modern Priscilla, Vol. 2, no. 2, 1889.

Corporate Author: Moulton & Bradley. Corporate Author: Nathaniel Carter (Firm) Corporate Author: Newcomb Endicott Co. Corporate Author: Orange Clothing Co.

Uniform Title: The Outfitter. Vol. 42, no. 1668. 1929.

Uniform Title: The Outfitters. Limited overseas edition. Vol. 42, no. 1666. 1929.

Supplement.

Corporate Author: Putnam & Son.
Corporate Author: Rainbow Slicker Co.
Corporate Author: Richard Forde (Firm)
Corporate Author: Richardson & Co.
Corporate Author: Royal Tailors.

Corporate Author: Rubber Company of America. Corporate Author: S.M. Hydeman's Clothing House.

Corporate Author: Standard Raincoat Co.
Corporate Author: 10 Per Cent Clothing House.
Corporate Author: Tremont Rubber Company.
Corporate Author: Victor Manufacturing Co.
Corporate Author: Wearproof Clothing Co.
Corporate Author: Weil, Haskell, & Co.
Corporate Author: Western Slicker Co.

Uniform Title: Willian's bazaar. Vol. 1, no. 5. 1873.

Corporate Author: Wire-Buckle Suspender Co. Host Item: Romaine trade catalog collection (CStRLIN)CASX87-A1

RLG Union Catalog Record ID: CASX88-A24

Trade catalogs of wholesale dealers, 1883-1936.

4 items (1 box): ill. Notes and Summaries:

A buyers' guide and wholesale catalogs of hardware, clothing, jewelry, and other products.

This collection covers:

Clothing and dress - Catalogs.

Hardware - Catalogs. Jewelry - Catalogs.

Mail-order business - Catalogs.

Manufacturers - United States - Directories.

Manufactures - Catalogs.

Novelties - Catalogs.

Wholesale trade - Catalogs.

Trade catalogs - California.

Trade catalogs - Maine.

Trade catalogs - New York (State)

Corporate Author: California Hardware Company.

Uniform Title: Donnelley's red book: the national buyers' guide and sales catalog. March

919.

Corporate Author: Joseph T. Simon & Co.

Corporate Author: Reuben H. Donnelley Corporation.

Corporate Author: True & Co.

Host Item: Romaine trade catalog collection (CStRLIN)CASX87-A1

RLG Union Catalog Record ID: CASX88-A736

Trade catalogs of clothing, 1865-1975.

68 items (1 box): ill.

Notes and Summaries:

Trade catalogs, newspaper advertisements, price lists, fabric sample books, and other ephemera relating to the selling of clothing.

This collection covers:

Children's clothing - Catalogs.

Coats - Catalogs.

Hats - Catalogs.

Infants - Clothing - Catalogs.

Scarves.

Shirts, Men's.

Shoes.

Skirts.

Sweaters.

Textile fabrics - Sample books.

Underwear - Catalogs.

Waists - Catalogs.

Canfield dress shields.

Mackintoshes.

Trade catalogs - Connecticut.

Trade catalogs - Illinois.

Trade catalogs - New York (State)

Trade catalogs - Pennsylvania.

Corporate Author: Bedell Company.

Corporate Author: Best Company.

 $Corporate\ Author:\ Blooming dale\ Brothers.$

Corporate Author: Canfield Rubber Co.

Corporate Author: Casler's.

Corporate Author: Chas. A. Stevens & Bros.

Corporate Author: City of Paris (Firm) Corporate Author: Coldren Knitting Mills.

Corporate Author: F B S (Firm)

Corporate Author: Gillette Skirt Co.

Corporate Author: Gody's. Corporate Author: Goldman's.

Corporate Author: H. Rosenbaum & Co.

Corporate Author: Hyman's.

Corporate Author: I.B. Kleinert Rubber Co.

Corporate Author: John Forsythe (Firm) Corporate Author: Jordan, Marsh & Co.

Corporate Author: Kelley Manufacturing Co.

Corporate Author: L.E. Higgins & Co.

Corporate Author: Leonard Morton & Co. Corporate Author: Lewis, Brown & Co.

Uniform Title: Liberty. August 14, 1926. Corporate Author: Linnit Service.

Corporate Author: Lyon Brothers.

Corporate Author: Malloch Knitting Mills. Corporate Author: Mandel Brothers.

March, Marjorie. Just a few words. [192-?]

Corporate Author: National Cloak & Suit Company.

Corporate Author: Omo Manufacturing Co.

Corporate Author: Owen T. Moses & Co. Corporate Author: Perry, Dame & Co. Corporate Author: Pure Food Company. Corporate Author: R.B. Noble (Firm) Corporate Author: R.E. Lowe & Sons. Corporate Author: R.H. Macy & Co. Corporate Author: R. Newman (Firm)

Corporate Author: Rothschild Bros. & Gutmann.

Corporate Author: Smart Set Company. Corporate Author: Standard Mail Order Co. Corporate Author: Vermont Natives Industries.

Corporate Author: W. and H. Walker.

Host Item: Romaine trade catalog collection (CStRLIN)CASX87-A1

RLG Union Catalog Record ID: CASX88-A134

Trade catalogs of clothing, 1882-1968.

168 items (1 box): ill. Notes and Summaries:

Advertisements, trade catalogs, fabric samples, instructions to salesmen, price lists, and other items relating chiefly to men's and women's coats and men's shirts and pants.

This collection covers:

Coats - Catalogs.

Fur garments - Catalogs.

Handkerchiefs.

Leather garments - Catalogs.

Lingerie - Catalogs.

Shirts, Men's - Catalogs.

Textile fabrics - Sample books.

Trousers - Catalogs.

Leggings - Catalogs.

Suits, Men's - Catalogs.

Trade catalogs - Illinois.

Trade catalogs - Maryland.

Trade catalogs - Massachusetts.

Trade catalogs - New York (State)

Trade catalogs - Ohio.

Trade catalogs - Pennsylvania.

Corporate Author: Abney-Barnes Co. Corporate Author: Albion Company.

Corporate Author: B.F. Schlesinger & Sons.

Corporate Author: Better Pants Co. Corporate Author: Carlton Inc.

Corporate Author: Chicago Patent Shirt Co.

Corporate Author: Curtis Shirt Co.

Corporate Author: Custom Built Shirt Co. Corporate Author: Deerskin Trading Post. Corporate Author: E.O. Thompson (Firm)

Corporate Author: Emaus Shirt & Textile Corporation. Corporate Author: Fashion Wear Shirt Company.

Corporate Author: H.B. Dickinson (Firm)

Corporate Author: Hagerstown Shoe & Legging Co.

Corporate Author: Hoosier Manufacturing Company.

Corporate Author: House of Kuppenheimer.

Corporate Author: Hub (Firm)

Corporate Author: Hutchins Pants Company.

Corporate Author: I. Magnin & Co.

Corporate Author: L. Needles-Brooker Co. Corporate Author: Langdon Shirt Co. Corporate Author: Madison Mills.

Corporate Author: Marcellus Hofflin (Firm) Corporate Author: North Bros. & Strauss. Corporate Author: P.H. Crosby (Firm) Corporate Author: Peerless Pants Co.

Corporate Author: Peggy Ann Dress Company. Corporate Author: Premiere Garment Co. Corporate Author: Sheriden Shirt Co.

Corporate Author: Sinclair Comfort Built Shirts.

Corporate Author: StyleWear Co.
Corporate Author: Taft & Pennoyer Co.
Corporate Author: Trustyle Shirt Company.
Corporate Author: Tutelman Shirt Company.
Corporate Author: Union Supply Company.
Corporate Author: W.S. Legge (Firm)

Corporate Author: Walton Duplex Company.

Host Item: Romaine trade catalog collection (CStRLIN)CASX87-A1

RLG Union Catalog Record ID: CASX88-A19

Trade catalogs of clothing, 1882-1972.

46 items (1 box): ill. Notes and Summaries:

Trade catalogs, newspaper advertisements, price lists, fabric sample books for men's suits and vests, and other ephemera relating to men's cl othing.

This collection covers:

Boys - Clothing - Catalogs.

Hats - Catalogs.

Men's clothing - Catalogs.

Neckties - Catalogs.

Shoes - Catalogs.

Tailoring.

Vests - Sample books.

Wool - Sample books.

Trade catalogs - California.

Trade catalogs - Connecticut.

Trade catalogs - Illinois.

Trade catalogs - Maryland.

Trade catalogs - Massachusetts.

Trade catalogs - New York (State)

Corporate Author: A.L. Foster Co. Corporate Author: A.M. Flint Co.

Corporate Author: Baltimore Bargain House. Corporate Author: Bedford Rubber Co. Corporate Author: Bloomingdale Brothers.

Corporate Author: Brewer & Byers.
Corporate Author: Buck Skein Joe.
Corporate Author: C.J. Heeseman, Inc.
Corporate Author: C. Kenyon Company.
Corporate Author: Charles S. Young.
Corporate Author: Desmond's (Firm)
Corporate Author: Edmond Reh & Co.

Corporate Author: Golden State Outfitting Co. Corporate Author: Hart Schaffner & Marx. Corporate Author: Hastings Clothing Co.

Uniform Title: Die Herrenwelt. Heft 1. Januar 1916.

Uniform Title: How to dress. 1888.

Corporate Author: International Tailoring Co. Corporate Author: J.Z. Silverwood (Firm) Corporate Author: Jim Foster Clothes. Corporate Author: Jno. Wanamaker & Co. Corporate Author: Julius Saul (Firm) Corporate Author: Kimball & Co.

Corporate Author: Kohn Brothers. Corporate Author: Leopold Morselo (Firm) Corporate Author: Lewis, Brown & Co.

Uniform Title: The Man. [190-?].

Uniform Title: Men's wear. 60th anniversary issue. 1950.

Corporate Author: Mullen & Bluett.

Uniform Title: Oakland Tribune. March 21, 1929.

Corporate Author: Pameyer (Firm) Corporate Author: Philipsborn's (Firm) Corporate Author: R.O. Walker (Firm) Corporate Author: Reed's (Firm)

Corporate Author: Sears, Roebuck and Company. Corporate Author: Snyder, Harris, Bassett & Co. Corporate Author: Streeter, Brimmer & Olean.

Corporate Author: Strouse & Bros.

Corporate Author: Style-center Tailoring Co.

Corporate Author: Super Service Co. Corporate Author: Talbot Co. Corporate Author: W.J. Woods Co. Corporate Author: W.S. Clark & Co. Corporate Author: W.W. Fuller (Firm)

Host Item: Romaine trade catalog collection (CStRLIN)CASX87-A1

RLG Union Catalog Record ID: CASX88-A36

Trade catalogs of clothing, 1878-1929.

91 items (1 box): ill. Notes and Summaries:

Newspaper and magazine advertisements, catalogs, fabric samples, price lists, and other ephemera relating chiefly to hosiery and work clothing.

This collection covers:

Clothing and dress - Catalogs.

Hosiery.

Hosiery, Silk.

Hosiery industry - United States.

Knitting.

Millinery.

Safety goggles - Catalogs.

Socks.

Sport clothes - Catalogs.

Textile fabrics - Sample books.

Underwear - Catalogs.

Work clothes.

Trade catalogs - Illinois.

Trade catalogs - Indiana.

Trade catalogs - Michigan.

Trade catalogs - Minnesota.

Trade catalogs - New York (State)

Trade catalogs - Pennsylvania.

Trade catalogs - Virginia.

Corporate Author: Allen A Company.

Corporate Author: Arthur Hosiery Company.

Corporate Author: Bedell Company. Corporate Author: Carlton Inc.

Corporate Author: City of Paris (Firm) Corporate Author: Climax Hosiery Mills. Corporate Author: Cooper, Wells, & Co.

Corporate Author: Durable Hosiery Corporation.

Corporate Author: Fifth Avenue Hosiery Mills Company.

Corporate Author: Florence Hosiery Co.

Corporate Author: Guarantee Hosiery Company. Corporate Author: H.C. Capwell Company.

Corporate Author: H.J. Upthegrove.

Corporate Author: H. Liebes & Co. Corporate Author: Hanan & Son.

Corporate Author: Holcomb Safety Garment Co. Corporate Author: Holeproof Hosiery Company. Corporate Author: Interwoven Stocking Company.

Corporate Author: Ipswich Mills.

Corporate Author: J.O.H. Woodman (Firm)

Corporate Author: J.R. Riddick Co.

Corporate Author: John Leeding Company.

Corporate Author: Joseph Magnin Co.

Corporate Author: K.T. Halsall.

Corporate Author: Lewis, Brown & Co. Corporate Author: Livingston Bros. Corporate Author: Maidrite Sales Co. Corporate Author: Manheim & Mazor.

Corporate Author: Marks Bros.

Maynard, Alice. Directions for knitting bicycle and golf stockings. 1897.

Corporate Author: Mesler (Firm)

Corporate Author: Moorhead Knitting Co.

Corporate Author: Mum Mfg. Co.

Corporate Author: Pennsylvania Hosiery Mills.

Corporate Author: Pulmosan Safety Equipment Corp.

Corporate Author: Pure Silk Hosiery Mills. Corporate Author: Raphael Weill & Co. Corporate Author: Real Silk Hosiery Mills.

Corporate Author: Roos Bros.
Corporate Author: Schlesingers'.
Corporate Author: W.N. Coriell (Firm)
Corporate Author: Whitthorne & Swan.
Corporate Author: Willson Goggles, Inc.

Corporate Author: Winona Mills.

Corporate Author: World's Star Knitting Co. Corporate Author: Worm Woven Hosiery Mills.

Host Item: Romaine trade catalog collection (CStRLIN)CASX87-A1

RLG Union Catalog Record ID: CASX88-A16

Trade catalogs of clothing, 1878-1933.

66 items (1 box): ill. Notes and Summaries:

Trade catalogs, directories, advertisements, price lists, and leather samples relating to shoes, shoe accessories, and the manufacture of shoes.

This collection covers:

Leather - Sample books.

Rubber footwear - Catalogs.

Shoe industry - United States - Directories.

Shoe-polish - Catalogs.

Shoes - Catalogs.

Shoes - History.

Johnston & Murphy shoe.

Keds - Catalogs.

Little Fairy matureform shoes.

Prof. Wingren's voltaic electric insoles.

Queen Quality shoes - Catalogs.

Trade catalogs - Connecticut.

Trade catalogs - England - London.

Trade catalogs - England - Manchester (Greater Manchester)

Trade catalogs - Illinois.

Trade catalogs - Massachusetts. Trade catalogs - New Hampshire. Trade catalogs - Ontario - Toronto. Trade catalogs - Rhode Island.

Trade catalogs - Switzerland - Basel.

Viscol.

White's shoe - Catalogs.

Wilbur Coon shoes - Catalogs.

Wool boots.

Corporate Author: A.G. Walton & Co. Corporate Author: Bechtel (Firm).

Corporate Author: Clark-Hutchinson Company. Corporate Author: Electric Appliances Company.

Corporate Author: Goodyear's Metallic Rubber Shoe Co.

Corporate Author: Louis Scheuer (Firm).

Uniform Title: The Manufacture of shoe uppers. 1923.

Corporate Author: Mishawaka Woolen Mfg. Co. Corporate Author: Moonsocket Rubber Co.

Corporate Author: New York Shoe Manufacturing Co. Uniform Title: Shoe and leather reporter annual. 1888. Uniform Title: Shoe and leather reporter annual. 1924.

Corporate Author: Snell & Atherton.

Corporate Author: Tailor-Made Shoe System.
Corporate Author: Tanners Shoe Manufacturing Co.

Corporate Author: Thing's Shoe Stores. Corporate Author: Thomas E. Greacen (Firm) Corporate Author: Thomas G. Plant Company.

Corporate Author: Toronto Rubber Shoe Manufacturing Co.

Corporate Author: Triangle Shoe Factories.

Corporate Author: Truswell & Co.

Corporate Author: Union Special Machine Company. Corporate Author: United States Rubber Company.

Corporate Author: W.B. Coon Co.

Corporate Author: W. Buhler-Kahny (Firm) Corporate Author: W.L. Douglas Shoe Company.

Corporate Author: W.P. Deardorff & Co. Corporate Author: Wales-Goodyear Shoe Co. Corporate Author: Walk-Over Shoe Shop. Corporate Author: Walker Shoe Company. Corporate Author: Wallworth & Robertson. Corporate Author: Waukenphast & Co. Corporate Author: Waverly Shoe Co.

Corporate Author: Wellman Osborne (Firm) Corporate Author: Whitehouse & Hardy. Corporate Author: William E. Barker (Firm)

Corporate Author: Winch Brothers.

Corporate Author: Winchell Shoe Manufacturing Co.

Corporate Author: Wohl Shoe Company. Corporate Author: Wright & Company.

Host Item: Romaine trade catalog collection (CStRLIN)CASX87-A1

RLG Union Catalog Record ID: CASX88-A103

Trade catalogs of clothing, 1877-1979.

141 items (1 box): ill. Notes and Summaries:

Trade catalogs, newspaper advertisements, price lists, manufacturer's correspondence, and other ephemera relating to the buying and selling of clothing; including wool fabric samples for men's suits and vests, 7 photographs of men modeling suits, business cards, rubber fabric samples for waterproof garments and 1 catalog on automobile apparel.

This collection covers:

Aprons - Sample books.

Belt buckles - Catalogs.

Boots.

Boys - Clothing - Catalogs.

Clasps - Catalogs.

Coats - Catalogs.

Costume - Catalogs.

Fasteners - Catalogs.

Feathers.

Handkerchiefs - Catalogs.

Infants' supplies.

Men's clothing - Catalogs.

Raincoats.

Shirts, Men's.

Snowshoes and snowshoeing.

Tailoring.

Vests - Catalogs.

Wool - Catalogs.

Wool - Sample books.

Baseball caps.

Garment bags.

Hangers.

Suits, Men's.

Trade catalogs - California.

Trade catalogs - Connecticut.

Trade catalogs - Massachusetts.

Trade catalogs - Michigan.

Trade catalogs - New York (State)

Corporate Author: A. Shuman & Co.

Corporate Author: A.C. Yates & Co.

Corporate Author: Abbo-Craft Company. Corporate Author: Albion Company.

Corporate Author: Alexander Hill (Firm)

Corporate Author: B & M Clothiers and Furnishers.

Corporate Author: B.V.D. Company.

Corporate Author: Banner Tailoring Company.

Uniform Title: The Buyers' vest pocket directory, New York City. 1923.

Corporate Author: C. Kenyon Company.

Corporate Author: Cawston Ostrich Farm.

Corporate Author: Chelsea Tailoring Service.

Corporate Author: Chicago Form Co.

Corporate Author: D.H. Brigham Co.

Corporate Author: Dutton & Rhodes.

Corporate Author: Ed. L. Huntley & Co.

Corporate Author: Ed. V. Price & Company.

Ehrmann, Harry. Fifth Avenue tailor to see you, sir. 1925.

Uniform Title: Fancy dress for masquerades. 1916.

Flynt, O. P., Mrs.

Corporate Author: Franklyn Products Corp.

Corporate Author: Fred Strassenmeyer (Firm)

Corporate Author: G. Criscuolo (Firm)

Corporate Author: G.E. Prentice Mfg. Co.

Corporate Author: Gamble-Desmond Co.

Corporate Author: Grant Outfitters.

Corporate Author: H. Freeman & Son.

Corporate Author: Hackett Earhart & Co.

Corporate Author: Harry Ehrmann (Firm)

Corporate Author: Harry Mitchell System.

Corporate Author: Huber Rubber & Mfg. Co.

Corporate Author: Imperial Underwear Corporation.

Corporate Author: International Rubber Clothing and General Supply Co.

Corporate Author: International Tailoring Co.

Corporate Author: J.F. Brock (Firm)

Corporate Author: Jaros Hygienic Underwear Co. Corporate Author: John M. Smyth Mdse. Company. Corporate Author: Knopf-Museum Heinrich Waldes.

Corporate Author: Lucky Worsted Clothing.

Manchester, H. H. Evolution of dress fastening devices. 1922.

Corporate Author: Matheson & Berner. Corporate Author: Max Cobe (Firm) Uniform Title: McComber's tracks. 1877. Uniform Title: Men's togs. 1909-1910. Corporate Author: Metz & Schloerb.

Corporate Author: Packard Manufacturing Company.

Corporate Author: Palmer Clothing Mfg. Co. Corporate Author: Pioneer Tailoring Co. Corporate Author: Providence Novelty Co. Corporate Author: Rogers Peet & Company.

Corporate Author: Saks & Company (New York, N.Y.)

Corporate Author: Snugli Cottage Industries. Corporate Author: Spencer Mead Company. Corporate Author: Sta-Put Apron Company. Corporate Author: Superior Raincoat Co. Corporate Author: Superior Textile Mills. Corporate Author: T.B. Stayner & Co. Corporate Author: Taylor-Woolfenden Co. Corporate Author: Valley Bag Company. Corporate Author: Walton Duplex Company.

Corporate Author: Washington Square Tailoring Co.

Corporate Author: Wilson & Bradbury. Corporate Author: Work Bros. & Co.

Host Item: Romaine trade catalog collection (CStRLIN)CASX87-A1

RLG Union Catalog Record ID: CASX88-A20

Trade catalogs of clothing, 1848-1949.

112 items (1 box): ill. Notes and Summaries:

Trade catalogs, newspaper advertisements, price lists, order forms, manufacturer's correspondence, wool fabric sample books for hats and scarves, directories of hatters and other ephemera relating to buying, sellingand making of head-gear.

This collection covers:

Clothing and dress.

Hats - Catalogs.

Hatters - Catalogs.

Millinery - Catalogs.

Neckwear - Catalogs.

Scarves - Catalogs.

Textile fabrics - Sample books.

Trade catalogs - Illinois.

Trade catalogs - Maryland. Trade catalogs - Massachusetts.

Trade catalogs - New York (State)

Trade catalogs - Ohio.

Corporate Author: Alfred Mouton (Firm)

Uniform Title: The American hatter directory. [1892]

Corporate Author: Bates Hat Co. Corporate Author: Bill & Caldwell. Corporate Author: Bronner's Clothing. Corporate Author: C. S. Chamberlin (Firm) Corporate Author: Ch. Serve & A. Notter. Corporate Author: Champion Cap Co.

Corporate Author: Chicago Mercantile Company.

Corporate Author: Dobbs & Co. Corporate Author: Dunlap & Co.

Corporate Author: Fits-U Cap Company.

Genin, J. NF. Illustrated history of the hat. 1848.

Corporate Author: Gerone Co.

Corporate Author: H. J. Harding & Co. Corporate Author: H. O'Neill & Co. Corporate Author: Hollywood Hat Co.

Corporate Author: Importers & Manufacturers Millinery Co.

Corporate Author: International Hatters Supply Co.

Corporate Author: J. H. Browne (Firm) Corporate Author: J. S. Shields & Co. Corporate Author: James G. Johnson & Co. Corporate Author: John B. Stetson Company.

Corporate Author: John Fahy & Co.
Corporate Author: John H. North Co.
Corporate Author: John Miles (Firm)
Corporate Author: Joyner, Witz & Co.
Corporate Author: Julius Johst (Firm)
Corporate Author: Mallory Hat Company.
Manchester, H.H. Hat in America, 1926.
Corporate Author: McElroy & Cushman.
Corporate Author: Middletown Hat Co.

Corporate Author: New York Millinery and Supply Co. Uniform Title: The Nobby and natty hatter. [186-?]

Corporate Author: Purinton & Ham.
Corporate Author: Star Bonnet Frame Co.
Corporate Author: Taylor Cap Manufacturers.
Corporate Author: Unique Novelty Co.
Corporate Author: Universal Cap Co.

Corporate Author: Universal Cap Co. Corporate Author: Val-Style Hat Co. Corporate Author: Velora Hat & Cap Co.

Corporate Author: Western Millinery Supply House. Corporate Author: William Lawrence Bigelow (Firm)

Corporate Author: Wm. Reinerth & Co.

Corporate Author: Youmans.

Host Item: Romaine trade catalog collection (CStRLIN)CASX87-A1

RLG Union Catalog Record ID: CASX88-A133

Trade catalogs of clothing, 1850-1968.

21 items (1 box) :bill. Notes and Summaries:

Trade catalogs, brochures, advertisements, price lists, fabric samples, and other ephemera relating to the sale of clothing.

This collection covers:

Badges.

Boy Scouts - Catalogs. Costumes - Catalogs.

Hosiery.

Neckwear - Sample books. Sport clothes - Catalogs.

Sporting goods - Catalogs.

Sweaters - Catalogs.

Textile fabrics - Sample books.

Uniforms - Catalogs.

Trade catalogs - New York (State)

Corporate Author: Abercrombie & Fitch Co. Corporate Author: American Cravat Exchange. Corporate Author: Boy Scouts of America.

Corporate Author: Country Store (Concord, Mass.)

Uniform Title: The Cravat. 1902. Corporate Author: Fisher Knitting Co. Corporate Author: Fred M. Batchelder Co. Corporate Author: G.W. Simmons & Co.

Uniform Title: Les Hollandais. Corporate Author: Holmes Co.

Corporate Author: International Coat Company.

Corporate Author: M.C. Lilley & Co.

Corporate Author: Marcellus Hofflin (Firm). Corporate Author: Midwest Badge & Novelty Co. Corporate Author: Monarch Knitting Company.

Corporate Author: Nawco Neckwear Co. Corporate Author: Public Service Mills.

Host Item: Romaine trade catalog collection (CStRLIN)CASX87-A1

RLG Union Catalog Record ID: CASX88-A106

Trade catalogs of clothing, 1849-1975.

74 items (1 box): ill. Notes and Summaries:

Trade catalogs, "sale" and "bargains" advertisements, fabric samples, 1 Christmas gift catalogue, fur garments' wholesale and retail catalogues and other ephemera relating to clothing.

This collection covers:

Aprons.

Clothing and dress - Catalogs.

Fur garments - Catalogs.

Gloves - Catalogs.

Hides and skins.

Hosiery - Catalogs.

Jewelry - Catalogs.

Lace and lacemaking.

Muffs - Catalogs.

Shawls - Catalogs.

Underwear - Catalogs.

Vests - Catalogs.

Trade catalogs - California.

Trade catalogs - Illinois.

Trade catalogs - Massachusetts.

Trade catalogs - Missouri.

Trade catalogs - New York (State)

Trade catalogs - Pennsylvania.

Corporate Author: Alaska Fur Company. Corporate Author: Areno Manufacturing Co.

Corporate Author: B. & G. Rubber Manufacturing Co.

Corporate Author: Bates, Reed & Cooley.

Corporate Author: Belt, Bulter & Co.

Corporate Author: Broadway Bargain House.

Corporate Author: C.C. Shayne, Manufacturing Furrier.

Corporate Author: C.G. Gunther's Sons Furriers.

Corporate Author: Cal Hirsch & Sons.

Corporate Author: Charles A. Herpich Company.

Corporate Author: Coleman, Mead & Co.

Corporate Author: Crosby Frisian Fur Company.

Corporate Author: Cummings Glove Co.

Davenport, Walter. Heavens! What next? [195-?] Corporate Author: Dumont & Hosack, Auctioneers.

Corporate Author: Dunham, Buckley & Co.

Corporate Author: Dyer, Taylor & Co.

Corporate Author: E. Albrecht & Son.

Corporate Author: E.C. Boughton (Firm)

Corporate Author: E.W. Biggs & Company.

Corporate Author: F.C. Taylor Fur Co.

Corporate Author: Fairweathers, Limited.

Corporate Author: Field, Leiter & Co.

Uniform Title: Fur trade review. February 1897.

Corporate Author: G.W. Simmons & Co.

Corporate Author: Guaranteed Products Company.

Corporate Author: H. Liebes & Co.

Corporate Author: H. Wolf & Co.

Corporate Author: Hale Bros., Inc.

Corporate Author: Half-price Stores.

Corporate Author: Harris Brothers, Glovers.

Corporate Author: Hirsch Robe & Tamming Company.

Corporate Author: Hutchens & Potter.

Corporate Author: J.F. Hickey (Firm)

Corporate Author: John A. Rawson Company.

Corporate Author: John B. Varick Company.

Corporate Author: John M. Smyth Mdse. Company.

Corporate Author: John Ruszits Fur Co. Corporate Author: Johnson Brothers.

Corporate Author: Jordan, Marsh & Co. Corporate Author: Kaye & Einstein. Corporate Author: Lord & Taylor. Corporate Author: Montgomery Ward. Corporate Author: Nan Duckin (Firm)

Corporate Author: National Association of the Fur Industry.

Corporate Author: P. Centemeri & Co. Corporate Author: Riker's Drug Stores. Corporate Author: Rodasi Company. Corporate Author: Roos Bros.

Corporate Author: Rosenau & Cohen.

Corporate Author: Sanitary Clothing Company.

Corporate Author: Schatz Brothers. Corporate Author: Selbert, Ltd.

Corporate Author: Strauss, Eisendrath & Drom.

Corporate Author: Sweet, Orr & Co. Corporate Author: U.C. Adams (Firm)

Corporate Author: Warner Brothers Company.

Corporate Author: Weil Bros. & Co. Corporate Author: Wm. Pinkus (Firm)

Host Item: Romaine trade catalog collection (CStRLIN)CASX87-A1

RLG Union Catalog Record ID: CASX88-A37

III. Photograph Collections

MUSEUM OF CHINESE IN THE AMERICAS

70 Mulberry St., 2nd Floor New York, NY 10013 (212)619-4785

http://www.moca-nyc.org/MoCA/content.asp

Basement Workshop photograph collection, [ca. 1950]-1979

Quantity: 2.1 cubic ft.

Arrangement: Subject category.

Photographs depicting aspects of community life in New York City's Chinatown including the Bachelor Society, the family, medicine, Chinese festivals and art forms, Chinese district and family associations, the Basement Workshop and the New York Chinatown History Project, portraits, street scenes in Chinatown, restaurants, and work related scenes such as the garment industry, laundries, and stores. Photographs are identified.

TAMIMENT LIBRARY & ROBERT F. WAGNER LABOR ARCHIVES

70 Washington Square South, 10th Floor

New York, NY 10012 Tel: 212-998-2630

http://www.nyu.edu/library/bobst/research/tam/index.html

Daniel Nilva photograph collection

The Daniel Nilva collection documents the garment industry. No finding aid has yet been created (July 2007).

THE LIBRARY OF CONGRESS

101 Independence Ave, SE Washington, DC 20540 (202) 707-5000 http://www.loc.gov/index.html

The Library of Congress has an extensive photograph collection that is searchable online using the Prints and Photographs Online Catalog (PPOC) at:

http://lcweb2.loc.gov/pp/pphome.html

A recent search yielded 40 photographs using the term "garment industry," and 161 photographs using the term "clothing industry."

THE NEW YORK MUNICIPAL ARCHIVES

Leonora Gidlund, Director
31 Chambers Street, Room 103
New York, NY 10007
(212) NEW-YORK
http://www.nyc.gov/html/records/html/about/archives.shtml

The New York Municipal Archives houses several collections of photographs that include documentation of the garment industry:

Works Progress Administration (WPA)

See the Works Progress Administration collection of photographs, under "Industry and Trade."

Tax Photographs

Tax photographs taken from 1939-41 documented every home and business in Manhattan. This collection is organized geographically, so it is possible to view pictures of buildings along a particular street on the Lower East Side or in the Garment District, for example;

Manhattan Borough President's Office photograph collection, pre-1939

The Manhattan Borough President's Office photograph collection, pre-1939, documents construction in the borough and is organized by street. It includes documentation of Lower East Side, and possibly of Garment District development, as well (though these photos may pre-date the Garment District).

MUSEUM OF THE CITY OF NEW YORK

1220 Fifth Avenue NY, NY 10029 212.534.1672 http://www.mcny.org/

Costume and Textiles Collection

The Museum of the City of New York's Costume and Textiles Collection includes photographs of New York's fashion industry. A chronological reference archive of primary source materials directly related to the history of fashion trends and the fashion industry in New York City. Included are photographs, clippings from periodicals, vintage store catalogues and bound fashion publications.

THE QUEENS LIBRARY LONG ISLAND DIVISION

89-11 Merrick Boulevard Jamaica, NY 11432 (718) 990-0700

http://www.queenslibrary.org/index.aspx?page nm=cel+divisions&branch id=cel&pid =546

New York Herald Tribune

The Long Island Division of the Queens Library holds the photo morgue of the New York Herald Tribune (ca. 1925-1966).

UNIVERSITY OF TEXAS AT AUSTIN HARRY RANSOM HUMANITIES RESEARCH CENTER

Battle Hall 21st and Guadalupe P.O. Box 7219 Austin, Texas 78713-7219

Telephone: 512.471.8944

http://www.hrc.utexas.edu/collections/photography/

New York Journal-American

Various photographers No. of Items: 3,000,000 Span Dates: 1895 (ca.)-1966

In 1895 William Randolph Hearst bought the New York Morning Journal and Advertiser which had been founded in 1882 by Albert Pulitzer. The Morning Journal changed its name to the New York American in 1902. Daily publication of the American was discontinued, and it merged with the Evening Journal (founded by Hearst in 1896) on June 24, 1937 to become the New York Journal-American. The newspaper ceased publication in 1966. Its entire morgue was subsequently acquired by the University of Texas at Austin.

The morgue contains approximately two million photographs, the majority of which are from news services. There are also approximately one million negatives from Hearst staff photographers in the collection.

IV. Periodicals, Directories and Indexes Related to the Garment Industry

CENTER FOR AMERICAN HISTORY THE UNIVERSITY OF TEXAS AT AUSTIN

Sid Richardson Hall 2.101 1 University Station D1100 Austin, Texas 78712-0335 512/495-4532

The New York Herald Tribune Morgue (ca. 1925 – 1966)

The *New York Herald Tribune* morgue of more than 15 million clippings was acquired by the Center for American History in 1995. During its years of publication, the Herald Tribune covered politics at the local, state, national, and international levels, as well as sports, New York culture and society, theater and the arts, and all of the major events of the day. The Center does not hold the Herald Tribune's photographs morgue. Please contact the Queens Borough Public Library's Long Island Division.

NYHT Biographical files, which make up the bulk of the collection, were established for persons mentioned in a Herald Tribune article. There is no index to the *NYHT* morgue Biographical Files, which are arranged in rough alphabetical order within the morgue cabinets.

The *NYHT* Subject files contain information on a wide range of topics and are organized into general subjects with subheadings. The subject "Accidents," for example, contains subheadings for "Automobile," "Hunting," "Runaway Animals," and "Runaway Elevators." These topical files also include clippings from several other New York area newspapers, such as the *Brooklyn Eagle* and the *New York Post*. Some of the subject files also contain related documents, such as press releases, reporters' unedited typescripts, and reports from government and private organizations. The *NYHT* morgue came to the Center for American History with an established subject index in the form of 5x7 inch index cards. These index boxes are in the process of being transferred to an electronic format. Until this document becomes available, patrons must request *NYHT* index boxes for use in the reading room, and select files for research from this topical list.

Although the *New York Herald Tribune* is available on microfilm, no index to the newspaper exists.

The New York Journal American Morgue (ca. 1900 – ca.1966)

The *New York Journal American* morgue of approximately 9 million clippings was transferred to the Center for American History by the Harry Ransom Humanities Research Center, which had received the morgue in 1967 and the <u>HRC Photograph Division</u> still retains the *NYJA* photographs morgue. The *NYJA* clippings morgue is divided into biographical, subject, and geographical categories. The clippings are not only from Hearst's own publications in their various daily editions, but also from competitors and even some magazines.

The *NYJA* morgue came to the Center with no inventory or index. For several years, we have been working on completing rudimentary, handwritten checklists of the materials within the cabinets. These checklists are available to the public on a limited basis.

The New York Times Morgue (ca. 1910 – ca.1989)

The *New York Times* newspaper morgue's 2,500 linear feet of subject files were donated to the Center for American History by the New York Times Corp. in 1998. The Center does not maintain the *New York Times* biographical clippings morgue nor the *New York Times* photographs morgue. The *NYT* is the only publication recognized for consistently

covering news events as a national newspaper of record since the turn of the century and through both world wars.

When the *NYT* morgue was packed, the beginning and ending file of each box was recorded to create a box-level inventory. This inventory is available for use onsite and can be sent electronically as a very large attachment. The clippings are indexed and filed the way *New York Times* reporters used them. Patrons should consult the New York Times Index for proper subject headings before requesting materials.

FASHION INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY LIBRARY

7TH Avenue at 27th Street E-Building New York, NY 10001 (212) 217-5590 http://www3.fitnyc.edu/library/

Trade journals and press available at the Fashion Institute of Technology (FIT) Library:

Women's Wear Daily (available on microform, 1927-present)
Women's and Infants' Furnisher (1898-1921, not complete)
Collier's (1905-1957)
Dressvertising Weekly (1942-1948, not complete)
Advertising Age (1930-)
The Bulletin of the National Retail Dry Goods Association (1947-)
Women's Apparel Journal: The Style and Production Magazine for Manufacturers,
Designers and Buyers of Womens Dresses, Coats, Suits, and Sportswear (1941-42)
New York Dress Institute (press clippings, 1926)

THE NEW YORK PUBLIC LIBRARY DOROT JEWISH DIVISION

Fifth Avenue and 42nd Street New York, NY 10018 212-340-0849 http://www.nypl.org/

The Library's Dorot Jewish Division has runs of several newspapers published for garment workers wholly or partly in Yiddish. These include:

Der Yunyon Arbayter Nyu York: Aroysgegeben fun der Anarkhistisher Grupe, I.L.G.V.Y. (1925-1927)

Leydies Garment Voyrker (The Ladies' Garment Worker: The Official Journal of the International Ladies' Garment Workers' Union) (New York: The Union, 1910-1918) Kloth Het, Kep un Milineri Voyrkers Zshurnal (New York: United Cloth Hat and Cap Makers of North America, 1916-1917)

NEW YORK PUBLIC LIBRARY SCIENCE, INDUSTRY AND BUSINESS LIBRARY (SIBL)

188 Madison Avenue New York, NY 10016 (212) 592-7000 http://www.nypl.org/research/sibl/ The Garment Worker (official journal of the United Garment Workers of America)
Textile Technology Digest (1944-1983)
Directory of International Apparel Industry Trade Shows
Thomas Register of American Manufacturers (1922-1959, incomplete)
Industrial Arts Index (1913-1957)

V. Oral Histories

FASHION INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY LIBRARY

7TH Avenue at 27th Street E-Building New York, NY 10001 (212) 217-5590 http://www3.fitnyc.edu/library/

The **Oral History Project of the Fashion Institute of Technology** is a collection of over one hundred transcribed interviews with founders, chairmen, executives, and designers in the fashion industry. The collection includes interviews focused on companies including Bloomingdale's, Phillips-Van Heusen, Evan-Picone, Maindenform, and Barbizon, with industry leaders including Ralph Lauren, Liz Claiborne, and Geoffrey Beene.

In addition, the following garment industry oral histories are available:

- Barkin, Solomon. *The Reminiscences of Solomon Barkin*. Columbia University Oral History Collection, pt. 4, no. 9, 1961.
- Barron, Sara, and Barbara M. Wertheimer. *Oral History Interview with Sara Barron, Amalgamated Clothing Workers of America*. New York Times Oral History Program; Twentieth Century Trade Union Woman, pt. 1, no. 2. Ann Arbor, MI: Program on Women and Work, Institute of Labor and Industrial Relations, University of Michigan-Wayne State University, 1978.
- Callahan, Mary, and Alice M. Hoffman. Oral History Interview with Mary Callahan, International Union of Electrical Workers. New York Times Oral History Program; Twentieth Century Trade Union Woman pt. 1, no. 3. Ann Arbor, MI: Program on Women and Work, Institute of Labor and Industrial Relations, University of Michigan-Wayne State University, 1978.
- Carter, Henry, and Paul Kelso. *Oral History Interview with Henry Carter in Des Moines, Iowa*. IA: Iowa Labor History Oral Project, Reel Des Moines, 1978.
- Conroy, Catherine, and Elizabeth Balanoff. *Oral History Interview with Catherine Conroy, Communications Workers of America*. New York Times Oral History Program; Twentieth Century Trade Union Woman, pt. 1, no. 5. Ann Arbor, MI: Program on Women and Work, Institute of Labor and Industrial Relations, 1978.
- Day, Louis, Norma Jean Day, and Merle O. Davis. *Oral History Interview with Louis Day and Norma Jean Day in Burlington, Iowa, 1981 Jan. 11.* IA: Iowa Labor History Oral Project, Reel Burlington, 1981.

- De La Cruz, Jessie Lopez, and Anne Loftis. *Oral History Interview with Jessie Delacruz, United Farm Workers*. New York Times Oral History Program; Twentieth Century Trade Union Woman pt. 1, no. 6. Ann Arbor, MI: Program on Women and Work, Institute of Labor and Industrial Relations, University of Michigan-Wayne State University, 1978.
- Dubrow, Evelyn, and Lydia Kleiner. *Oral History Interview with Evelyn Dubrow, International Ladies' Garment Workers' Union*. New York Times Oral History Program; Twentieth Century Trade Union Woman pt. 1, no. 7. Ann Arbor, MI: Program on Women and Work, Institute of Labor and Industrial Relations, University of Michigan-Wayne State University, 1978.
- Elkuss, Mary Lawrance, and Gloria Gordon. *Oral History Interview with Mary Lawrance Elkuss, Amalgamated Clothing Workers of America*. Ann Arbor, MI: Program on Women and Work, Institute of Labor and Industrial Relations, University of Michigan-Wayne State University, 1978.
- Fredgant, Sara, and Alice M. Hoffman. *Oral History Interview with Sara Fredgant, Amalgamated Clothing Workers of America*, New York Times Oral History Program; Twentieth Century Trade Union Woman pt.1, no. 8. Ann Arbor, MI: Program on Women and Work, Institute of Labor and Industrial Relations, University of Michigan-Wayne State University, 1978.
- Haener, Dorothy, Lyn Goldfarb, Lydia Kleiner, and Christine E. Miller. *Oral History Interview with Dorothy Haener, United Automobile Workers*. New York Times Oral History Program; Twentieth Century Trade Union Woman pt.1, no. 9. Ann Arbor, MI: Program on Women and Work, Institute of Labor and Industrial Relations, University of Michigan-Wayne State University, 1978.
- Jeffrey, Millie, and Ruth Meyerowitz. *Oral History Interview with Millie Jeffrey United Automobile Workers*. New York Times Oral History Program; Twentieth Century Trade Union Woman pt. 1, no. 11. Ann Arbor, MI: Program on Women and Work, Institute of Labor and Industrial Relations, University of Michigan-Wayne State University, 1978.
- Kemp, Maida Springer, and Elizabeth Balanoff. *Oral History Interview with Maida Springer Kemp, International Ladies Garment Workers' Union*. New York Times Oral History Program; Twentieth Century Trade Union Woman pt. 1, no. 13. Ann Arbor, MI: Program on Women and Work, Institute of Labor and Industrial Relations, University of Michigan-Wayne State University, 1978.
- Lucia, Carmen, Bette Craig, and Seth Wigderson. *Oral History Interviews with Carmen Lucia, United Hatters, Cap and Millinery Workers International Union*. New York Times Oral History Program; Twentieth Century Trade Union Woman pt. 1, no. 15. Ann Arbor, MI: Program on Women and Work, Institute of Labor and Industrial Relations, University of Michigan-Wayne State University, 1978.
- Lunsford, Minnie, and June Rostan. *Oral History Interview with Minnie Lunsford, United Mine Workers of America*. New York Times Oral History Program; Twentieth Century Trade Union Woman pt. 1, no. 16. Ann Arbor, MI: Program on Women and Work, Institute of Labor and Industrial Relations, University of Michigan-Wayne State University, 1978.

- Maietta, Julia, and Alice M. Hoffman. Oral History Interview with Julia Maietta,
 Amalgamated Clothing Workers of America. New York Times Oral History Program;
 Twentieth Century Trade Union Woman pt. 1, no. 18. Ann Arbor, MI: Program on Women and Work, Institute of Labor and Industrial Relations, University of Michigan-Wayne State University, 1978.
- Matyas, Jennie, and Corinne Lathrop Gilb. *Jennie Matyas and the ILGWU*. 1957. Reprint, Berkeley, CA: Regional Oral History Office, The Bancroft Library, University of California, 1976.
- McGill, Eula, and Jacquelyn Hall. *Oral History Interview with Eula Mcgill, Amalgamated Clothing Workers of America*. New York Times Oral History Program; Twentieth Century Trade Union Woman pt. 1, no. 20. Ann Arbor, MI: Program on Women and Work, Institute of Labor and Industrial Relations, University of Michigan-Wayne State University, 1978.
- Newman, Pauline, and Barbara M. Wertheimer. *Oral History Interview with Pauline Newman, International Ladies' Garment Workers' Union*. New York Times Oral History Program; Twentieth Century Trade Union Woman pt. 1, no. 23. Ann Arbor, MI: Program on Women and Work, Institute of Labor and Industrial Relations, University of Michigan-Wayne State University, 1978.
- Norwood, Rose, and Brigid O'Farrell. *Oral History Interview with Rose Norwood, International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers*. New York Times Oral History Program; Twentieth Century Trade Union Woman pt. 1, no. 24. Ann Arbor, MI: Program on Women and Work, Institute of Labor and Industrial Relations, University of Michigan-Wayne State University, 1978.
- Peterson, Esther, and Martha Ross. *Oral History Interview with Esther Peterson, Amalgamated Clothing Workers of America*. New York Times Oral History Program; Twentieth Century Trade Union Woman pt. 1, no. 26. Ann Arbor, MI: Program on Women and Work, Institute of Labor and Industrial Relations, University of Michigan-Wayne State University, 1978.
- Peterson, Florence, and Ruth Meyerowitz. *Oral History Interview with Florence Peterson, United Automobile Workers, New York Times Oral History Program.* Twentieth Century Trade Union Woman; pt. 1, no. 27. Ann Arbor, MI: Program on Women and Work, Institute of Labor and Industrial Relations, University of Michigan-Wayne State University, 1978.
- Peurala, Alice, and Elizabeth Balanoff. *Oral History Interview with Alice Peurala, United Steelworkers of America*, New York Times Oral History Program; Twentieth Century Trade Union Woman pt. 1, no. 28. Ann Arbor, MI: Program on Women and Work, Institute of Labor and Industrial Relations, University of Michigan-Wayne State University, 1978.
- Podojil, Antoinette, and Lydia Kleiner. *Oral History Interview with Antoinette Podojil*. New York Times Oral History Program; Twentieth Century Trade Union Woman pt. 1, no. 29. Ann Arbor, MI: Program on Women and Work, Institute of Labor and Industrial Relations, University of Michigan-Wayne State University, 1978.

- Potofsky, Jacob S. *The Reminiscences of Jacob Samuel Potofsky*. 1965. Reprint, Columbia University Oral History Collection pt. 2, no. 151, 1975.
- Roberts, Geraldine, and Donna L. Van Raaphorst. *Oral History Interview with Geraldine Roberts, Domestic Workers of America*. New York Times Oral History Program; Twentieth Century Trade Union Woman pt. 1, no. 30. Ann Arbor, MI: Program on Women and Work, Institute of Labor and Industrial Relations, University of Michigan-Wayne State University, 1978.
- Robinson, Dollie Lowther, and Bette Craig. *Oral History Interview with Dolly Lowther Robinson, Amalgamated Clothing Workers of America*. New York Times Oral History Program; Twentieth Century Trade Union Woman pt. 1, no. 32. Ann Arbor, MI: Program on Women and Work, Institute of Labor and Industrial Relations, University of Michigan-Wayne State University, 1978.
- Rogers, Lindsay. *The Reminiscences of Lindsay Rogers*. Columbia University Oral History Collection pt. 4, no. 172, 1958.
- Schwenkmeyer, Frieda, and Bette Craig. *Oral History Interview with Frieda Schwenkmeyer, Amalgamated Clothing Workers of America*. New York Times Oral History Program; Twentieth Century Trade Union Woman pt. 1, no. 34. Ann Arbor, MI: Program on Women and Work, Institute of Labor and Industrial Relations, University of Michigan-Wayne State University, 1978.
- Segal, Bonnie, and Alice M. Hoffman. *Oral History Interview with Bonnie Segal, International Ladies' Garment Workers Union*. New York Times Oral History Program; Twentieth Century Trade Union Woman pt. 1, no. 35. Ann Arbor, MI: Program on Women and Work, Institute of Labor and Industrial Relations, University of Michigan-Wayne State University, 1978.
- Sullivan, Anna, and Brigid O'Farrell. *Oral History Interview with Anna Sullivan, Textile Workers' Union of America*. New York Times Oral History Program; Twentieth Century Trade Union Woman pt. 1, no. 36. Ann Arbor, MI: Program on Women and Work, Institute of Labor and Industrial Relations, University of Michigan-Wayne State University, 1978.
- Thornburgh, Lucille, and June Rostan. *Oral History Interview with Lucille Thornburgh, Textile Workers' Union of America*. New York Times Oral History Program; Twentieth Century Trade Union Woman pt. 1, no. 38. Ann Arbor, MI: Program on Women and Work, Institute of Labor and Industrial Relations, University of Michigan-Wayne State University, 1978.
- Urdaneta, Regina, and Enid M. Valle. *Oral History Interview with Regina Urdaneta, Amalgamated Clothing Workers of America*. New York Times Oral History Program; Twentieth Century Trade Union Woman pt. 1, no. 39. Ann Arbor, MI: Program on Women and Work, Institute of Labor and Industrial Relations, University of Michigan-Wayne State University, 1978.
- Ward, Angela Gaze, and Sue Cobble. *Oral History Interview with Angela Gizzi Ward, Office Workers Union*. New York Times Oral History Program; Twentieth Century Trade

Union Woman pt. 1, no. 40. Ann Arbor, MI: Program on Women and Work, Institute of Labor and Industrial Relations, University of Michigan-Wayne State University, 1978.

Wiencek, Ruth, and Carol Bowie. *Oral History Interview with Ruth Wiencek, Communications Workers of America*. New York Times Oral History Program; Twentieth Century Trade Union Woman pt. 1, no. 41. Ann Arbor, MI: Program on Women and Work, Institute of Labor and Industrial Relations, University of Michigan-Wayne State University, 1978.

VI. Records of the International Ladies Garment Workers Union

THE KHEEL CENTER AT CORNELL UNIVERSITY

227 Ives Hall Cornell University Ithaca, NY 14853-3901 Telephone: 607-255-3183

http://www.ilr.cornell.edu/library/kheel/

The Kheel Center at Cornell University is the repository of an extensive collection of records of the International Ladies Garment Workers Union. These records include contracts, board minutes, management letters, arbitration proceedings, payroll analyses, photographs, scrapbooks and many other documents that reveal significant information regarding not just labor issues but also the broader history of the garment industry.

Because the collection is so large, it is divided into over one hundred subcollections, listed below. Finding aid for most of these can be accessed at:

http://rmc.library.cornell.edu/EAD/htmldocs/KCL05780.html.

International Ladies Garment Workers Union. America's Next Great Designer Award.

Scrapbooks, 1968, 1975-1982. 9.5 linear feet.

<u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Arbitration Proceedings and Joint Board</u> Minutes, 1913-1917. 3 linear feet.

<u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Association agreements and out-of-business contracts</u>, 1914-1994. 7 linear feet.

<u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Boston Joint Board. Records, 1930-1976.</u>
5 linear feet.

International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Broadsides, 1907-1980. 5 linear feet.

International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Canadian area. Films. 5 linear feet.

International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Canadian Publications, 1936-1984. 5 linear feet.

International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Central Pennsylvania District.

Photographs, publications, and newspapers, 1940-1976. 8 linear feet.

International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Chaikin, Sol C. The First Year. Presentation volume, 1975-1976. 1 volume

<u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Chicago Joint Board. Records, 1914-1975</u> [bulk 1922-1975]. 18.25 linear feet.

<u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Cleveland Joint Board. Records, 1934-1956.</u> 3.5 linear feet.

<u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Communications Department. Biography</u>
<u>files.</u> 2 linear feet.

- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Convention transcripts, 1978-1992.</u> 4 linear feet.
- International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Cowell, Susan. Vice President's records, 1982-1995. 10 linear feet.
- International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Dressmakers Joint Board. Clippings, 1933.

 1 linear foot.
- International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Dubinsky, David. President's Records, 1932-1966, 229 linear feet.
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Dubinsky, David. Scrapbooks, 1940-1966.</u> 4 linear feet.
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Education Department. Cohn, Fannia M.</u> Executive Secretary. Records, 1918-1962. 5.5 linear ft.
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Education Department. Files, 1920-1979.</u> 3 linear feet.
- International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Education Department. Peyton, Jasper. Files, 1963-1982. 13 linear feet.
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. General Executive Board. Appeal Committee. Cases, 1926-1956.</u> 7 linear feet.
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. General Executive Board. Minutes, 1913-1995.</u> 21.5 linear feet.
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. International Relations Department records</u>, 1968-1980, [bulk 1975-1980]. 4.5 linear ft.
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Joint Board Dress and Waistmakers' Union of Greater New York. Managers' Correspondence, 1928-1972.</u> 19 linear feet.
- International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Justice. Index, 1947-1979. 1 linear foot.
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Legal Department. Files, 1928-1982.</u> 45 linear feet.
- International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Legal files. 1 linear foot.
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Letters, printed material, and cases, 1895–1969.</u> 3 linear feet.
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Library. Selected materials listing.</u> 1 linear foot.
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Lipsig, James. Assistant Executive</u> Secretary's records, 1948-1978. 18.5 linear feet.
- International Ladies' Garment Workers' Union. Local 1. Brown, Harry. Documents, 1916-1918. 3 documents
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Local 10. Dues books, 1904-1911.</u> 1 linear foot.
- International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Local 10. Falikman, Moe. Manager's correspondence, 1952-1968. 6 linear feet.
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Local 10. Membership record book, 1911-1915. 2 linear feet.</u>
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Local 10. Minutes, 1906-1973.</u> 14.5 linear feet.
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Local 10. Nagler, Isidore. Manager's</u> correspondence, 1939-1952. 8.5 linear feet.
- International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Local 105 records, 1939-1970 [bulk 1950-1970], 4.5 linear ft.
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Local 117. Minutes, 1936-1973.</u> 5 linear feet.

- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Local 153. Files, 1954-1955.</u> 5 linear feet.
- International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Local 155 records, 1933-1968 [bulk 1940-1960]. 7.5 linear ft.
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Local 205. Minutes, 1935-1967.</u> 2 linear feet.
- International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Local 22. Education Department records, 1933-1975, [bulk 1950-1970]. 2 linear ft.
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Local 22. Minutes, 1934-1972.</u> 5 linear feet
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Local 22. Papers, 1920-1933.</u> 1.5 linear feet
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Local 23-25. Records and posters, 1984-1994.</u> 5 linear feet.
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Local 23-25. Records, 1922-1972.</u> 7 linear feet.
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Local 25. L'Operaia, 1913-1918.</u> 2 linear feet.
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Local 262. Minutes, 1943-1970.</u> 3 linear feet
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Local 315. Minutes, 1937-1963.</u> 1 linear foot.
- International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Local 35. Minutes and records, 1927-1977. 3 linear feet.
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Local 38. Minutes and Publications, ca.</u> 1920-1959. 2 linear feet.
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Local 40. Records, 1933-1977.</u> 2.5 linear feet
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Local 48. Records, 1916-1972.</u> 4.5 linear feet
- International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Local 62 correspondence, 1930-1976. 7.5 linear ft.
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Local 62. Records, 1922-1963.</u> 3 linear feet.
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Local 62-32. Agreements, 1966-1981.</u> 5 linear feet.
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Local 82. Minutes, 1917-1970.</u> 3 linear feet
- International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Local 89. Antonini, Luigi. General Secretary. Correspondence, 1919-1968. 41 linear ft.
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Local 89. Minutes, 1919-1968.</u> 4 linear feet.
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Local 9. Manager's correspondence, 1933-1951. 2 linear feet.</u>
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Local 9. Minutes, 1914-1944.</u> 2 linear feet
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Local 91. David Dubinsky presentation volume, 1940.</u> 2 linear feet.
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Local publications, 1914-1975.</u> 4 linear feet.

- International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Locals 19, 43, 61, 112, 342, 438, 584, and 592. Minutes, 1936-1974. 2 linear feet.
- International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Locals 24, 39, 56, 69, and 117. Minutes, 1913-1962. 1 linear foot.
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Los Angeles Cloak Joint Board. Minutes,</u> 1934-1968. 2 linear feet.
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Management-Engineering Department.</u> Files, 1941-1982. 9.5 linear feet.
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Master agreements and out-of-business contracts, 1941-1994.</u> 2 linear feet.
- International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Midwest Region. Records and memorabilia, 1911-1996. 8 linear feet.
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Montreal Joint Board. Minutes, 1945–1968.</u> 2 linear feet.
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Montreal Joint Council. Minutes, 1936-1963. 1 linear foot.</u>
- International Ladies Garment Workers Union. National War Labor Board case files, 1936-1946. 10 linear feet.
- International Ladies Garment Workers Union. New York Cloak and Dressmakers Joint Board. Records, 1924-1977. 8 linear feet
- International Ladies Garment Workers Union. New York Cloak Joint Board records, 1926-1973 [bulk 1940-1970]. 23 linear ft.
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. New York Cloak Joint Board. Payroll Analyses, 1959-1972.</u> 1 linear foot.
- International Ladies Garment Workers Union. New York Dress Joint Board. Minutes, 1922-1976. 8 linear feet.
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Northeast Department. Records, 1940–1970.</u> 2.5 linear feet.
- International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Organizing Department. Files, 1979-1989.

 9 linear feet.
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Out of Business Contracts, 1988-1998.</u> 5 linear feet.
- International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Paintings and memorabilia, 1940-1979.

 15 linear feet.
- International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Parrott, James. Executive Assistant to the President. Files, 1980-1991. 15 linear feet.
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. People v. Benedict Macri. Legal transcripts and scrapbook, 1949-1957.</u> 1 linear foot.
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Predecessor records and local records,</u> 1884-1948. 2 linear feet.
- International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Quebec Joint Council. Files and Memorabilia, 1969-1986. 2 linear feet.
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Records, 1906-1985.</u> [no physdesc:quantity]
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Research Department records, 1907-1948</u>
 <u>[bulk 1910-1940].</u> 6.5 linear ft.
- International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Research Department. Files, 1890-1971.

 12 linear feet.
- International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Retiree Service Department. David Dubinsky records, 1968-1982. 4 linear feet.

- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Rosenberg, Abraham. Memoirs of a Cloak</u> Maker, 1883-1910. 1 linear foot.
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. San Francisco Joint Board. Records, 1930–1969.</u> 9 linear feet.
- International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Schlesinger, Benjamin, President. Records, 1914-1923. 2 linear ft.
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Schlesinger, Benjamin, President.</u> Records, 1928-1932. 2 linear ft.
- International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Scrapbooks, 1910-1958. 25 linear feet.
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Sigman, Morris, President. Records, 1923-1928.</u> 3 linear ft.
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Southeast Region. Records, 1937-1970.</u>
 49 linear feet.
- International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Stulberg, Louis, General Secretary-
 - Treasurer. Correspondence, 1956-1966, 1959-1966 (bulk). 28 linear ft.
- International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Stulberg, Louis, President.
 - Correspondence, 1945-1977 [bulk 1966-1975]. 28 linear ft.
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Termination Analysis Log Books, 1979-1981.</u> 4 log books.
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Toronto Dressmakers Joint Council and Toronto Cloak Joint Board. Records, 1928-1972.</u> 9.5 linear feet.
- International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Tyler, Gus. Assistant President's records, 1952-1980 [bulk 1960-1975] 32.5 linear ft.
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Umhey, Frederick F., Executive Secretary.</u>

 <u>Correspondence, 1934-1955 [bulk 1940-1950].</u> 28 linear ft.
- International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Union Health Center records, 1911-1977 [bulk 1920-1960]. 6.5 linear feet.
- International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Union Health Center. Publications, 1912–1986. 1 linear foot.
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Unity House. Files, 1971-1993.</u> 1 linear foot.
- International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Unpublished Union Histories, 1911-1971.

 1 linear foot.
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Upper South Department. Baltimore Joint Board. Records</u>, 1937-1971. 11 linear feet.
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Zimmerman, Charles S. papers, 1919-1958</u>
 <u>[bulk 1920-1945].</u> 25 linear ft.
- <u>International Ladies Garment Workers Union. Zimmerman, Charles, Collector. Radical pamphlets, 1914-1958.</u> 6 linear feet.

VII. Case law

LEXIS NEXIS ACADEMIC LEGAL RESEARCH

Federal and state case law records are available through Lexis Nexis Academic Legal Research data bases. A recent series of searches of New York State case law in all New York courts using the terms "garment industry," "clothing industry," "garment district," and "garment trade" 1860-1975 yielded 29 cases. Searches of federal case law using these terms yielded 9 Supreme Court cases; 44 Court of Appeals cases; 76 District Court cases; 20 Tax Court cases; and 2 Customs and Patent Appeals Court cases.

In each case, the data base identifies the appellant and respondent; the court where the case was heard; court record numbers; the date it was argued and the date it was decided; prior history; headnotes (an often extensive description of the case); the names of all attorneys representing both sides; the name of the judge; and, the judge's opinion in full. The headnotes are particularly useful, as they often describe normative practices in the garment industry. In one case, for example, the notes discuss a business that specialized in informing manufacturers when particular buyers had arrived in town, by distributing daily reports for a subscription fee. The case centered on whether or not the service was taxable. In another case, the notes discuss price gouging by a company hired to affix labels to clothes.

These cases reveal a trail of commercial litigation that may be very helpful to the business historian. Some cases involved workers suing employers, others involved workers suing one another, and still others involved manufacturers suing one another. Some cases involved parties outside the industry, often the truckers hired to bring merchandise into and out of the garment district. Each decision references court records (including, generally, their location), which may include depositions, evidence, and memos obtained through the discovery process and testimony.

The researcher must contact the court where the case was heard in order to determine whether or not records are accessible.

THE NEW YORK MUNICIPAL ARCHIVES

Leonora Gidlund, Director
31 Chambers Street, Room 103
New York, NY 10007
(212) NEW-YORK
http://www.nyc.gov/html/records/html/about/archives.shtml

The **Municipal Archives** of New York City house the District Attorney indictment papers for all criminal cases that appeared before a grand jury. These papers are organized by defendant and year, and are not searchable by keywords.

VIII. Government Publications

A. FEDERAL

Various federal agencies have issued reports that provide detailed information about the apparel industry, including data regarding employment and wages; raw materials, fuels, and electricity consumed; plant and equipment expenditures; value and quantity of production and shipments; value added by manufacture; inventories; and, indicators of financial status.

These agencies and reports include:

U.S. Bureau of the Census

http://www.census.gov/

Census of Population and Housing (1790-2000) http://www.census.gov/prod/www/abs/decennial/index.htm

Censuses of Manufactures (conducted at periodic intervals beginning in 1809; conducted every five years since 1967)

http://www.census.gov/econ/overview/ma0100.html

Annual Survey of Manufactures (conducted for the first time in 1949) http://www.census.gov/mcd/asmhome.html

Current Industrial Reports (monthly, quarterly, or annual data on production, shipments, and stocks for particular commodities)

Federal Reserve Board

Federal Reserve Bulletin (monthly reports on indexes of industrial production)

http://econpapers.repec.org/article/fipfedgrb/ (1937-2006)

The following agencies also regularly issued reports on the apparel industry:

Bureau of Labor Statistics International Trade Administration Bureau of Economic Analysis Securities and Exchange Commission

This information is provided, with greater detail, at:

http://www.census.gov/prod/1/gen/95statab/manufact.pdf.

Selected Federal Reports:

- Center for Disease Control. National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health. Hazard Evaluations and Field Studies. Division of Surveillance. Industrywide Studies Branch. Industrial Hygiene Section, Cincinnati, OH. *In-Depth Industrial Hygiene Survey Report of the Arrow Shirt Company, Atlanta, Georgia*. By Larry Elliott and Leo M. Blade. Cincinnati, 1984.
- National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health. Environmental Investigations Branch, Division of Field Studies and Clinical Investigations. *Men's Apparel Industry-Wide Study:Beau Brummel Ties, Cincinnati, Ohio*. By Peter J. Nord. Cincinnati, 1981.
- National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health. Environmental Investigations Branch, Division of Field Studies and Clinical Investigations. *Men's Apparel Industrywide Study: Edric Manufacturing Company, Division of Public Shirt Corp., Columbia, Tennessee.* By Peter J. Nord. Cincinnati, 1981.
- National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health. Environmental Investigations Branch, Division of Field Studies and Clinical Investigations. *Men's Apparel Industrywide Study: F. Jacobson Incorporated (Excello Shirt Company), Division of Kayser-Roth Corporation, Seymour, Indiana*. By Peter J. Nord. Cincinnati, 1981.
- National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health. Environmental Investigations Branch, Division of Field Studies and Clinical Investigations. *Men's Apparel Industrywide Study: Schaefer Tailoring Co., Cincinnati, Ohio.* By Peter J. Nord. Cincinnati, 1981.
- National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health. Environmental Investigations Branch, Division of Field Studies and Clinical Investigations. *Men's Apparel Industrywide Study:*

- Sevier Industries Colonial Corp. Of America, Inc., Subsidiary of Kaiser-Roth, Sevierville, Tennessee. By Peter J. Nord. Cincinnati, 1981.
- National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health. Environmental Investigations Branch, Division of Field Studies and Clinical Investigations. *Men's Apparel Industrywide Study: Fechheimer Bros. Co. Cincinnati, Ohio.* By Peter J. Nord. Cincinnati, 1982.
- National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health. Environmental Investigations Branch, Division of Field Studies and Clinical Investigations. *Men's Apparel Industrywide Study: Gant Shirtmakers, Division of Consolidated Foods, Salisbury, Maryland*. By Peter J. Nord. Cincinnati, 1982.
- National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health. Environmental Investigations Branch, Division of Field Studies and Clinical Investigations. *Men's Apparel Industrywide Study: Globe Tailoring Co. And Magliano Pants Co.; Cincinnati, Ohio.* By Peter J. Nord. Cincinnati, 1986.
- National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health. Environmental Investigations Branch, Division of Field Studies and Clinical Investigations. *Men's Apparel Industrywide Study: Hampco Apparel Corporation, Division of Hampton Industries, Martinsville, Virginia*. By Peter J. Nord. Cincinnati, 1986.
- National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health. Environmental Investigations Branch, Division of Field Studies and Clinical Investigations. *Men's Apparel Industrywide Study H.A. Seinsheimer Co., Cincinnati, Ohio.* By Peter J. Nord. Cincinnati, 1986.U.S. Congress. Senate. *Report on Condition of Woman and Child-Wage Earners in the United States.* By Charles Patrick Neill. 19 vols. 61st Congress, 2nd sess., 1910. S. Doc. 645. Reprint, New York: Ross Publishing, 2006.
- U.S. Congress. Senate. *Men's Ready-Made Clothing, Report on Condition of Woman and Child Wage-Earners in the United States*. By Zach C. Elkin, Charles H. Verrill, and Charles Patrick Neill. 61st Congress, 2nd sess., 1910. S. Doc. 645. Vol. 2. Washington, DC: US Government Printing Office, 1911. (Open Collections Program at Harvard University, Women and Work, Preservation Microfilm Collection; 00322.)
- U.S. Congress. Senate. *History of Women in Trade Unions*. By John B. Andrews and William Dwight Porter Bliss. 61st Congress, 2nd sess., 1911. S. Doc. 645. Reprint, New York: Arno Press, 1974.
- U.S. Department of Commerce. Bureau of the Census. *The Census of 1860*. Washington, DC: US Government Printing Office.
- -----. The Census of 1870. Washington, DC: US Government Printing Office.
- -----. The Census of 1890. Washington, DC: US Government Printing Office.
- -----. The Census of 1900. Washington, DC: US Government Printing Office.
- The Census of 1920. Washington, DC: US Government Printing Office.
- -----. The Census of 1930. Washington, DC: US Government Printing Office.
- The Census of 1940. Washington, DC: US Government Printing Office.
- ——. The Census of 1950. Washington, DC: US Government Printing Office.

- U.S. Department of Commerce. Bureau of the Census. *Men's and Boys' Clothing Cut* Washington, DC: Government Printing Office, 1923-.
- U.S. Department of Commerce. Bureau of the Census. Census of Manufactures, 1933. Wearing Apparel, Men's Clothing (Except Work Clothing), Work Clothing, Women's Clothing, Men's Collars, Corsets and Allied Garments, Men's Furnishing Goods, Cloth Gloves and Mittens, Fur-Felt Hats, Handkerchiefs, Millinery, Men's Shirts. Washington, DC: US Government Printing Office, 1935.

- U.S. Department of Commerce. Bureau of the Census. 1967 Census of Manufactures. Industry Series. Women's and Children's Underwear, Headwear, Children's Outerwear. Washington, DC: Government Printing Office, 1970.
- U.S. Department of Commerce. Bureau of the Census. 1967 Census of Manufactures. Industry Series. Men's and Boys' Apparel. Washington, DC: Government Printing Office, 1970.
- U.S. Department of Labor. Bureau of Labor Statistics. *Wages and Hours of Labor in the Men's Clothing Industry*. Bulletin of the United States Bureau of Labor Statistics, Wages and Hours of Labor Series, Washington, DC, 1911-1914.
- U.S. Department of Labor. Bureau of Labor Statistics. *A Study of the Dress and Waist Industry for the Purpose of Industrial Education*. By Cleo Murtland, Charles A. Prosser, and Royal Meeker. Washington, DC: Government Printing Office, 1914.
- U.S. Department of Labor. Bureau of Labor Statistics. *A Study of Occupations in the Cloak, Suit, and Skirt Industry of Greater New York and an Apprenticeship Plan for Cutters*. By William Thomas Bawden. Bulletin of the United States Bureau of Labor Statistics, No. 147, Wages and Hours of Labor Series no. 9. New York, 1914. (Open Collections Program at Harvard University, Women and work, Preservation Microfilm Collection 00835.)
- U.S. Department of Labor. Bureau of Labor Statistics. *Conciliation, Arbitration, and Sanitation in the Dress and Waist Industry of New York City*. Bulletin of the United States Bureau of Labor Statistics, No. 145, Conciliation and Arbitration Series no. 5. By Charles Henry Winslow, Cleo Murtland, and Charles A. Prosser. Washington, DC: US Government Printing Office, 1914. (Open Collections Program at Harvard University, Women and Work, Preservation Microfilm Collection 00833.)
- U.S. Department of Labor. Bureau of Labor Statistics. Wages and Regularity of Employment and Standardization of Piece Rates in the Dress and Waist Industry. Bulletin of the United States Bureau of Labor Statistics, No. 146, Wages and Hours of Labor Series no.
 8. By Nahum Isaac Stone and Royal Meeker. Washington, DC: US Government Printing Office, 1914. (Open Collections Program at Harvard University, Women and Work, Preservation Microfilm Collection 00834.)
- U.S. Department of Labor. Bureau of Labor Statistics. *Industrial Court of the Cloak, Suit, and Skirt Industry of New York City*. Bulletin of the United States Bureau of Labor Statistics, No. 144, Conciliation and Arbitration Series no. 4. By Charles Henry Winslow and Royal Meeker. Washington, DC: US Government Printing Office, 1914. (Open Collections Program at Harvard University, Women and Work, Preservation Microfilm Collection 00832.)
- U.S. Department of Labor. Bureau of Labor Statistics. Wages and Regularity of Employment in the Cloak, Suit, and Skirt Industry: With Plans for Apprenticeship for Cutters and the Education of Workers in the Industry. By William T. Bawden. Bulletin of the United States Bureau of Labor Statistics, No. 147, Wages and Hours of Labor Series no. 9. Washington, DC: US Government Printing Office, 1915. (Open Collections Program at Harvard University, Women and Work, Preservation Microfilm Collection 00835.)
- U.S. Department of Labor. Bureau of Labor Statistics. *Wages and Regularity of Employment in the Dress and Waist Industry of New York City*. By Royal Meeker and Nahum Isaac Stone. Washington, DC: US Government Printing Office, 1915.
- U.S. Department of Labor. Bureau of Labor Statistics. Wages and Regularity of Employment in the Cloak, Suit, and Skirt Industry, with Plans for Apprenticeship for Cutters and the Education of Workers in the Industry. Bulletin of the United States Bureau of Labor Statistics, No. 147, Wages and Hours of Labor Series no. 9. By Charles Henry Winslow, Louis Dembitz Brandeis, William T. Bawden, and Royal Meeker. Washington, DC: US Government Printing Office, 1915.

- U.S. Department of Labor. Bureau of Labor Statistics. *Regularity of Employment in the Women's Ready-to-Wear Garment Industries*. Bulletin of the United States Bureau of Labor Statistics, No. 183, Miscellaneous Series no. 12. By Royal Meeker. Washington, DC: US Government Printing Office, 1916.
- U.S. Department of Labor. Office of the Assistant Secretary. Report of the United States Government Delegates to the Tripartite Technical Meeting for the Clothing Industry of the International Labor Organization, Geneva, Switzerland, September-October, 1964. Washington, 1965.
- U.S. Department of Labor. Bureau of Labor Statistics. *Occupational Employment: Children's Outerwear Industry*. Report 430-35. By Barbara L. Keitt. Washington, DC, 1974.
- U.S. Department of Labor. Bureau of Labor Statistics. *Industry Wage Survey: Men's and Boys' Suits and Coats.* By Sandra L. King. Bulletin of the United States Bureau of Labor Statistics, No. 2073. Washington, DC: US Government Printing Office, 1980.
- U.S. Economic Development Administration, in cooperation with Office of Minority Business Enterprise. *Contract Dress Manufacturing*. Washington, DC: US Government Printing Office, 1972.
- U.S. Economic Development Administration. Institute of Public Administration, Daniel Management Center. *Effective Management Strategies and Practices in the U.S. Apparel Industry: Case Studies*. Washington, DC, 1983.
- U.S. Office of Price Administration. Office of Temporary Controls, Economic Data Analysis Branch. Survey of Manufacturers of Women's, Children's and Infants' Underwear and Nightwear and of Corsets and Allied Garments: Financial Data, 1936-42; and Unit Direct Cost, Unit Gross Margin, and Price Distribution Data 1942, By William Cooper, Robert S. Lehman, and Henry A. Peel. OPA Economic Data Series no. 13. Washington, DC, 1947.
- U.S. Treasury Department. United States Public Health Service. Studies in Vocational Diseases.
 Public Health Bulletin, no. 71. By Joseph Williams Schereschewsky and Davis H. Tuck. Washington, DC: US Government Printing Office, 1915. (Harvard Social History/Business Preservation Microfilm Project 3, 30813.)

B. NEW YORK STATE

New York State Archives
New York State Education Department
Cultural Education Center
Albany, NY 12230
http://www.archives.nysed.gov/aindex.shtml

The State Archives holds records relating to state regulation of certain types of business, court proceedings involving business firms, and labor relations in the public sector. The following two finding aids describe a variety of business and labor records including in the State Archives:

Guide to the Records of the New York State Factory Investigating Commission

The deaths of 145 employees of the Triangle Waist Company during a fire in the factory stunned New Yorkers and the nation. Public concern mounted as investigations revealed the locked stairwells, crowded conditions, and unsafe environment in which the employees, predominantly women, worked and subsequently died. The New York State Legislature responded by establishing the Factory Investigating Commission to study working conditions in a variety of industries and businesses.

The records of the Factory Investigating Commission provide researchers with a detailed view of early twentieth century working life. The majority of records are from the Wage Investigation and include information on thousands of individual workers' salaries, work hours, personal expenses, and family finances. They also reflect working conditions as reported by the investigators who visited various factories and businesses. Administrative records reflect the views of government agencies, businessmen, civic groups, and subject experts on working condition problems and potential solutions.

The records of the Factory Investigating Commission are part of the holdings of the New York State Archives. The Commission's records consist of over twenty series, totalling more than forty cubic feet. Most of these records have been microfilmed and the microfilm copies are available on inter-library loan. They are also available for purchase at cost of duplication. Microfilming of selected records and preparation of this Guide were supported in part by a grant from the National Endowment for the Humanities.

The finding aid provides a general history of the Factory Investigating Commission, describing the range of issues it studied, although surviving records are primarily from the Wage Investigation. Descriptions of each record series generated by the Commission are arranged in groups by general type or subject of the records. Finally, a list is provided of those record series which have been microfilmed and are therefore available on interlibrary loan or for purchase.

The records of the Factory Investigating Commission are available to researchers at the State Archives. Research Assistance provides further information about the content or use of these or other State Archives holdings.

New York State Library

New York State Library Cultural Education Center Empire State Plaza Albany, NY 12230 (518) 474-5355 http://www.nysl.nysed.gov/

The New York State Library is a rich source for government reports pertaining to industry. Below are a few examples of holdings in the New York State Library that pertain to the garment industry:

Bureau of Research and Statistics, Division of Placement and Unemployment Insurance, New York Department of Labor. *Occupational Studies Bulletin*. New York: [1937-]. General note: Preliminary reports; not to be listed in any bibliography or other publication. Reproduced from typewritten copy. Each issue has a distinctive title. Incomplete contents include:

- No. 2. Hat manufacturing plant, New York City (Manhattan), manufacturer of women's hats. 1937
- No. 3. Garment plant, New York City (Manhattan), manufacturer of women's coats, 1937
- No. 7. Garment plant, New York City (Manhattan), manufacturer and packager of handkerchiefs, 1937
- No. 10. Textile dyeing and finishing plant, New York City (Brooklyn), dyer and finisher of rayon and cotton goods, 1937

- No. 12. Garment plant, New York City (Manhattan), manufacturer of women's underwear and corsets, 1937
- No. 18. Shoe manufacturing plan, New York City (Brooklyn), manufacturer of men's, women's and children's shoes, 1937
- No. 22. Knit goods plant, New York City (Bronx), manufacturer of women's sport socks, 1937 -- No. 24. Garment manufacturing industry (men's suits and overcoats), 1939
- No. 26. Job schedule index by industry, Supplement 1, Nov. 1937
- No. 31. Garment plant, New York City (Manhattan), manufacturer of women's pajamas, negligees and robes, 1937
- No. 34. Hat manufacturing industry (men's felt hats), 1939 –
- Issuing body: Issued by the Placement and Unemployment Insurance Division of the Labor Department of New York State; prepared by the department's Research and Statistics Bureau, with the assistance of the Works Progress Administration of New York City.

Gov. Doc. Call #: PLA 029-3 OCCSB 200-13645

Haas, Francis Joseph. Shop Collective Bargaining: A Study of Wage Determination in the Men's Garment Industry, 1922.

Call number: 331.2 H11

International Ladies' Garment Workers' Union. New York Joint Board of the

Dressmakers' Union. Industry Planning Through Collective Bargaining: A Program
for Modernizing the New York Dress Industry. Presented in conference with
employers on behalf of the Joint Board of the Dressmakers' Union by Julius
Hochman, general manager, Joint Board of the Dressmakers' Union, International
Ladies' Garment Workers' Union. New York: [The Kalkhoff Press], 1941.
Call number: 331,768712 H685

New York State Division of Commerce. <u>Sewing Machine and Other Equipment of Corset, Girdle, and Brassiere Manufacturers of New York State.</u> Prepared for the use of United States government procurement agencies by the New York State Division of Commerce. Albany, NY: The Division, [1942]

<u>Plan of New York and Its Environs.</u> New York: Plan of New York and Its Environs, 1924-.

Local note: v. 7. Men's Wear Industry / B.M. Selekman.--v.8. Women's Garment Industry / Henriette R. Walter.--v.9. Textile Industry / W.J. Couper.--v.10. Financial District / R.W. Roby.--v.11. Wholesale Markets / George Filipetti.--v.12. Retail Shopping District / L.M. Orton. Call number: 330.97471 qR332

United States. Congress. House. Committee on Education and Labor. *Investigation of the Garment Industry*. Hearings before the AD Hoc Subcommittee on Investigation of the Garment Industry of the Committee on Education and Labor, House of Representatives, Eighty-seventh Congress, second session. Investigation of labor irregularities and discrimination in the garment industry. Washington, DC: Government Printing Office, 1962.

Call number: 331.88187 U4993,1962

<u>United States. Employment service.</u> *Job Descriptions for the Garment Manufacturing Industry*, 1941.

Call number: 687 U54

<u>United States. National Recovery Administration.</u> <u>Hearing on Code of Fair Practices and Competition Presented by the Cotton Garment Industry. March 12, 1934.</u>

Call number: 338.47687 qU62

<u>United States. National Recovery Administration.</u> <u>Hearing on the Cotton Garment</u>
<u>Industry.</u> Application of the Sexton Mfg. Co., of Fairfield, Ill., for exemption from provisions of Article IV, sec. C. April 23, 1934. Washington, DC: J. L. Ward, 1934. Call number: 338.4767721 qU62, 73-273

Selected New York State reports:

- Governor's Advisory Commission on Cloak, Suit and Skirt Industry of New York City. *Cloak, Suit & Skirt Industry, New York City: Supplementary Report.* New York, 1925.
- Governor's Advisory Commission, Cloak, Suit and Skirt Industry, New York City. *Report of an Investigation*. By George Gordon Battle, C.J. Dickinson and Morris Kolchin. New York: Evening Post Job Printing Office, 1925.
- —. Final Recommendations. By George Gordon Battle. New York, 1926.
- —. Wages and Wage Scales, 1925. By Morris Kolchin. New York: Bureau of Research, 1925.
- —. Employment and Earnings of Workers, 1925. By Morris Kolchin. New York: Bureau of Research, 1926.
- New York Institute of Public Administration. *Trends in the New York Clothing Industry: A Study Undertaken for the Mayor's Business Advisory Committee and the Committee of Fifteen*. By Leonard A. Drake and Carrie Glasser. New York, 1942. (Reproduction: Albany, NY: New York State Library, 1990. 3 microfiches.)
- New York State Bureau of Research and Statistics. *The Men's Coat and Suit Worker and Unemployment Insurance*. New York, 1953.
- New York State Department of Labor. Bureau of Women in Industry. *Homework in the Men's Clothing Industry in New York and Rochester*, *State of New York*. By Edna Shepard. Special Bulletin 147, August 1926. Albany: J.B. Lyon, General Printers, 1926.
- New York State Department of Labor. Division of Placement and Unemployment Insurance. Proposal to Establish a Dress Industry Placement Office in New York City. By Fritz Kaufmann. Rev. ed. New York, 1939.
- New York State Department of Labor. Division of Labor Standards and Division of Research and Statistics. *Report to the Governor and the Legislature on the Garment Manufacturing Industry and Industrial Homework*. New York, 1982.
- New York State Employment Service. Employer Relations Unit, Manhattan Needle Trades Office. *Housedress Industry Survey*. New York, 1951.
- New York State Employment Service. Bureau of Research and Statistics. *The Millinery Worker and Unemployment Insurance*. New York, 1953.
- New York State Employment Service. Bureau of Research and Statistics. *The Women's Clothing Worker and Unemployment Insurance*. New York, 1953.
- New York State Senate. *The Return of the Sweatshop, Part I: A Call for State Action: An Investigation of theGarment Sweatshop Problem in Northern Manhattan.* By Franz S. Leichter. October. 1979.
- New York State Senate. *The Return of the Sweatshop, Part 2*. By Franz S. Leichter. February 26, 1981.

- New York State Senate. The Return of the Sweatshop, Part 3: Sweatshops to Shakedowns: Organized Crime in New York's Garment Industry. By Franz S. Leichter. March, 1982.
- New York State Senate. The Triangle Shirtwaist Factory Fire, March 25, 1911: A Memorial Compilation and Testament to the 146 Victims, Their Families and Those Heroic Immigrants Whose Labor and Sacrifice Made America Great. By Serphin R. Maltese. Albany, 2006.
- Regional Plan Association (New York). *The Future of the New York Apparel Industry 1952-1970 (Preliminary)*. New York, 1953.
- Selekman, Ben Morris, Henriette Rose Walter, and Walter J. Couper. *The Clothing and Textile Industries in New York and Its Environs, Present Trends and Probable Future Developments*. Regional Plan of New York and Its Environs, Economic and Industrial Survey, Economic Series, nos. 7-9. New York, 1925.
- William, Faith Moors, Benjamin M. Selekman, Henriette R. Walter, Walter J. Couper, and George Filipetti. *Food, Clothing and Textile Industries, Wholesale Markets and Retail Shopping and Financial Districts, Present Trends and Probable Developments.* Regional Survey of New York and Its Environs, vol. 1b. New York, 1928.

C. NEW YORK CITY

New York Municipal Archives

Leonora Gidlund, Director 31 Chambers Street, Room 103 New York, NY 10007 (212) NEW-YORK http://www.nyc.gov/html/records/ht

http://www.nyc.gov/html/records/html/about/archives.shtml

Federal Writers' Project. New York (N.Y.). Records of New York Industries, 1937-1941, (bulk 1940-1941).

WPA Federal Writers Project manuscript material on New York industries 1937-1941. This series includes manuscripts, notes, reports, and brochures containing information on New York City's industrial history from circa 1600 to the contemporary state of manufacturing in Manhattan, the Bronx, Brooklyn and Queens. The growth of the garment industry and how the economics of local and national business cycles affected it is documented statistically and historically. The rise of "sweat shops" and problems associated with them are also recorded. Government policy towards industry is also documented as is the importance of different industries to the overall national economy.

The records document the effort to produce a book on the industrial history and contemporary state of manufacturing in New York City. There is no evidence that a draft manuscript was produced or published.

The New York Municipal Archives also house a small collection of vertical files on the garment industry, which include press clippings categorized by crime, economic problems, workers, employment and traffic problems, economic problems—the bosses, and fashion/style.

Other Records:

Minutes of all New York City legislative bodies (Common Council, Board of Alderman, City Council, etc.), with index

Mayoral press releases, organized by mayor

All printed materials issued by all city agencies, including annual reports, etc.

All reports of city commissions and agencies

Old administrative codes, zoning resolutions, and building codes

Documentation of the New York City fashion shows of 1923 and 1948 celebrating the 25th and 50th anniversary of consolidation

Licenses

City inspector reports

City directories (Entries included surname, street address and occupation. These directories can be used to identify, for example, all apparel firms that existed in a particular year on the Lower East Side or in the Garment District.)

Selected New York City Reports:

- Joint Board of Sanitary Control in the Dress and Waist Industry. *Special Report on Sanitary Conditions in the Shops of the Dress and Waist Industry*. New York: Schreiber Press, 1913. (Harvard Social History/Business Preservation Microfilm Project 2b, 25100.)
- Joint Board of Sanitary Control in the Cloak, Suit and Skirt Industry. *Directory of Certificated Shops in the Cloak, Suit and Skirt Industry*. New York, 1913. (Reproduction, Pamphlets in American History: Labor, L 2862. Sanford, NC: Microfilming Corp. of America, 1979.)
- Manhattan Needle Trades Office, Employer Relations Unit. Study of Selected Segment of Ladies' Coat and Suit Industry. New York, 1952.
- Mayor's Committee for the Commemoration of the Golden Anniversary of the City of New York. *City of New York Golden Anniversary of Fashion: 1898-1948*. Official jubilee ed. New York, 1948.
- Mayor's Committee for World Fashion Center. *The World Fashion Center, New York City's Post War Business Project No. 1: A Report.* New York, 1944.
- Mayor's Committee for World Fashion Center. *A Stitch in Time: A Report*. New York, 1957. New York City Transportation Administration. *Manhattan Garment Center Urban Goods Movement Study, Phase I*. New York, 1976.
- New York City Transportation Administration. *Manhattan Garment Center Urban Goods Movement Study, Phase Two, Final Report.* New York, 1979.

IX. New York Times Obituaries

A search of Proquest's Historical New York Times database using the terms "obituary" + "garment industry" + "died" yielded sixty citations, most for important figures in the garment industry including many who founded clothing manufacturing companies. These obituaries reveal immigrant status, early career (often in sweating trades), names of company or companies founded, holding interests in other companies, philanthropic work, and surviving family.

Following is an example of information provided in "H. Adler, 72, Executive In the Garment Industry" *New York Times*, April 14, 1991:

"Mr. Adler, a certified public accountant, began his career after World War II with the Clarence Rainess Company, a Manhattan accounting firm that specialized in the garment industry. In 1967 he became the president of Bobbie Brooks, a manufacturer of women's and children's wear in New York. In 1977 he left Bobbie Brooks to become a partner in an investment group that purchased Humphries Leather Goods in Chicago. As chairman of Humphries, Mr. Adler helped

it grow into one of the largest privately owned leather goods companies in the country before it was sold in 1990."

Secondary Source Material

I. Until 1900

- Battey, J. Elementary Principles of Sewing Machine Mechanism and Sewing Machine Stitches: With a Glance at the History of the Sewing Machine and Hints on Selection. New York: Willcox & Gibbs Sewing Co., 1890.
- Bertuch, Friedrich Justin, Georg Melchior Kraus, and Carl Bertuch. *Journal Fur Literature, Kunst, Luxus Und Mode.* 74, no. 444 (1786).
- Carey, Mathew. Wages of Female Labour. Philadelphia, 1829.
- Crinoline from 1730 to 1864. London: E. Philpott, 1864.
- "Destruction of Birds for Millinery Purposes." Science 7, no. 160 (1886): 196-97.
- Eaton, Isabel. "Receipts and Expenditures of Certain Wage-Earners in the Garment Trades." *Publications of the American Statistical Association* 4, no. 30 (1895): 135-80.
- Genius Rewarded: The Story of the Sewing Machine. New York: J.J. Caulon, Printer, 1880.
- Gibbs, James Edward Allen. *History of the Sewing Machine*. Richmond: Fergusson & Rady, Printers, 1872.
- The History of the Sewing Machine and of Elias Howe, Jr. The Inventor. Detroit: Advertiser and Tribune Printing Co., 1867.
- Howe, Benjamin P. A Condensed Statement of the Principal Facts Connected with the History of the Howe Sewing Machines. New York: Stewart, Haring & Warren, Printers, 1871.
- L'art De La Mode; a Journal of the Latest Styles. New York: W. J. Morse, 1894.
- Les Modes Parisiennes: Colored Fashion Plates from Peterson's Magazine. Philadelphia: C. J. Peterson, 1875.
- Lyons, Lewis, T. W. Allen, and W. D. F. Vincent. The Sewing Machine: An Historical and Practical Exposition of the Sewing Machine from Its Inception to the Present Time: Containing Explanations Showing the Modern Methods of Garment Making Applied to All Kinds of Tailor-Made Garments. London: John Williamson, 1900.
- Parton, James. *History of the Sewing Machine*. Boston: Howe Machine, 1860. Reprint, Ann Arbor, MI: University of Michigan, 2005.
- Scott, John. The Story of the Sewing Machine. New York: John J. Caulon, 1897.
- Stambaugh, John P. Report of the Trial and Result between Sewing Machines at the Twenty-Second Annual Exhibition of the Maryland Institute. Hartford, CT: Hutchings Printing House, 1871.

Strang, John. "The Sewing Machine in Glasgow, and Its Effects on Production, Prices, and Wages." *Journal of the Statistical Society of London* 21, no. 4 (1858): 464-67.

II. 1901-1975

A. GARMENT INDUSTRY

1. General Studies

- American Fabrics Presents the Worth Street Story. New York: Doric, 1952.
- Argersinger, Jo Ann E. Making the Amalgamated: Gender, Ethnicity, and Class in the Baltimore Clothing Industry, 1899-1939, Studies in Industry and Society. Baltimore: Johns Hopkins University Press, 1999.
- Armbruster-Sandoval, Ralph. Globalization and Cross-Border Labor Solidarity in the Americas: The Anti-Sweatshop Movement and the Struggle for Social Justice. New York: Routledge, 2005.
- Arpan, Jeffrey S., and Jose R. De la Torre. *The U.S. Apparel Industry: International Challenge, Domestic Response.* Atlanta: Georgia State University College of Business Administration, 1982.
- Automation & Mechanization in the Apparel Industry. New York: Frost & Sullivan, 1976.
- Ayensu, Franklyn. *The Garment Industry Development Corporation Case Study: Executive Summary*. Washington, DC: Aspen Institute, 2000.
- Battle in the Sweatshops. Washington, DC: National Public Radio Education Services, 1981.
- Benin, Leigh David. The New Labor Radicalism and New York City's Garment Industry: Progressive Labor Insurgents in the 1960s. London and New York: Garland, 2000.
- Berkstresser, Gordon A., David R. Buchanan, and Perry L. Grady. *Automation in the Textile Industry: From Fibers to Apparel*. Manchester, UK: Textile Institute, 1995.
- Bibliography of Articles, Books and Source Material on the Amalgamated Clothing Workers of America. New York, 1926.
- Birnbaum, David. *Birnbaum's Global Guide to Winning the Great Garment War*. New York: Fashiondex, Inc., 2005.
- Budish, Jacob M., and George Henry Soule. *The New Unionism in the Clothing Industry*. New York: Russell & Russell, 1968.
- Budish, Jacob M., and George Henry Soule. *The New Unionism in the Clothing Industry*. 1920. Reprint, New York: Russell & Russell, 1968.
- Carpenter, Jesse T. "Competition and Collective Bargaining in the Needle Trades, 1910-1967." *Cornell Studies in Industrial and Labor Relations* 17. Ithaca: New York State School of Industrial and Labor Relations, Cornell University, 1972.

- Chin, Margaret May. Sewing Women: Immigrants and the New York City Garment Industry. New York: Columbia University Press, 2005.
- Cook, Daniel Thomas. *The Commodification of Childhood: The Children's Clothing Industry and the Rise of the Child Consumer.* Durham: Duke University Press, 2004.
- Corcoran, James A. Unemployment Insurance in the Cloak, Suit and Skirt Industry of New York City. New York, 1925.
- De la Torre, Jose R., Michael Jay Jedel, Jeffrey S. Arpan. *Corporate Responses to Import Competition in the U.S. Apparel Industry*, 74. Atlanta: College of Business Administration, Georgia State University, 1978.
- Drake, Leonard A., and Carrie Glasser. *Trends in the New York Clothing Industry a Study for the Mayor's Business Advisory Committee and the Committee of Fifteen*. New York City: Institute of Public Administration, 1942.
- Dubinsky, David. *The Present Situation in the New York Women's Garment Industry*. New York, 1942.
- Ekeland, Barbara Kirsch. The Evolution of Women's Fashions in the United States and the Development of the Ready-to-Wear Garment Industry with Particular Reference to the Years 1890-1900. Storrs, CT, 1976.
- Fairchild's Market Directory of Women's and Children's Apparel. New York: Fairchild Publications, 1976.
- Figures Help: A Practical Guide to Management Accountancy Systems for the Clothing Manufacturer. London: H.M.S.O., 1968.
- The Future of the New York Apparel Industry 1952-1970 (Preliminary). New York: Regional Plan Association Inc., 1953.
- Glenn, Susan Anita. Daughters of the Shtetl: Jewish Immigrant Women in America's Garment Industry, 1880-1920. Ithaca: Cornell University Press, 1990.
- Goldman, E. S. *The New York Story: A History of the New York Clothing Industry, 1924-1949.*New York: New York Clothing Manufacturers' Exchange, 1949.
- Gordon, Harry A. Conditions in the Cloak and Suit Industry in the City of New York. New York, 1914.
- Green, Nancy L. Ready-to-Wear and Ready-to-Work: A Century of Industry and Immigrants in Paris and New York, Comparative and International Working-Class History. Durham: Duke University Press, 1997.
- Hale, Angela, and Jane Wills. *Threads of Labour: Garment Industry Supply Chains from the Workers' Perspective.* Malden, MA: Blackwell Pub., 2005.

- Higginbotham, Elice. "The Workplace: New York Garment District: A Latin American Immigrant's Experience in a U.S. Factory." *Theology in the Americas* 6. New York: Theology in the Americas, 1978.
- Hochman, Julius. *Industry Planning through Collective Bargaining: A Program for Modernizing the New York Dress Industry*. 1900. Reprint, New York: Kalkhoff, 1941.
- Infant's, Toddlers', Girls' and Boys' Wear. New York: Fairchild Publications, n.d.
- Ingersoll, Raymond Vail. Decisions, Impartial Chairman, Coat and Suit Industry of New York, 1924-1931. New York, 1956.
- Keyserling, Leon Hirsch. *The New York Dress Industry; Problems and Prospects*. Washington, DC: 1963.
- Lerner, Eric. *Advanced Technologies in the Apparel Industry*, Business Opportunity Report, Stamford, CT: Business Communications Co., 1979.
- Levitan, Mark. *Opportunity at Work: The New York City Garment Industry*. New York: Community Service Society of New York, 1998.
- Marx, Eli, John Burcham. *Three Leading Multinational Companies in the Textiles, Garment and Leather Industries*. London: International Textile, Garment and Leather Workers' Federation, 1972.
- Multinational Companies in the Textile, Garment and Leather Industries. Brussels: International Textile, Garment and Leather Workers' Federation, 1984.
- Olian, JoAnne. *Children's Fashions, 1900-1950, as Pictured in Sears Catalogs*. Mineola, NY: Dover Publications, 2003.
- "Plant and Power Engineering." *Training for Industry Series*, No.3. The Lódz Textile Seminars 8. New York: United Nations, 1970.
- Pope, Jesse Eliphalet. The Clothing Industry in New York. 1905. New York: B. Franklin, 1970.
- Robinson, Dwight Edwards. *Collective Bargaining and Market Control in the New York Coat and Suit Industry*. New York: Columbia University Press, 1949.
- Rosen, Ellen Israel. *Making Sweatshops: The Globalization of the U.S. Apparel Industry*. Berkeley: University of California Press, 2002.
- Rosen, Morton H. Employment Testing for the Apparel Trades Industry, Basic Studies in Apparel Management, Report No. 4. New York: Frederick Kogos Pub. Co., 1961.
- Seidman, Joel Isaac. The Needle Trades. New York and Toronto: Farrar and Rinehart, 1942.
- Selected Bibliography of the Amalgamated Clothing and Textile Workers Union. New York: Research Dept., ACTWU, 1987.

- Selected Bibliography of the Amalgamated Clothing and Textile Workers Union. New York: Research Dept., ACTWU, 1990.
- Selected Bibliography of the Amalgamated Clothing and Textile Workers Union. New York: Research Dept., ACTWU, 1993.
- Smith, Eugene J., and Peter N. Carter. *Methods Time Measurements in the Sewing Industry*. Great Neck, NY: Apparel Institute, Kogos Publications, 1965.
- Soyer, Daniel. A Coat of Many Colors: Immigration, Globalism, and Reform in the New York City Garment Industry. New York: Fordham University Press, 2005.
- Steedman, Mercedes. Angels of the Workplace: Women and the Construction of Gender Relations in the Canadian Clothing Industry, 1890-1940. New York: Oxford University Press, 1997.
- Taplin, Ian M. and Jonathan Winterton. *Rethinking Global Production: A Comparative Analysis of Restructuring in the Clothing Industry*. London: Ashgate 1997.
- Waldinger, Roger. *Immigration and Industrial Change a Case Study of Immigrants in the New York City Garment Industry*. Cambridge: Joint Center for Urban Studies of MIT and Harvard University, 1982.
- Ethnic Enterprise and Industrial Change: A Case Study of the New York City Garment Industry. Ann Arbor, MI: University Microfilms International, 1983.
- Wong, Kent, and Julie Monroe. *Sweatshop Slaves: Asian Americans in the Garment Industry*. Los Angeles: UCLA Center for Labor Research and Education, 2006.

2. Women's Apparel

- Beckingham, Carolyn. *Is Fashion a Woman's Right?* Brighton, UK: Sussex Academic Press, 2005.
- Bowman, Sara. *A Fashion for Extravagance: Art Deco Fabrics and Fashions*. London: Bell & Hyman, 1985.
- Bryant, Michele Wesen. WWD Illustrated: 1960s-1990s. New York: Fairchild Publications, 2004.
- Cherniss, Ruth Meyer. Max Meyer, 1876-1953. Princeton: Haskins Press, 1980.
- Countryman, Ruth S., and Elizabeth Weiss Hopper. *Women's Wear of the 1920's: With Complete Patterns.* Studio City, CA: Players Press, 1998.
- . Women's Wear of the 1930's: With Complete Patterns. Studio City, CA: Players Press, 2001.
- Crane, Diana. Fashion and Its Social Agendas: Class, Gender, and Identity in Clothing. Chicago: University of Chicago Press, 2000.

- Cunnington, C. Willett. *English Women's Clothing in the Present Century*. London: Faber and Faber, 1952.
- Gamber, Wendy. The Female Economy: The Millinery and Dressmaking Trades, 1860-1930, Women in American History; the Working Class in American History. Urbana: University of Illinois Press, 1997.
- The Garment Industry--Its History. New York: Ritter, 1917.
- Grafton, Carol Belanger. French Fashion Illustrations of the Twenties: 634 Cuts from La Vie Parisienne. Mineola, NY: Dover Publications, 1987.
- Victorian Fashions. Mineola, NY: Dover Publications, n.d.
- Greig, Gertrud Berta. "Seasonal Fluctuations in Employment in the Women's Clothing Industry in New York." *Studies in History, Economics and Public Law,* No. 554. New York: Columbia University Press, 1949.
- Ludot, Didier. The Little Black Dress: Vintage Treasure. New York: Assouline, 2001.
- Melinkoff, Ellen. What We Wore: An Offbeat Social History of Women's Clothing, 1950-1980. New York: William Morrow, 1984.
- New York Spring Styles. New York: Bedell Company, 1912.
- Panache: 200 Years of the Fashionable Woman: The Vancouver Museum, December 1990-August 1991. Vancouver: The Vancouver Museum, 1991.
- Routh, Caroline. In Style: 100 Years of Canadian Women's Fashion. Toronto: Stoddart, 1993.
- Schorman, Rob. *Selling Style: Clothing and Social Change at the Turn of the Century*. Philadelphia: University of Pennsylvania Press, 2003.
- Schroeder, Joseph J. and Barbara C. Cohen. *The Wonderful World of Ladies' Fashion, 1850-1920*. Chicago: Follett Publishing Co., 1971.
- Skinner, Tina, and Lindy McCord. *Flapper Era Fashions from the Roaring 20s*. Atglen, PA: Schiffer Publishing Ltd., 2004.
- Sowina, Barbara, and Malgorzata Mozdzynska-Nawotka. *Women's Fashions: 1840-1939*. Wrocław: Muzeum Narodowe, 1999.
- Steele, Valerie. Fashion and Eroticism: Ideals of Feminine Beauty from the Victorian Era to the Jazz Age. New York: Oxford University Press, 1985.
- Summers, John O. "The Identity of Women's Clothing Fashion Opinion Leaders." *Journal of Marketing Research* 7, no. 2 (1970): 178-85.
- Torrens, Deborah. Fashion Illustrated: A Review of Women's Dress, 1920-1950. New York: Hawthorn Books, 1975.

Women's Fashions of the Early 1900s: An Unabridged Republication Of "New York Fashions, 1909". Mineola, NY: Dover Publications, 1992.

3. Children's Apparel

- Cook, Daniel Thomas. *The Commodification of Childhood: The Children's Clothing Industry and the Rise of the Child Consumer.* Durham: Duke University Press, 2004.
- Fairchild's Market Directory of Women's and Children's Apparel. New York: Fairchild Publications, 1976.
- Olian, JoAnne. *Children's Fashions, 1900-1950, as Pictured in Sears Catalogs*. Mineola, NY: Dover Publications, 2003.
- Paoletti, Jo B. "Clothing and Gender in America: Children's Fashions, 1890-1920." *Signs* 13, no. 1 (1987): 136-43.

4. Accessories and Embellishments

- Ball, Joanne Dubbs, and Dorothy Hehl Torem. *The Art of Fashion Accessories: A Twentieth Century Retrospective*. Atglen, PA: Schiffer, 1993.
- Boxer, Marilyn J. "Women in Industrial Homework: The Flowermakers of Paris in the Belle Epoque." *French Historical Studies* 12, no. 3 (1982): 401-23.
- Buyers' Market Guide of Dress Accessories, New York: Haire Pub. Co., n.d.
- Ettinger, Roseann. 50s Popular Fashions for Men, Women, Boys & Girls: With Price Guide, A Schiffer Book for Collectors. Atglen, PA: Schiffer Publications, 1995.
- ———. Fifties Forever!: Popular Fashions for Men, Women, Boys & Girls, A Schiffer Book for Designers & Collectors. Atglen, PA: Schiffer Pub. Ltd., 1999.
- Furnival, Jane. Dumbbells Ear Caps and Hair Restorers: A Shopper's Guide to Gentlemen's Foibles 1800s-1930s. UK: Michael O'Mara Books Ltd., 1999.
- Grafton, Carol Belanger. *Shoes, Hats and Fashion Accessories: A Pictorial Archive 1850-1940.* Mineola, NY: Dover Publications, 1998.
- Kazanjian, Dodie. Icons: The Absolutes of Style. New York: St. Martin's Press, 1995.
- Kennett, Frances. The Collector's Book of Twentieth-Century Fashion. New York, 1983.
- Kennett, Frances, and Judith Straeten. The Collector's Book of Fashion. New York: Crown, 1983.
- New York City Business Sourcebook: New York City Apparel & Accessories Guide. New York: New York Business Information Co., 1996.
- Peacock, John. Fashion Accessories: The Complete 20th Century Sourcebook. New York: Thames & Hudson, 2000.

- Textilesources: Who's Who in the USA: A Guide to Mills, Converters, Importers for the Manufacturers of Apparel, Accessories & Home Furnishings. New York: Dare Communications, 2005.
- To the Teens' Taste. New York: Good Housekeeping Fashions, 1947.
- Victorian Fashion Accessories. Mineola, NY: Dover Publications, n.d.
- Warren, Geoffrey. Fashions & Accessories, 1840 through 1980. Atglen, PA, USA: Schiffer Pub, 1997.
- Women's Accessories Buyers. New York: Salesman's Guide, n.d.
- WWD Buyer's Guide 1997: Accessories. New York: Fairchild Publication, 1996.
- WWD Buyer's Guide: Women's Apparel & Accessories Manufacturers. New York: Fairchild Publication, 1994.

B. BUSINESS AND FINANCE

1. General Studies

- Advertisements of Men's and Boys' Apparel 1928-1929. Chicago: The National Association of Retail Clothiers and Furnishers, 1929.
- Aldrich, Howard E., and Roger Waldinger. "Ethnicity and Entrepreneurship." *Annual Review of Sociology* 16 (1990): 111-35.
- Arpan, Jeffrey S., Jose de la Torre, and Brian Toyne. "International Developments and the U.S. Apparel Industry." *Journal of International Business Studies* 12, no. 3 (1981): 49-64.
- Arpan, Jeffrey S., and Jose R. De la Torre. *The U.S. Apparel Industry: International Challenge, Domestic Response.* Atlanta: Georgia State University College of Business Administration, 1982.
- Baum, Richard, Margaret Mager, and George Strachan. *Apparel Supply Chain Management: Less Fashion Risk, Greater Financial Rewards*. New York: Goldman Sachs, 1998.
- Bernstein, Leonard S. "How's Business?" "Don't Ask": Tales from the Garment Center. New York: Saturday Review Press, 1974.
- Brissenden, Paul F. "Progress and Poverty in Millinery Manufacturing." *The Journal of Business of the University of Chicago* 12, no. 2 (1939): 111-31.
- Brooks Brothers, Centenary, 1818-1918; Being a Short History of the Founding of Their Business, Together with an Account of Its Different Locations in the City of New York During This Period. New York: Brooks Bros., 1918.
- Burdg, Henry B. *Time Study for Apparel Production*. Auburn, AL: Auburn University, College of Business, 1990.

- Cohen, Julius Henry. "The Revised Protocol in the Dress and Waist Industry." *Annals of the American Academy of Political and Social Science* 69 (1917): 183-96.
- The Commercial Agency Record. A, Dry Goods, Fancy Goods, Cloths, Clothing, Hats, Caps, Furs, Straw Goods, Etc. New York: McKillop & Co., 1861.
- Contract Dress Manufacturing. Urban Business Profile. Washington, DC: Government Printing Office, 1972.
- Davies, Robert Bruce. Peacefully Working to Conquer the World: Singer Sewing Machines in Foreign Markets, 1854-1920, American Business Abroad. New York: Arno Press, 1976.
- Dennis, Richard. "Property and Propriety: Jewish Landlords in Early Twentieth-Century Toronto." *Transactions of the Institute of British Geographers* 22, no. 3 (1997): 377-97.
- Doubek, Katja. Blue Jeans: Levi Strauss Und Die Geschichte Einer Legende. München: Piper, 2003.
- DuBois, Frank L., Brian Toyne, and Michael D. Oliff. "International Manufacturing Strategies of U.S. Multinationals: A Conceptual Framework Based on a Four-Industry Study." *Journal of International Business Studies* 24, no. 2 (1993): 307-33.
- Fasanella, Kathleen. *The Entrepreneur's Guide to Sewn Product Manufacturing*. Capitan, NM: Apparel Technical Services, 1998.
- The Fashion Center New York City Black Book. New York: Infomat Pub., 1997.
- The Fashion Center, New York City: The Hub of American Style: A Buyer's Guide. New York: Fairchild Publications, 1996.
- Foskett, E. Budd. *The Target Markets for Men's Outerwear*. Philadelphia: Philadelphia College of Textiles and Science, 1970.
- Fox, Geoffrey E. "Hispanic Organizers and Business Agents in the New York Apparel Industries." *Center for Latin American and Caribbean Studies, Occasional Papers* 43, New York: New York University, 1984.
- Fraser, Steven. "Combined and Uneven Development in the Men's Clothing Industry." *The Business History Review* 57, no. 4 (1983): 522-47.
- Freudenberger, Herman. "Fashion, Sumptuary Laws, and Business." *The Business History Review* 37, no. 1/2, Special Illustrated Fashion Issue (1963): 37-48.
- Gamber, Wendy. The Female Economy: The Millinery and Dressmaking Trades, 1860-1930, Women in American History; the Working Class in American History. Urbana: University of Illinois Press, 1997.
- ——. "A Gendered Enterprise: Placing Nineteenth-Century Businesswomen in History." *The Business History Review* 72, no. 2, Gender and Business (1998): 188-217.

- Gannage, Charlene. "Union Women in the Garment Industry Respond to New Managerial Strategies." *Canadian Journal of Sociology / Cahiers Canadiens de Sociologie* 20, no. 4, (1995): 469-95.
- Godley, Andrew. "Credit Rationing among Small Firm Networks in the London and New York Garment Industries." *Discussion Papers in Economics and Management*, Series A, no. 347, Reading: University of Reading, 1996.
- Goldman, Marshall I. ""From Sputniks to Panties:" Is Economic Development Really That Easy?" *The Business History Review* 37, no. 1/2, Special Illustrated Fashion Issue (1963): 81-93.
- Harris, Beth. Famine and Fashion: Needlewomen in the Nineteenth Century. London: Ashgate, 2005
- Hay, Leon Edwards, and Alfred H. Schmidt. "Management and Financial Controls for Men's Clothing Stores." *Indiana Business Information Bulletin*, no. 42, Bloomington: Graduate School of Business, 1961.
- Lerner, Eric. *Advanced Technologies in the Apparel Industry*, Business Opportunity Report, Stamford, CT: Business Communications Co., 1979.
- Lewis, Jerre G., and Leslie D. Renn. *How to Start and Manage an Apparel Store Business: A Practical Way to Start Your Own Business*. 1999. Reprint Interlochen, MI: Lewis & Renn Associates, 2004.
- Marx, Eli, and John Burcham. *Three Leading Multinational Companies in the Textiles, Garment and Leather Industries*. London: International Textile, Garment and Leather Workers' Federation, 1972.
- Millis, H. A. "Unemployment Insurance in the Men's Clothing Industry of Chicago." *The University Journal of Business* 2, no. 2 (1924): 157-68.
- Mitchell, Thomas Warner. "Waste in the Manufacture of Men's and Boys' Ready-to-Wear Clothing." *Annals of the American Academy of Political and Social Science* 97, The Revival of American Business (1921): 43-63.
- Multinational Companies in the Textile, Garment and Leather Industries. Brussels: The Federation, 1984.
- New York City Business Sourcebook: New York City Apparel & Accessories Guide. New York: New York Business Information Co., 1996.
- O'Malley, Terence Michael. *Nelly Don: A Stitch in Time*. Kansas City, MO: The Covington Group, 2006.
- Olian, JoAnne. *Everyday Fashions of the Fifties as Pictured in Sears Catalogs*. Mineola, NY: Dover Publications, 2002.
- Power, Brendan. *Women's Retail Clothing, The Small Business Success Guide.* Frenchs Forest, N.S.W.: Pearson Education Australia Pty. Ltd., 2001.

- Robinson, Dwight E. "The Importance of Fashions in Taste to Business History: An Introductory Essay." *The Business History Review* 37, no. 1/2, Special Illustrated Fashion Issue (1963): 5-36.
- Roehr, Mary A. Sewing as a Home Business. Sedona, AZ: Mary Roehr Books & Video, 2001.
- Schereschewsky, Joseph Williams and Davis H. Tuck. "Studies in Vocational Diseases." *Public Health Bulletin* 71. Washington, DC: Government Printing Office, 1915.
- Scranton, Philip. Beauty and Business: Commerce, Gender, and Culture in Modern America, Hagley Perspectives on Business and Culture. New York: Routledge, 2001.
- Segal, Marvin E. From Rags to Riches: Success in Apparel Retailing. New York: Wiley, 1982.
- Smith, Bernard. "Market Development, Industrial Development: The Case of the American Corset Trade, 1860-1920." *The Business History Review* 65, no.1 (1991): 91-129.
- Stanford, Melvin J., and Howard E. Vance. *Collier Company*. Case Studies Series, no.19. Provo: College of Business, Brigham Young University, 1972.
- Tonning, Wayland A. "Department Stores in Down State Illinois, 1889-1943." *The Business History Review* 29, no. 4 (1955): 335-49.
- Waldinger, Roger. "Immigrant Enterprise in the New York Garment Industry." *Social Problems* 32, no. 1, (1984): 60-71.
- ——. "Structural Opportunity or Ethnic Advantage? Immigrant Business Development in New York." *International Migration Review* 23, no. 1 (1989): 48-72.
- ——. Ethnic Enterprise and Industrial Change: A Case Study of the New York City Garment Industry. Ann Arbor, MI: University Microfilms International, 1983.
- Wright, Annette C. "Strategy and Structure in the Textile Industry: Spencer Love and Burlington Mills, 1923-1962." *The Business History Review* 69, no.1 (1995): 42-79.
- Zakim, Michael. "A Ready-Made Business: The Birth of the Clothing Industry in America." *The Business History Review* 73, no. 1 (1999): 61-90.

2. Manufacturing

- Berkstresser, Gordon A., David R. Buchanan, and Perry L. Grady. *Automation in the Textile Industry: From Fibers to Apparel*. Manchester, UK: Textile Institute, 1995.
- Brissenden, Paul F. "Progress and Poverty in Millinery Manufacturing." *The Journal of Business of the University of Chicago* 12, no. 2 (1939): 111-31.
- Brissenden, Paul F., and John M. Keating. "Union-Management Co-Operation in Millinery Manufacturing in the New York Metropolitan Area." *Industrial and Labor Relations Review* 2, no. 1 (1948): 3-32.

- Capelin, Stanley J. *Technology Applied to Clothing Manufacturing*. New York: Clothing Manufacturers Association of the United States of America, 1968.
- DuBois, Frank L., Brian Toyne, and Michael D. Oliff. "International Manufacturing Strategies of U.S. Multinationals: A Conceptual Framework Based on a Four-Industry Study." *Journal of International Business Studies* 24, no. 2 (1993): 307-33.
- Feasibility Study and Overview for Na-Lor Manufacturing Company, a Division of Manhattan Industries: Client Number 1663: Covering Fold and Package Alternatives and Distribution Center Overview of Men's Knit Shirts and Sweaters. New York: Kurt Salmon Associates, 1976.
- Genius Rewarded: The Story of the Sewing Machine. New York: J.J. Caulon, Printer, 1880.
- Haig, Robert Murray. "Toward an Understanding of the Metropolis." *The Quarterly Journal of Economics* 40, no. 3 (1926): 402-34.
- Hall, Max, ed., and Roy B. Helfgott. *Made in New York; Case Studies in Metropolitan Manufacturing, New York Metropolitan Region Study*. Boston: Harvard University Press, 1959.
- Quataert, Jean H. "The Shaping of Women's Work in Manufacturing: Guilds, Households, and the State in Central Europe, 1648-1870." *The American Historical Review* 90, no. 5 (1985): 1122-48.
- Stone, Eugene E. Stone Manufacturing Company: The First Half-Century of Clothing a Changing World. New York: Newcomen Society of the United States, 1985.
- Williamson, C. Dickie. *Williamson-Dickie Manufacturing Company: A Partnership for Progress*. New York: Newcomen Society of the United States, 1985.

3. Retail

- Barmash, Isadore. Fashion, Retailing and a Bygone Era: Inside Women's Wear Daily. Washington, DC: Beard Books, 2005.
- Granger, Michele. *Case Studies in Merchandising Apparel and Soft Goods*. New York: Fairchild Publications, 1996.
- Harris, Beth. Famine and Fashion: Needlewomen in the Nineteenth Century. London: Ashgate, 2005.
- Hiebert, Daniel. "Jewish Immigrants and the Garment Industry of Toronto, 1901-1931: A Study of Ethnic and Class Relations." *Annals of the Association of American Geographers* 83, no. 2 (1993): 243-71.
- Jones, Fred Mitchell. "Retail Stores in the United States 1800-1860." *Journal of Marketing* 1, no. 2 (1936): 134-42.

- Kellogg, Ann T. In an Influential Fashion: An Encyclopedia of Nineteenth-and Twentieth-Century Fashion Designers and Retailers Who Transformed Dress. Westport, CT: Greenwood Press, 2002.
- Lazear, Edward P. "Retail Pricing and Clearance Sales." *The American Economic Review* 76, no. 1 (1986): 14-32.
- "Restraint of Trade. Boycott by Millinery Manufacturers of Retailers Purchasing From "Style Pirates" As a Violation of the Sherman Anti-Trust Act." *Virginia Law Review* 26, no. 6 (1940): 828-29.
- Rosen, Ellen Israel. *Making Sweatshops: The Globalization of the U.S. Apparel Industry*. Berkeley: University of California Press, 2002.
- Scranton, Philip. *Beauty and Business: Commerce, Gender, and Culture in Modern America*. New York: Routledge, 2001.
- Segal, Marvin E. From Rags to Riches: Success in Apparel Retailing. New York: Wiley, 1982.
- Tonning, Wayland A. "Department Stores in Down State Illinois, 1889-1943." *The Business History Review* 29, no. 4 (1955): 335-49.

Advertising

- Abe, Kazuo. *Labels and Tags: An International Collection of Great Label and Tag Designs*. Tokyo: P.I.E. Books, 1990.
- Advertisements of Men's and Boys' Apparel 1928-1929. Chicago: The National Association of Retail Clothiers and Furnishers, 1929.
- Bramley Fashions, Fall and Winter Edition, 1926. New York: Franklin Simon, 1926.
- Devlin & Co. Clothiers: We Lead the Clothing Trade of the Country. New York: Metropolitan Job Printing and Engraving Establishment, 1873.
- Finlayson, Iain. Denim: An American Legend. New York: Simon & Schuster, 1990.
- Hill, Daniel Delis. "As Seen in Vogue: A Century of American Fashion in Advertising." Costume Society of America Series. Lubbock, TX: Texas Tech University Press, 2004.
- Just in Time: Published by Baldwin the Clothier, N.E. Cor. Canal and Broadway, and Given Away to the Public. New York: J. K. Lees, printer, 1870.
- Leggett & Thorne, Having Removed to No. 36 Church Street, Will Continue the Importing and Jobbing of Hosiery, Gloves, Men's Women's and Children's Cotton, Merino and Wool under-Shirts and Drawers, Men's Knit Wool Jackets. New York: 1857.
- Malossi, Giannino. Apparel Arts. Milan: Electa, 1989.
- New Bramley Dresses for Spring and Summer. New York: Franklin Simon, 1900.

Simmons, George W. This Is Oak Hall, in North Street, Boston. This Is the Man Who Erected Oak Hall, in North Street. This Is the Man, Polite and Gay, Who Stands in the Van from Day to Day of the Famous Oak Hall, in North Street. Boston: Geo. W. Simmons, 1854.

5. Technology

- Capelin, Stanley J. *Technology Applied to Clothing Manufacturing*. New York: Clothing Manufacturers Association of the United States of America, 1968.
- Crail, Jennifer, and Margaret Maynard. "Making an Appearance: Fashion, Dress and Consumption." *The Journal of Dress, Body and Culture* 8, no. 4. (2004).
- Fashioning the Modern Woman: The Art of the Couturiere, 1919-1939. New York: Museum at the Fashion Institute of Technology, 2004.
- Gamber, Wendy. ""Reduced to Science": Gender, Technology, and Power in the American Dressmaking Trade, 1860-1910." *Technology and Culture* 36, no. 3 (1995): 455-82.
- Kidwell, Claudia Brush and Margaret C. S. Christman. *Suiting Everyone: The Democratization of Clothing in America*. Washington, DC: Smithsonian Institution Press, 1974.
- McEvoy, Arthur F. "The Triangle Shirtwaist Factory Fire of 1911: Social Change, Industrial Accidents, and the Evolution of Common-Sense Causality." *Law & Social Inquiry* 20, no. 2 (1995): 621-51.
- Scott, A. J. Industrial Organization and the Logic of Intra-Metropolitan Location, III: A Case Study of the Women's Dress Industry in the Greater Los Angeles Region. Economic Geography 60, no. 1 (1984): 3-27.
- Steele, Valerie. *Fifty Years of Fashion: New Look to Now.* 1997. Reprint, New Haven: Yale University Press, 2006.
- Streiter, Richard, and Richard McComb. *Charles James: Architect of Fashion: From the Wardrobe of Lisa Kirk & the Collections of Homer Layne & FIT.* New York: Fashion Institute of Technology, 1993.
- Stylios, George. *Textile Objective Measurement and Automation in Garment Manufacture*. New York: E. Horwood, 1991.

The Technology Challenge, Break with the Past, Explore the Future: Proceedings, October 31-November 1, 1989, Atlanta Hyatt Regency Hotel, Atlanta, Georgia: American Apparel Manufacturers Association's--16th International Apparel Research Conference. Arlington, VA: The American Apparel Manufacturers Association, 1989.

6. Management

- Baum, Richard, Margaret Mager, and George Strachan. *Apparel Supply Chain Management: Less Fashion Risk, Greater Financial Rewards*. New York: Goldman Sachs, 1998.
- Berkstresser, Gordon A., David R. Buchanan, and Perry L. Grady. *Automation in the Textile Industry: From Fibers to Apparel*. Manchester, UK: Textile Institute, 1995.

- Capelin, Stanley J. *Technology Applied to Clothing Manufacturing*. New York: Clothing Manufacturers Association of the United States of America, 1968.
- Chamberlain, Joseph Perkins, Sidney Hillman, and Eduard Lindeman. *Conference as an Agency of Industrial Progress*. New York: American Council: Institute of Pacific Relations, 1929.
- Chuter, A. J. *Introduction to Clothing Production Management*. Cambridge, MA: Oxford University Press, 1995.
- Feasibility Study and Overview for Na-Lor Manufacturing Company, a Division of Manhattan Industries: Client Number 1663: Covering Fold and Package Alternatives and Distribution Center Overview of Men's Knit Shirts and Sweaters. New York: Kurt Salmon Associates, 1976.
- Figures Help; a Practical Guide to Management Accountancy Systems for the Clothing Manufacturer. London: H.M.S.O., 1968.
- Greenwald, Richard A. *The Triangle Fire, the Protocols of Peace, and Industrial Democracy in Progressive Era New York, Labor in Crisis.* Philadelphia: Temple University Press, 2005.
- Hay, Leon Edwards, and Alfred H. Schmidt. "Management and Financial Controls for Men's Clothing Stores." *Indiana Business Information Bulletin*, No. 42. Bloomington: Indiana University 1961.
- Hix, John Lloyd. An Inquiry into the Decision Criteria Used by Men's Wear Buyers in Department and Specialty Stores in Determining Whether to Include a New Product in Their Product Offering. Fayetteville: University of Arkansas, 1972.
- Hochman, Julius. *Industry Planning through Collective Bargaining a Program for Modernizing the New York Dress Industry*: 1900. Reprint, New York: The Kalkhoff Press, 1941.
- How Order Information Serves Apparel Management. Arlington, VA: A.A.M.A., 1974.
- Lokers, Gertrude. How We Managed Our Way to the Top. Zeeland, MI: G. Lokers, 1977.
- Midgley, David, and Gordon Prestoungrange. *Management Problems in Fashion Industries*. Bedford, England: Cranfield Institute Press, 1975.
- Mutscheller, Peter Michael. *The Luxury Challenge: Managing an International High-Fashion House for Growth and Performance*. Konstanz: Universitätsverlag Kostanz, 1992.
- Palpacuer, Florence. Development of Core-Periphery Forms of Organization: Some Lessons from the New York Garment Industry. Geneva: International Institute for Labour Studies, 1997.
- Segal, Marvin E. "From Rags to Riches: Success in Apparel Retailing." New York: Wiley, 1982.
- Selzer, E. G. Efficiency in Clothing Manufacture. London: National Trade Press, 1952.

C. FASHION AND BUSINESS

- 1920s Fashions from B. Altman & Company. Mineola, NY: Dover Publications, 1999.
- Baum, Richard, Margaret Mager, and George Strachan. *Apparel Supply Chain Management: Less Fashion Risk, Greater Financial Rewards*. New York: Goldman Sachs, 1998.
- Birnbaum, David. *Birnbaum's Global Guide to Winning the Great Garment War*. New York: Fashiondex, Inc., 2005.
- Bissonnette, Anne. Chado Ralph Rucci. Ohio: Kent State University, 2005.
- Blum, Stella. *Everyday Fashions of the Thirties as Pictured in Sears Catalogs*. New York: Dover Publications, 1986.
- Bruzzi, Stella, and Pamela Church Gibson. Fashion Cultures: Theories, Explorations, and Analysis. London and New York: Routledge, 2000.
- Bryant, Michele Wesen. WWD Illustrated: 1960s-1990s. New York: Fairchild Publications, 2004.
- Clark, Judith. Spectres: When Fashion Turns Back. London: Victoria and Albert Museum, 2005.
- Cowan, John, and Philippe Garner. *John Cowan: Through the Light Barrier*. Munich: Schirmer/Mosel, 1999.
- Djelic, Marie-Laure, and Antti Ainamo. "The Coevolution of New Organizational Forms in the Fashion Industry: A Historical and Comparative Study of France, Italy, and the United States." *Organization Science* 10, no. 5, 622-37.
- DNR Century: 100 Years of Fashion. Special Collector's Edition. New York: Fairchild Fashion & Merchandising Group, 1999.
- DNR, One Hundredth Year. Special Centennial Issue. New York: Fairchild Fashion & Merchandising Group, 1992.
- Elite Fashions Catalog, 1904. Mineola, NY: Dover Publications, 1996.
- Fedoruk, H. Corsets and Crinolines: Historic Costumes 1800-1950: Household Economics Collection, University of Alberta. Edmonton: University of Alberta, 1974.
- A Century of Fashions 1816-1916: A Few Interesting Facts About Their Origin. Liberty, IN: Express Print. Co., 1916.
- Field, John W. Fig Leaves and Fortunes: A Fashion Company Named Warnaco. West Kennebunk, ME: Phoenix Pub., 1990.
- Freudenberger, Herman. "Fashion, Sumptuary Laws, and Business." *The Business History Review* 37, no. 1/2, Special Illustrated Fashion Issue (1963): 37-48.
- Goldman, Marshall I. "'From Sputniks to Panties:' Is Economic Development Really That Easy?" *The Business History Review* 37, no. 1/2, Special Illustrated Fashion Issue (1963): 81-93.

- Green, Nancy L. "Art and Industry: The Language of Modernization in the Production of Fashion." *French Historical Studies* 18, no. 3 (1994): 722-48.
- Harris, Beth. Famine and Fashion: Needlewomen in the Nineteenth Century. London: Ashgate, 2005.
- Harris, Kristina. *The Home Pattern Company 1914 Fashions Catalog*. New York: Dover Publications, 1995.
- Jones, Jennifer M. "Repackaging Rousseau: Femininity and Fashion in Old Regime France." *French Historical Studies* 18, no. 4 (1994): 939-67.
- Livoni, Phillip. Russell's Standard Fashions, 1915-1919. Mineola, NY: Dover Publications, 1996.
- Loring, John, Eleanor Lambert, and James Galanos. *Tiffany in Fashion*. New York: Harry N. Abrams, 2003.
- O'Malley, Terence Michael. *Nelly Don: A Stitch in Time*. Kansas City, MO: The Covington Group, 2006.
- Olian, JoAnne. *Everyday Fashions of the Forties as Pictured in Sears Catalogs*. New York: Dover Publications, 1992.
- . Everyday Fashions, 1909-1920, as Pictured in Sears Catalogs. New York: Dover, 1995.
- ------. Everyday Fashions of the Sixties: As Pictured in Sears Catalogs. Mineola, NY: Dover, 1999
- ——. Everyday Fashions of the Fifties as Pictured in Sears Catalogs. Mineola, NY: Dover Publications, 2002.
- ———. *Children's Fashions, 1900-1950, as Pictured in Sears Catalogs.* Mineola, NY: Dover Publications, 2003.
- Robinson, Dwight E. "The Importance of Fashions in Taste to Business History: An Introductory Essay." *The Business History Review* 37, no. 1/2, Special Illustrated Fashion Issue (1963): 5-36.
- Scranton, Philip. Beauty and Business: Commerce, Gender, and Culture in Modern America, Hagley Perspectives on Business and Culture. New York: Routledge, 2001.
- Shih, Joy. Fashionable Clothing from the Sears Catalogs: Late 1950s, A Schiffer Book for Collectors. Atglen, PA: Schiffer, 1997.
- ———. Fashionable Clothing from the Sears Catalogs: Mid 1960s, A Schiffer Book for Collectors. Atglen, PA: Schiffer, 1997.
- Skinner, Tina. Fashionable Clothing from the Sears Catalogs: Late '70s, A Schiffer Book for Collectors. Atglen, PA: Schiffer, 1998.

Collectors & Designers. Atglen, PA: Schiffer, 1999.
———. Fashionable Clothing from the Sears Catalogs: Mid-1970s, A Schiffer Book for Collectors and Designers. Atglen, PA: Schiffer, 1999.
Fashionable Clothing from the Sears Catalogs: Early 1940s, A Schiffer Book for Collectors. Atglen, PA 19310: Schiffer, 2002.
———. Fashionable Clothing from the Sears Catalogs: Early 1960s with Price Guide, A Schiff Book for Designers & Collectors. Atglen, PA: Schiffer, 2002.
. Fashionable Clothing from the Sears Catalogs: Mid 1950s. Atglen, PA: Schiffer, 2002
Fashionable Clothing from the Sears Catalogs: Early 1940s, A Schiffer Book for Collectors. Atglen, PA: Schiffer, 2003.
Skinner, Tina, and Lindy McCord. Fashionable Clothing from the Sears Catalogs: Mid 1940s, a Schiffer Book for Collectors. Atglen, PA: Schiffer, 2003.
Fashionable Clothing from the Sears Catalogs: Late 1940's, with Price Guide. Atglen, PA: Schiffer, 2004.
Smith, Desire. Fashionable Clothing from the Sears Catalogs: Early 1950s, A Schiffer Book for Collectors. Atglen, PA: Schiffer, 1998.
Fashionable Clothing from the Sears Catalogs: Early 1970s, A Schiffer Book for Collectors. Atglen, PA: Schiffer, 1998.
———. Fashionable Clothing from the Sears Catalogs: Late 1960s, A Schiffer Book for Collectors. Atglen, PA: Schiffer, 1998.
Sproles, George B. "Analyzing Fashion Life Cycles: Principles and Perspectives." <i>Journal of Marketing</i> 45, no. 4 (1981): 116-24.

F 1 1000 4 C 1:00 D 1 C

- Walsh, Margaret. "The Democratization of Fashion: The Emergence of the Women's Dress Pattern Industry." *The Journal of American History* 66, no. 2 (1979): 299-31.
- Welters, Linda, and Patricia A. Cunningham, eds. *Twentieth-Century American Fashion*. New York and Oxford: Oxford University Press, 2005.

D. WORK, WORKERS, LABOR

1. General Studies

- Argersinger, Jo Ann E. *Making the Amalgamated: Gender, Ethnicity, and Class in the Baltimore Clothing Industry, 1899-1939.* Baltimore: Johns Hopkins University Press, 1999.
- Armbruster-Sandoval, Ralph. Globalization and Cross-Border Labor Solidarity in the Americas: The Anti-Sweatshop Movement and the Struggle for Social Justice. New York: Routledge, 2005.

- Balser, Diane, Sisterhood & Solidarity: Feminism and Labor in Modern Times. Boston: South End Press, 1987.
- Benin, Leigh David. The New Labor Radicalism and New York City's Garment Industry: Progressive Labor Insurgents in the 1960s. New York and London: Garland, 2000.
- Bragg, Emma W. A Study of Work Motivation Attitudes of Apparel Workers: Power Needs Construct. Nashville, TN: E.W. Bragg, 1985.
- Budish, Jacob M., and George Henry Soule. *The New Unionism in the Clothing Industry*. 1920. Reprint, New York: Russell & Russell, 1968.
- Charles, Ruth A. *Immigrant Women's Lives: Weaving Garment Work and Legislative Policy*, New York: Garland Publishing, 1999.
- Chateauvert, Melinda. Marching Together: Women of the Brotherhood of Sleeping Car Porters, Women in American History; the Working Class in American History. Urbana: University of Illinois Press, 1997.
- Chin, Margaret May. Sewing Women: Immigrants and the New York City Garment Industry, Columbia Comparative Studies on Ethnicity and Race. New York: Columbia University Press, 2005.
- ——. Sewing Women Immigrants and the New York City Garment Industry. *Columbia Comparative Studies on Ethnicity and Race*, Columbia University Press, 2005.
- Cobble, Dorothy Sue. Sisters in the Craft: Waitresses and Their Unions in the Twentieth Century. Urbana: University of Illinois Press, 1986.
- ——. *Dishing It Out: Waitresses and Their Unions in the Twentieth Century.* Urbana: University of Illinois Press, 1991.
- ——. Women and Unions: Forging a Partnership. Ithaca, NY: ILR Press, 1993.
- DeVault, Ileen A. *United Apart: Gender and the Rise of Craft Unionism*. Ithaca: Cornell University Press, 2004.
- Dollinger, Sol, and Genora Johnson Dollinger. *Not Automatic: Women and the Left in the Forging of the Auto Workers' Union.* New York: Monthly Review Press, 2000.
- Dye, Nancy Schrom, As Equals and as Sisters: Feminism, the Labor Movement, and the Women's Trade Union League of New York. Columbia: University of Missouri Press, 1980.
- Foner, Philip Sheldon. *The Factory Girls: A Collection of Writings on Life and Struggles in the New England Factories of the 1840's*. Urbana: University of Illinois Press, 1977.
- . Women and the American Labor Movement: From Colonial Times to the Eve of World War I. New York: Free Press, 1979.

- ———. Women and the American Labor Movement: From World War I to the Present. New York: Free Press, 1980.
- ------. Women and the American Labor Movement: From the First Trade Unions to the Present. New York: Free Press: London, 1982.
- Fonow, Mary Margaret. "Union Women: Forging Feminism in the United Steelworkers of America." *Social Movements, Protest, and Contention* 17, University of Minnesota Press, 2003.
- Fox, Geoffrey E. "Hispanic Organizers and Business Agents in the New York Apparel Industries." *Center for Latin American and Caribbean Studies, Occasional Papers* 43, New York: New York University, 1984.
- Frazza, Christian. *Index to References to Women, Garment Workers, Clerical Workers, Cannery Workers, and Minorities in the CIO News, 1937-1955*. Madison: State Historical Society of Wisconsin, 1983.
- Glenn, Susan A. *Daughters of the Shtetl: Life and Labor in the Immigrant Generation*. 1990. Reprint, Ithaca: Cornell University Press, 1990.
- Gouke, Cecil Granville. *The Amalgamated Clothing Workers of America, 1940-1966.* New York: Carlton Press, 1972.
- Gould, Jean. Sidney Hillman, Great American. Boston: Houghton Mifflin, 1952.
- Green, Nancy L. Ready-to-Wear and Ready-to-Work: A Century of Industry and Immigrants in Paris and New York, Comparative and International Working-Class History; Durham: Duke University Press, 1997.
- Greig, Gertrud Berta. "Seasonal Fluctuations in Employment in the Women's Clothing Industry in New York." *Studies in History, Economics and Public Law,* No. 554. New York: Columbia University Press, 1949.
- Hale, Angela, and Jane Wills. Threads of Labour: Garment Industry Supply Chains from the Workers' Perspective. Malden, MA: Blackwell Pub., 2005.
- Hamme, Nancy Steele. *Images of Seamstresses in the Art of William Gropper*. New York: State University of New York, 1989.
- Hardman, J. B. S. "The Needle-Trades Unions: A Labor Movement at Fifty." *Social Research* 27, no. 3, 1960.
- Higginbotham, Elice. "The Workplace: New York Garment District: A Latin American Immigrant's Experience in a U.S. Factory." *Theology in the Americas* 6. New York: Theology in the Americas, 1978
- Honeyman, Katrina. Well Suited: A History of the Leeds Clothing Industry, 1850-1990. New York: Oxford, 2000.
- Ippolito, Donna. The Uprising of the 20,000. Pittsburgh: Motheroot Publications, 1979.

- Jacoby, Robin Miller. The British and American Women's Trade Union Leagues, 1890-1925: A Case Study of Feminism and Class, Scholarship in Women's History 7. Brooklyn: Carlson, 1994.
- Jensen, Joan M., and Sue Davidson. A Needle, a Bobbin, a Strike: Women Needleworkers in America, Women in the Political Economy. Philadelphia: Temple University Press, 1984.
- Kenneally, James J. *Women and American Trade Unions*. 1978. Reprint, Montréal and St. Albans, VT: Eden Press, 1981.
- Kessler-Harris, Alice. Gendering Labor History. Urbana, IL: University of Illinois, 2006
- Kirshbaum, Louis. *The Sewing Circle*. Los Angeles: De Vorss, 1952.
- Kornbluh, Joyce L., and Mary Frederickson. Sisterhood and Solidarity: Workers' Education for Women, 1914-1984. Philadelphia: Temple University Press, 1984.
- Laslett, John H. M., and Mary Tyler. *The ILGWU in Los Angeles, 1907-1988*. Inglewood, CA: Ten Star Press, 1989.
- Levine, Susan, and Marjorie Lightman. *Hand in Hand: Episodes in the History of Women and the Trade Union Movement*. New York: Institute for Research in History, 1978.
- Levitan, Mark. *Opportunity at Work: The New York City Garment Industry*. New York: Community Service Society of New York, 1998.
- Malkiel, Theresa Serber. *The Diary of a Shirtwaist Striker: A Story of the Shirtwaist Makers' Strike in New York.* 1910. Reprint, Ithaca: ILR Press, 1990.
- McCreesh, Carolyn D. Women in the Campaign to Organize Garment Workers, 1880-1917, Modern American History. New York: Garland Pub., 1985.
- Milkman, Ruth. Women, Work, and Protest: A Century of US Women's Labor History. 1985. Reprint, London: Routledge, 1991.
- ———. Gender at Work: The Dynamics of Job Segregation by Sex During World War II, The Working Class in American History. Urbana: University of Illinois Press, 1987.
- Mort, Jo-Ann. *Not Your Father's Union Movement: Inside the AFL-CIO*. London and New York: Verso, 1999.
- Myerson, Michael. *The ILGWU: A Union That Fights for Lower Wages*. Boston: New England Free Press, 1968.
- Nutter, Kathleen Banks. *The Necessity of Organization: Mary Kenney O'Sullivan and Trade Unionism for Women, 1892-1912*, New York: Garland Pub., 2000.
- O'Farrell, Brigid, and Joyce L. Kornbluh. *Rocking the Boat: Union Women's Voices, 1915-1975*. New Brunswick, NJ: Rutgers University Press, 1996.

- Pope, Jesse Eliphalet. *The Clothing Industry in New York*. 1905. Reprint, New York: B. Franklin, 1970.
- Robinson, Dwight Edwards. *Collective Bargaining and Market Control in the New York Coat and Suit Industry*. New York: Columbia University Press, 1949.
- Rosen, Ellen Israel. *Making Sweatshops: The Globalization of the U.S. Apparel Industry*. Berkeley: University of California Press, 2002.
- Roth, Silke. "Building Movement Bridges: The Coalition of Labor Union Women." *Contributions in Sociology*, No. 138 (2003).
- Soltow, Martha Jane, Carolyn Forché, and Murray Massre. *Women in American Labor History,* 1825-1935: An Annotated Bibliography. East Lansing: Michigan State University, 1972.
- Soyer, Daniel. A Coat of Many Colors: Immigration, Globalism, and Reform in the New York City Garment Industry. New York: Fordham University Press, 2005.
- Steedman, Mercedes. Angels of the Workplace: Women and the Construction of Gender Relations in the Canadian Clothing Industry, 1890-1940. New York: Oxford University Press, 1997.
- Stein, Leon. *Out of the Sweatshop: The Struggle for Industrial Democracy*. New York: Quadrangle/New York Times Book Co., 1977.
- Strong, Earl D. *The Amalgamated Clothing Workers of America*. Grinnell, IA: Herald Register Pub. Co., 1940.
- Tax, Meredith. *The Rising of the Women: Feminist Solidarity and Class Conflict, 1880-1917.* 1980. Reprint, Urbana, IL: University of Illinois Press, 2001.
- Tyler, Gus. Look for the Union Label: A History of the International Ladies' Garment Workers' Union. Armonk, NY: M.E. Sharpe, 1995.
- Waldinger, Roger. *Immigration and Industrial Change a Case Study of Immigrants in the New York City Garment Industry*. Cambridge: Joint Center for Urban Studies of MIT and Harvard University, 1982.
- Waldinger, Roger David. Through the Eye of the Needle: Immigrants and Enterprise in New York's Garment Trades. 1986. Reprint, New York: New York University Press, 1989.
- Weber, Katharine. *Triangle*. New York: Farrar, Straus and Giroux, 2006.
- Wertheimer, Barbara M. We Were There: The Story of Working Women in America. New York: Pantheon Books, 1977.
- Wertheimer, Barbara M. and Anne H. Nelson, *Trade Union Women: A Study of Their Participation in New York City*. New York: Praeger, 1975.
- Willett, Mabel. "The Employment of Women in the Clothing Trade." *Columbia University Studies in the Social Sciences* 42 (1968).

- Wong, Kent, and Julie Monroe. *Sweatshop Slaves: Asian Americans in the Garment Industry*. Los Angeles: UCLA Center for Labor Research and Education, 2006.
- Zaretz, Charles Elbert. *The Amalgamated Clothing Workers of America; a Study in Progressive Trades-Unionism*. New York: Ancon Publishing Company, 1934.
- Zeitlin, Maurice. How Mighty a Force?: Studies of Workers' Consciousness and Organization in the United States. Los Angeles: Institute of Industrial Relations, University of California Los Angeles. 1983.

2. Worker Biographies and Autobiographies

- Bisno, Abraham. Abraham Bisno, Union Pioneer; an Autobiographical Account of Bisno's Early Life and the Beginnings of Unionism in the Women's Garment Industry. 1967. Reprint, Madison: University of Wisconsin Press, 1995.
- Dubinsky, David, and A. H. Raskin. *David Dubinsky: A Life with Labor*. New York: Simon and Schuster, 1977.
- Foster, Sarah Jane, Emma Ann Foster, and Wayne E. Reilly. *The Diaries of Sarah Jane and Emma Ann Foster: A Year in Maine during the Civil War*. Rockport, ME: Picton Press, 2002.
- Hasanovitz, Elizabeth. *One of Them Chapters from a Passionate Autobiography*. Boston: Houghton Mifflin Co., 1918.
- Kaufman, Regina. Sketches of a Working Woman. Los Angeles: R. Kaufman, 1984.
- Leeder, Elaine J. *The Gentle General: Rose Pesotta, Anarchist and Labor Organizer*. Albany: State University of New York Press, 1993.
- Libman, Yitshak. Sidni Hilman 1887-1946. New York: Vokhnblat, 1946.
- Parmet, Robert D. The Master of Seventh Avenue: David Dubinsky and the American Labor Movement. New York: New York University Press, 2005.
- Soule, George Henry. Sidney Hillman, Labor Statesman. New York: Macmillan, 1939.

E. IMMIGRANTS AND ETHNICS IN THE GARMENT TRADES

1. General Studies

- Aldrich, Howard E., and Roger Waldinger. "Ethnicity and Entrepreneurship." *Annual Review of Sociology* 16 (1990): 111-35.
- Baker, Kevin. Dreamland. 1999. Reprint, New York: Perennial, 2006.
- Charles, Ruth A. *Immigrant Women's Lives: Weaving Garment Work and Legislative Policy*. New York: Garland Pub., 1999.

- Chin, Margaret May. Sewing Women: Immigrants and the New York City Garment Industry, Columbia Comparative Studies on Ethnicity and Race. New York: Columbia University Press, 2005.
- Cobble, Dorothy Sue. Women and Unions: Forging a Partnership. Ithaca, NY: ILR Press, 1993.
- Delgado, Gary. How the Empress Gets New Clothes: Asian Immigrant Women Advocates Vs. Jessica Mcclintock Inc. Oakland, CA: Applied Research Center, 1994.
- Dennis, Richard. "Property and Propriety: Jewish Landlords in Early Twentieth-Century Toronto." *Transactions of the Institute of British Geographers* 22, no. 3 (1997): 377-97.
- Ewen, Elizabeth. "City Lights: Immigrant Women and the Rise of the Movies." *Signs* 5, no. 3, (1980): S45-S66.
- Fox, Geoffrey E. "Hispanic Organizers and Business Agents in the New York Apparel Industries." *Center for Latin American and Caribbean Studies, Occasional Papers* 43, New York: New York University, 1984.
- Glenn, Susan A. *Daughters of the Shtetl: Life and Labor in the Immigrant Generation*. 1990, Reprint, Ithaca: Cornell University Press, 1990.
- Green, Nancy L. "Women and Immigrants in the Sweatshop: Categories of Labor Segmentation Revisited." *Comparative Studies in Society and History* 38, no. 3 (1996): 411-33.
- ———. Ready-to-Wear and Ready-to-Work: A Century of Industry and Immigrants in Paris and New York, Comparative and International Working-Class History. Durham: Duke University Press, 1997.
- Hiebert, Daniel. "Jewish Immigrants and the Garment Industry of Toronto, 1901-1931: A Study of Ethnic and Class Relations." *Annals of the Association of American Geographers* 83, no. 2 (1993): 243-71.
- Houstoun, Marion F., Roger G. Kramer, and Joan Mackin Barrett. "Female Predominance in Immigration to the United States since 1930: A First Look." *International Migration Review* 18, no. 4 (1984): 908-63.
- Korman, Gerd. "Ethnic Democracy and Its Ambiguities: The Case of the Needle Trade Unions." American Jewish History 75 (1986).
- Light, Ivan, Richard B. Bernard, and Rebecca Kim. "Immigrant Incorporation in the Garment Industry of Los Angeles." *International Migration Review* 33, no. 1 (1999): 5-25.
- Mort, Jo-Ann. Not Your Father's Union Movement: Inside the AFL-CIO. London and New York: 1999.
- Soyer, Daniel. A Coat of Many Colors: Immigration, Globalism, and Reform in the New York City Garment Industry. New York: Fordham University Press, 2005.

Waldinger, Roger, Immigration and Industrial Change a Case Study of Immigrants in the New York City Garment Industry. Cambridge: Joint Center for Urban Studies of MIT and Harvard University, 1982. —. "The Occupational and Economic Integration of the New Immigrants." Law and Contemporary Problems 45, no. 2, U.S. Immigration Policy (1982): 197-222. -. "Immigrant Enterprise in the New York Garment Industry." Social Problems 32, no. 1, Thematic Issue on Minorities and Social Movements (1984): 60-71. ——. "Immigrant Enterprise: A Critique and Reformulation." *Theory and Society* 15, no. 1/2, Special Double Issue: Structures of Capital (1986): 249-85. ——. "Immigration and Urban Change." *Annual Review of Sociology* 15 (1989): 211-32. ——. "Structural Opportunity or Ethnic Advantage? Immigrant Business Development in New York." International Migration Review 23, no. 1 (1989): 48-72. ——. "From Ellis Island to LAX: Immigrant Prospects in the American City." *International* Migration Review 30, no. 4 (1996): 1078-86. ——. Through the Eye of the Needle: Immigrants and Enterprise in New York's Garment Trades. 1986. Reprint, New York: New York University Press, 1989.

2. Jewish Experience

- Brown, Howard M. *Political Factions and the Cloak Strike of 1926*. Unpublished manuscript. New York University, 1977.
- Dennis, Richard. "Property and Propriety: Jewish Landlords in Early Twentieth-Century Toronto." *Transactions of the Institute of British Geographers* 22, no. 3 (1997): 377-97.
- Glass, Montague. *Elkan Lubliner*. Garden City, NY: Doubleday, Page & Co., 1912. (Open Collections Program at Harvard University, Emigration and Immigration, Preservation Microfilm Collection 00002.)
- Glenn, Susan A. *Daughters of the Shtetl: Life and Labor in the Immigrant Generation*. 1990, Reprint, Ithaca: Cornell University Press, 1990.
- Herberg, Will. "Jewish Labor Movement in the United States: Early Years to World War I." *Industrial and Labor Relations Review* 5, no. 4 (1952): 501-23.
- Hiebert, Daniel. "Jewish Immigrants and the Garment Industry of Toronto, 1901-1931: A Study of Ethnic and Class Relations." *Annals of the Association of American Geographers* 83, no. 2 (1993): 243-71.
- Kessler-Harris, Alice. Gendering Labor History. Urbana, IL: University of Illinois Press. 2006.
- Okonkwo, Christopher N. "Of Repression, Assertion, and the Speakerly Dress: Anzia Yezierska's Salome of the Tenements." *Melus* 25, no. 1, Jewish American Literature (2000): 129-45.

- Soyer, Daniel. A Coat of Many Colors: Immigration, Globalism, and Reform in the New York City Garment Industry. New York: Fordham University Press, 2005.
- Waldinger, Roger. "Structural Opportunity or Ethnic Advantage? Immigrant Business Development in New York." *International Migration Review* 23, no. 1 (1989): 48-72.

F. NEW YORK

- Beckerman, Ilene. *Love, Loss, and What I Wore*. 1995. Reprint, Chapel Hill, NC: Algonquin Books of Chapel Hill, 2005.
- Benin, Leigh David. The New Labor Radicalism and New York City's Garment Industry: Progressive Labor Insurgents in the 1960s. London and New York: Garland, 2000.
- Bernstein, Leonard S. "How's Business?" "Don't Ask": Tales from the Garment Center. New York: Saturday Review Press, 1974.
- Black Exodus from South to North, 1915-1945: An Exhibition, March 31-September 15, 1986. New York: Black Fashion Museum, 1986.
- Bogen, Nancy. Bobe Mayse: A Tale of Washington Square. New York: Twickenham Press, 1993.
- Brissenden, P. F., and C. O. Swayzee. "The Use of the Labor Injunction in the New York Needle Trades I." *Political Science Quarterly* 44, no. 4 (1929): 548-68.
- Brissenden, Paul F., and John M. Keating. "Union-Management Co-Operation in Millinery Manufacturing in the New York Metropolitan Area." *Industrial and Labor Relations Review* 2, no. 1 (1948): 3-32.
- Brissenden, Paul F., and Cleon Oliphant Swayzee. *The Use of the Injunction in the New York Needle Trades*. New York: Academy of Political Science, 1930.
- Cherniss, Ruth Meyer. Max Meyer, 1876-1953. Princeton: Haskins Press, 1980.
- Chin, Margaret May. Sewing Women: Immigrants and the New York City Garment Industry, Columbia Comparative Studies on Ethnicity and Race. New York: Columbia University Press, 2005.
- Corcoran, James A. *Unemployment Insurance in the Cloak, Suit and Skirt Industry of New York City.* New York, 1925.
- Dye, Nancy Schrom. As Equals and as Sisters: Feminism, the Labor Movement, and the Women's Trade Union League of New York. Columbia: University of Missouri Press, 1980.
- Endelman, Gary Edward. Solidarity Forever, Rose Schneiderman and the Women's Trade Union League, Dissertations in American Biography. New York: Arno Press, 1982.

- Feldman, Egal. Fit for Men: A Study of New York's Clothing Trade. Washington, DC: Public Affairs Press, 1960.
- Fox, Geoffrey E. "Hispanic Organizers and Business Agents in the New York Apparel Industries." *Center for Latin American and Caribbean Studies, Occasional Papers* 43, New York: New York University, 1984.
- Godley, Andrew. Credit Rationing among Small Firm Networks in the London and New York Garment Industries, Discussion Papers in Economics and Management. Series A, no. 347. Reading, UK: University of Reading, Department of Economics, 1996.
- Goldman, E. S. *The New York Story: A History of the New York Clothing Industry, 1924-1949.*New York: New York Clothing Manufacturers' Exchange, 1949.
- Green, Nancy L. Ready-to-Wear and Ready-to-Work: A Century of Industry and Immigrants in Paris and New York, Comparative and International Working-Class History. Durham: Duke University Press, 1997.
- Greenwald, Richard A. *The Triangle Fire, the Protocols of Peace, and Industrial Democracy in Progressive Era New York, Labor in Crisis.* Philadelphia: Temple University Press, 2005.
- Greig, Gertrud Berta. "Seasonal Fluctuations in Employment in the Women's Clothing Industry in New York." *Studies in History, Economics and Public Law,* No. 554. New York: Columbia University Press, 1949.
- Hall, Max, ed., and Roy B. Helfgott. *Made in New York; Case Studies in Metropolitan Manufacturing, New York Metropolitan Region Study*. Cambridge: Harvard University Press, 1959.
- Hamme, Nancy Steele. *Images of Seamstresses in the Art of William Gropper*. New York: State University of New York, 1989.
- Hartman, Rose. *Birds of Paradise: An Intimate View of the New York Fashion World.* 1980. Reprint, New York: Dell Publishing Co., 1980.
- Higginbotham, Elice. "The Workplace: New York Garment District: A Latin American Immigrant's Experience in a U.S. Factory." *Theology in the Americas* 6. New York: Theology in the Americas, 1978.
- Ippolito, Donna. The Uprising of the 20,000. Pittsburgh: Motheroot Publications, 1979.
- Keyserling, Leon Hirsch. *The New York Dress Industry; Problems and Prospects*. Washington, DC, 1963.
- Levitan, Mark. *Opportunity at Work: The New York City Garment Industry*. New York: Community Service Society of New York, 1998.
- Malkiel, Theresa Serber. *The Diary of a Shirtwaist Striker: A Story of the Shirtwaist Makers' Strike in New York.* 1910. Reprint, Ithaca: ILR Press, 1990.

- Marot, Helen. "A Woman's Strike: An Appreciation of the Shirtwaist Makers of New York." Proceedings of the Academy of Political Science in the City of New York 1, no. 1 (1910): 119-28.
- Milbank, Caroline Rennolds. *New York Fashion: The Evolution of American Style*. 1989. Reprint, New York: Abrams, 1996.
- New York and Hollywood Fashion and Costume Design from the Brooklyn Museum Collection. New York: Clearwater, 1986.
- New York Spring Styles. New York: Bedell Company, 1912.
- Pope, Jesse Eliphalet. *The Clothing Industry in New York*. 1905. Reprint, New York: B. Franklin, 1970.
- Robinson, Dwight Edwards. Collective Bargaining and Market Control in the New York Coat and Suit Industry. New York: Columbia University Press, 1949.
- Sackman, Morris. Welfare Collective Bargaining in Action: A Study of the Health and Welfare Fund [and the Retirement Fund] of the Joint Board, Dress and Waistmakers' Union of New York City and Vicinity. Ithaca: New York State School of Industrial and Labor Relations, Cornell University, 1949.
- Salomon, Rosalie Kolodny. Designed in New York. New York: Byrd Publishing Co., 1966.
- Sices, Murray. Seventh Avenue. New York: Fairchild Publications, 1953.
- Soyer, Daniel. A Coat of Many Colors: Immigration, Globalism, and Reform in the New York City Garment Industry. New York: Fordham University Press, 2005.
- Stein, Leon. The Triangle Fire. Ithaca, NY: Cornell University Press, 2001.
- Von Drehle, Dave. *Triangle: The Fire That Changed America*. New York: Atlantic Monthly Press, 2003.
- Waldinger, Roger. *Immigration and Industrial Change a Case Study of Immigrants in the New York City Garment Industry*. Cambridge: Joint Center for Urban Studies of MIT and Harvard University, 1982.
- ------. Ethnic Enterprise and Industrial Change: A Case Study of the New York City Garment Industry. Ann Arbor, MI: University Microfilms International, 1983.
- -----. "Immigrant Enterprise in the New York Garment Industry." *Social Problems* 32, no. 1, Thematic Issue on Minorities and Social Movements (1984): 60-71.
- ——. "Structural Opportunity or Ethnic Advantage? Immigrant Business Development in New York." *International Migration Review* 23, no. 1 (1989): 48-72.
- ------. Through the Eye of the Needle: Immigrants and Enterprise in New York's Garment Trades. 1986. Reprint, New York: New York University Press, 1989.

- Weber, Katharine. *Triangle*. New York: Farrar, Straus and Giroux, 2006.
- Wertheimer, Barbara M., and Anne H. Nelson. *Trade Union Women: A Study of Their Participation in New York City Locals*. New York: Praeger, 1975.
- Women's Fashions of the Early 1900s: An Unabridged Republication of "New York Fashions, 1909." New York: Dover Publications, 1992.

G. GENDER

- Argersinger, Jo Ann E. *Making the Amalgamated: Gender, Ethnicity, and Class in the Baltimore Clothing Industry, 1899-1939.* Baltimore: Johns Hopkins University Press, 1999.
- Brydon, Anne, and S. A. Niessen, eds. *Consuming Fashion: Adorning the Transnational Body*, *Dress, Body, Culture*. UK and New York: Oxford University Press, 1998.
- Cobble, Dorothy Sue. Women and Unions: Forging a Partnership. Ithaca, NY: ILR Press, 1993.
- Coffin, Judith G. "Credit, Consumption, and Images of Women's Desires: Selling the Sewing Machine in Late Nineteenth-Century France." *French Historical Studies* 18, no. 3 (1994): 749-83.
- ——. "Gender and the Guild Order: The Garment Trades in Eighteenth-Century Paris." *The Journal of Economic History* 54, no. 4 (1994): 768-93.
- Collins, Jane L. "Mapping a Global Labor Market: Gender and Skill in the Globalizing Garment Industry." *Gender and Society* 16, no. 6 (2002): 921-40.
- Crane, Diana. Fashion and Its Social Agendas: Class, Gender, and Identity in Clothing. Chicago: University of Chicago Press, 2000.
- Davis, Fred. Fashion, Culture, and Identity. 1992. Reprint, Chicago: University of Chicago Press, 1994.
- DeVault, Ileen A. *United Apart: Gender and the Rise of Craft Unionism.* Ithaca: Cornell University Press, 2004.
- Fonow, Mary Margaret. "Union Women: Forging Feminism in the United Steelworkers of America." *Social Movements, Protest, and Contention* 17, University of Minnesota Press, 2003.
- Gamber, Wendy. ""Reduced to Science": Gender, Technology, and Power in the American Dressmaking Trade, 1860-1910." *Technology and Culture* 36, no. 3 (1995): 455-82.
- ——. "A Gendered Enterprise: Placing Nineteenth-Century Businesswomen in History." *The Business History Review* 72, no. 2, Gender and Business (1998): 188-217.
- Green, Nancy L. "Women and Immigrants in the Sweatshop: Categories of Labor Segmentation Revisited." *Comparative Studies in Society and History* 38, no. 3 (1996): 411-33.

- Harris, Beth. Famine and Fashion: Needlewomen in the Nineteenth Century. London: Ashgate, 2005.
- Jessup, David. *Worker Rights and Trade: Democracy's Next Frontier*. Washington, DC: American Institute for Free Labor Development, 1994.
- Kessler-Harris, Alice. Gendering Labor History. Urbana, IL: University of Illinois, 2006
- Kibria, Nazli. "Culture, Social Class, and Income Control in the Lives of Women Garment Workers in Bangladesh." *Gender and Society* 9, no. 3 (1995): 289-309.
- Martin, Phyllis M. "Contesting Clothes in Colonial Brazzaville." *The Journal of African History* 35, no. 3 (1994): 401-26.
- Milkman, Ruth. Gender at Work: The Dynamics of Job Segregation by Sex During World War II, The Working Class in American History. Urbana: University of Illinois Press, 1987.
- Paoletti, Jo B. "Clothing and Gender in America: Children's Fashions, 1890-1920." *Signs* 13, no. 1 (1987): 136-43.
- Scranton, Philip. Beauty and Business: Commerce, Gender, and Culture in Modern America, Hagley Perspectives on Business and Culture. New York: Routledge, 2001.
- Steedman, Mercedes. Angels of the Workplace: Women and the Construction of Gender Relations in the Canadian Clothing Industry, 1890-1940. New York: Oxford University Press, 1997.
- Steele, Valerie, ed. "Fashion and Eroticism: Special Issue." *Fashion Theory: The Journal of Dress, Body & Culture*, vol. 3, no. 4. Oxford, UK: Berg Publishers, 1997.
- Thompson, Craig J., and Diana L. Haytko. "Speaking of Fashion: Consumers' Uses of Fashion Discourses and the Appropriation of Countervailing Cultural Meanings." *The Journal of Consumer Research* 24, no. 1 (1997): 15-42.
- Wehrle, Louise. "Appearance and Gender Identity." Symposium Abstracts, Earleville, MD: The Costume Society of America, 1990.

III. Dissertations

- Aaron, Kay Jernigan. "The Amalgamated Clothing Workers of America and Soviet Russia, 1917-1933." Master's thesis, Georgia State University, 1987.
- Alexander, Joseph. "Development of Labor Relations in the New York Garment Industry: A
 Study in Industry-Wide Collective Bargaining in the Local Area Level." PhD
 diss., New York University, 1955.
- Alton, Leota Robertine. "A Study of Woman's Fashions in the United States between 1860-1900." Master's thesis, University of Iowa, 1949.
- Armbruster, Ralph Joseph. "Globalization and Cross-Border Labor Organizing in the Garment and Automobile Industries." PhD diss., University of California, Riverside, 1998.

- Aschmann, Mary. "The Consumption of Fashion and Resulting Identity Formation at St. Lawrence University." Bachelor's thesis, St. Lawrence University, 2002.
- Asher, Nina Lynn. "Dorothy Jacobs Bellanca: Feminist Trade Unionist, 1894-1946." PhD diss., State University of New York, 1982.
- Attanasio, Anthony F. "A History of the Political Activity of the Amalgamated Clothing Workers of America." Master's thesis, St. John's University, 1952.
- Badger, Allison. ""A Little Bit of Paradise": Women's Search for Comfort in Late-Nineteenth Century Montana." Master's thesis, University of Montana, 2003.
- Bae, Young-soo. "Men's Clothing Workers in Chicago, 1871-1929 Ethnicity, Class, and a Labor Union." PhD diss., Harvard University, 1988.
- Balasescu, Alexandru. "Fashioning Subjects, Unveiling Modernity: The Co-Motion of Aesthetics between Paris and Tehran." PhD diss., University of California, Irvine, 2004.
- Balser, Diane. "Sisterhood and Solidarity: The Role of Wage-Working Women's Organizations in Furthering Cooperation between Feminism and Unions." PhD diss., Brandeis University, 1983.
- Bao, Xiaolan. "Holding up More Than Half the Sky: A History of Women Garment Workers in New York's Chinatown, 1948-1991." PhD diss., New York University, 1991.
- Barbash, Micah J. "Cracking an Anti-Union Town: The Amalgamated Clothing Workers of America in Rochester, New York, 1913-1938." Master's thesis, Pennsylvania State University, 1992.
- Baros, Marjorie Leigh. "The Jewish Experience in the Early Development of the International Ladies' Garment Workers' Union in New York City." Bachelor's thesis, Brandeis University, 1982.
- Bates, Gloria C. "Manpower Needs, Performance Requirements, and Training Practices for Industrial Sewing Machine Operators as Reported by a Selected Group of Apparel Manufacturers." Master's thesis, University of Oklahoma, 1974.
- Bawden, William Thomas. "A Study of Occupations in the Cloak, Suit, and Skirt Industry of Greater New York and an Apprenticeship Plan for Cutters." PhD diss., Columbia University, 1914.
- Bay, Nancy Richter. "Changing Ideology and Present Attitudes in a Labor Union." Master's thesis, University of Chicago, 1948.
- Beaudoin, Pierre. "Fashion Leaders' Ethnocentrism and Attitude toward Buying Domestic and Imported Apparel." PhD diss., Florida State University, 1994.
- Bellman, Mary Jean. "Defending Workers' Rights in Export Processing Zones: Women's Labor Organizing in the Central American Garment Industry." PhD diss., University of New Mexico, 2003.

- Bender, Daniel E. "From Sweatshop to Model Shop: Anti-Sweatshop Campaigns and Languages of Labor and Organizing, 1880-1934." PhD diss., New York University, 2001.
- Benin, Leigh David. "A Red Thread in Garment: Progressive Labor and New York City's Industrial Heartland in the 1960s and 1970s." PhD diss., New York University, 1997.
- Berger, David E. "The Location and Performance of the Apparel Industry in Pennsylvania, 1963." MBA thesis, Drexel, 1966.
- Berman, Hyman. "Era of the Protocol a Chapter in the History of the International Ladies' Garment Workers' Union, 1910-1916." PhD diss., Columbia University, 1956.
- Bernstein, Louis R. "A Study of Group Status as a Factor in Intergroup Conflict: An Analysis of Institutionalization of Disputed Areas of Relationship between Labor and Management as Seen through a Study of the Emergence and Development of the Dress Industry Placement Unit of the New York State Employment Service." PhD diss., New York University, 1952.
- Bicheron, Michel Gabriel. "The Utilization of Management Techniques: A Comparative Analysis of French and American Apparel Companies." PhD diss., University of Texas at Austin, 1974.
- Billings, Victoria. "Altered Forever: A Women's Elite and the Transformation of American Fashion, Work and Culture, 1930-1955." PhD diss., University of California, Los Angeles, 1990.
- Biro, Kenneth Louis. "An Analysis of the Singer Strike, Elizabethport, New Jersey, 1949." Master's thesis, Rutgers University, 1950.
- Bitner, Lois Shirley. "Differences between Women's Apparel Retail Strategies: A Descriptive Study of Traditional Downtown and Shopping Mall Retailers." Master's thesis, Cornell University, 1977.
- Borgatta, Edgar F. "The Social System of a Garment Plant in New York City." Master's thesis, New York University, 1948.
- Brinson, Margaret Ruth. "The Sociological Implications of Women's Fashions in the Crinoline Era (1840-1860)." Master's thesis, University of Richmond, 1949.
- Brooks, Ethel Carolyn. "The Consumer's New Clothes: Global Protest, the New International Division of Labor, and Women's Work in the Garment Industry." PhD diss., New York University, 2000.
- Brown, Julia Saparoff. "Factors Affecting Union Strength: A Case Study of the International Ladies' Garment Workers" Union, 1900-1940." PhD diss., Yale University, 1998.
- Brown, Nathan. "A History of the Development of Education for the Apparel Industry in New York City: A Study in Industrial and Educational Cooperation." PhD diss., New York University, 1954.

- Brown, Raymond Gilbert. "The Influence of Profitability, Unionism and Government Policy on Wages in the Men's Clothing Industry, 1914-1951." Master's thesis, Cornell University, 1942.
- Budd, Marta Lynn. "Fashion in Profile: The Body in Georges Seurat's *La Grande Jatte* and *Les Poseuses*." Master's thesis, University of Oregon, 1998.
- Burak, Tabitha A. "The History of the Evolution of the Sewing Machine, the Development of the Dress Pattern Industry and Practical Advice: Three Important Factors Affecting Changes in Making Clothes at Home, 1865-1890." Master's thesis, University of Massachusetts at Amherst, 1987.
- Calathes, William. "An Economic Analysis of Corruption in the International Ladies' Garment Workers' Union." Master's thesis, John Jay College of Criminal Justice, 1983.
- Carson, Jennifer Lynn. "Your Sisters of Darker Hue African-American Women Workers and the Women's Trade Union League." Master's thesis, University of Western Ontario, 1998.
- Carstensen, Fred V. "American Multinational Corporations in Imperial Russia Chapters on Foreign Enterprise and Russian Economic Development." PhD diss. Yale University, 1976.
- Cavanaugh, Cheryl Lynn. "Fashion, Class, and Labor: Clothing in American Women's Fiction 1840-1913." PhD diss., University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign, 1998.
- Charles, Ruth A. "Immigrant Women's Lives: Weaving Garment Work and Legislative Policy." PhD diss., Syracuse University, 1997.
- Cheteauvert, M. Melinda. "Marching Together: Women of the Brotherhood of Sleeping Car Porters, 1925-1957." PhD diss., University of Pennsylvania, 1992.
- Cheung, Wing Sze. "A Study of Material Handling System for Apparel Industry." Master's thesis, Hong Kong University of Science and Technology, 2005.
- Chin, Margaret May. "Sewing Women: Immigrants and the New York City Garment Industry." PhD diss., Columbia University, 1998.
- Chow, Gon Ling. "Garment Sweatshops in the Ethnic Enclave: "Alterations Needed". Bachelor's thesis, Harvard University, 1992.
- Chowdhary, Usha. "Fashion Process as Related to Media Exposure, Social Participation, and Attitude toward Change among College Women in India." PhD diss., Ohio State University, 1984.
- Cobble, Dorothy Sue. "Sisters in the Craft: Waitresses and Their Unions in the Twentieth Century." PhD diss., Stanford University, 1986.
- Cohen, Ricki Carole Myers. "Fannia Cohn and the International Ladies' Garment Workers' Union." PhD diss., University of Southern California, 1976.

- Corsuti, Carl A. "A Study of Ways to Motivate Salesmen in the Apparel Industry More Effectively." PhD diss., St. John's University, 1969.
- Curtis-Niesewand, Jessica. "Breaking the Girl: The Social Institutions That Shaped Footbinding and Corsetry." PhD diss., Colorado State University, 2004.
- Darnell, Paula Jean. "From Victorian to Vamp: Women's Clothing 1900-1925." Master's thesis, University of Nevada, Reno, 1997
- Davies, Robert Bruce. "The International Operations of the Singer Manufacturing Company, 1854-1895." PhD diss., University of Wisconsin, 1967.
- Dell, Meaghan Hurd. "The Unionization of San Antonio Garment Workers During the Great Depression." Master's thesis, Texas State University-San Marcos, 2005.
- DePaul, Frances Terese. "Costume as an Expression of Anglo-American Social History 1900-1925." PhD diss., University of Pittsburgh, 1981.
- Deslippe, Dennis. "Rights, Not Roses": Women, Industrial Unions, and the Law of Equality in the United States, 1945-80." PhD diss., University of Iowa, 1994.
- Dooly, Leslie E. "The Development of the Sewing Machine to 1856." Master's thesis, University of Puget Sound, 1965.
- Downs, Sarah Don. "Ties That Bind: New Methods of Worker Empowerment in the Los Angeles Garment Industry." Master's thesis, UCLA, 2005.
- Dye, Nancy Schrom. "The Women's Trade Union League of New York, 1903-1920." PhD diss., University of Wisconsin, 1974.
- Ekeland, Barbara Kirsch. "The Evolution of Women's Fashions in the United States and the Development of the Ready-to-Wear Garment Industry with Particular Reference to the Years 1890-1900." Master's thesis, University of Connecticut, 1976.
- Fairchild, Alexa Suzanne. "Sew What?: Immigrants and the New York Garment Industry." Master's thesis, Bank Street College of Education, 2003.
- Faircloth, Cynthia Dale. "The Impact of Management Strategies in Selected U.S. Textile and Apparel Industries." Master's thesis, University of Georgia, 1986.
- Fang, Sherry Li-Hua. "A Comparison of American and Chinese Female College Students' Attitudes on Fashion and Purchasing Habits of Clothing." Master's thesis, University of Wisconsin--Stout, 1989.
- Fangman, Tamara D. "Promoting Female Weight Management in 1920s Print Media: An Analysis of Ladies' Home Journal and Vogue Magazines." Master's thesis, Colorado State University, 2002.
- Fehn, Bruce R. "Striking Women Gender, Race and Class in the United Packinghouse Workers of America (UPWA), 1938-1968." PhD diss., University of Wisconsin-Madison, 1991.

- Feldman, Egal. "New York's Men's Clothing Trade, 1800 to 1861." PhD diss., University of Pennsylvania, 1959.
- Fernandez, Nancy Page. ""If a Woman Had Taste--": Home Sewing and the Making of Fashion, 1850-1910." PhD diss., University of California, Irvine, 1987
- Ferreira, Lisa M. "Manufactured Fiber Conservation: A Cause for Concern?" Master's thesis, Colorado State University, 2001.
- Fitzpatrick, Thomas J. "The Collective Agreement in the New York Dress Industry." Master's thesis, University of Notre Dame, 1947.
- Fleming, Christine A. "The Boston Women's Trade Union League 1904-1939: A Thesis." Master's thesis, University of Massachusetts Boston, 2001.
- Francis, Ann Mary. "Journeys of the Uninvited: a Feminist Oral History of Skilled Tradeswomen in the Auto Industry." PhD diss., Fielding Institute, 2000.
- Fraser, Steve. "Sidney Hillman and the Origins of the 'New Unionism', 1890-1933." PhD diss., Rutgers University, 1983.
- Fullam, Melissa Lynn. "Just for the Duration: American Women's Fashion During World War Two." Bachelor's thesis, Hampshire College, 1994.
- Funderburk, Jane Arta Uhrig. "The Development of Women's Ready-to-Wear, 1865 to 1914: Based on New York Times Advertisements." PhD diss., University of Maryland, 1994
- Furio, Colomba M. "Immigrant Women and Industry a Case Study, the Immigrant Women and the Garment Industry, 1880-1950." PhD diss., New York University, 1979.
- Gadson, Timothy. "The Perceived Influences That Impact Adolescent Dress & Identity: A Qualitative Study." PhD diss., Washington State University, 1997.
- Gamber, Wendy. "The Female Economy: The Millinery and Dressmaking Trades, 1860-1930." PhD diss., Brandeis University, 1991.
- Ganeva, Mila. "A Forgotten History of Modernity: Fashion in German Literature, the Illustrated Press, and Photography in the Weimar Republic." PhD diss., University of Chicago, 2000.
- Garrison-Smiley, Christina. "Factory Employment During World War II: Milestone or Millstone for Women?" PhD diss., Wright State University, 1992.
- Glenn, Susan Anita. "The Working Life of Immigrants: Women in the American Garment Industry, 1880-1920." PhD diss., University of California, Berkeley, 1983.
- Goldman, Mark Steven. "Trade Union Politics: The International Ladies' Garment Workers' Union in the New Deal Era." Master's thesis, Florida State University, 1980.
- Gouke, Cecil Granville. "The Amalgamated Clothing Workers of America, 1940-1960." PhD diss., New York University, 1967.

- Green, Marci Ruth. "The Americanization Movement: A Case Study in the Politics of Production." PhD diss., University of Wolverhampton, 1992
- Greenwald, Richard A. "Bargaining for Industrial Democracy?: Labor, the State, and the New Industrial Relations in Progressive Era New York." PhD diss., New York University, 1998.
- Griffith Pastorello, Karen. "A Power Among Them: Bessie Abramowitz Hillman and the Amalgamated Clothing Workers of America." PhD diss., State University of New York at Binghamton, 2001.
- Grindereng, Margaret Pauline. "Fashion Diffusion: A Study by Price Range of Style Dispersion and Style Leadership." PhD diss., Ohio State University, 1965.
- Guenther, Irene. "Nazi "Chic"?: Fashioning Women in the Third Reich." PhD diss., University of Texas at Austin, 2001.
- Guglielmo, Jennifer M. ""What Have We Got to Lose?": Community and Labor Activism among Italian American Women in East Harlem, New York, 1930-1940." Master's thesis, University of New Mexico, 1995.
- Gurowsky, David. "Factional Disputes within the ILGWU, 1919-1928." PhD diss., State University of New York at Binghamton, 1977.
- Gustavson, Kjirsten S. "Lace Me Tighter, Mother Dear": Adolescent Clothing, 1860-1890: A Thesis." Master's thesis, State University of New York at Oneonta, 2004.
- Hall, Tami Wade. "The Relationship between Fashion Leadership and Social Values of Adolescents." Master's thesis, Florida State University, 1993.
- Hamme, Nancy Steele. "Images of Seamstresses in the Art of William Gropper." PhD diss., State University of New York at Binghamton, 1989.
- Hannel, Susan L. "The Africana Craze in the Jazz Age: A Comparison of French and American Fashion, 1920-1940." PhD diss., Ohio State University, 2002.
- Harber, Elizabeth Ellen. "Work and Space in a Restructuring Industry: The Case of Apparel in New York City." PhD diss., Cornell University, 1989.
- Harriford, Diane Sue. "Race, Class and Organized Feminism the New York City Chapter of the Coalition of Labor Union Women." PhD diss., State University of New York at Stony Brook, 1985.
- Harris, Mary Katharine. "A Check List of Women's Style Trends for 1900 to 1905 with Patterns to Scale and Fabrics for Their Use on the Stage." Master's thesis, Northwestern University, 1937.
- Haulman, Catherine Anna. "The Empire's New Clothes: The Politics of Fashion in Eighteenth-Century British North America." PhD diss., Cornell University, 2002.

- Hauptman-Cohen, Sarit. "Fashion House." PhD diss., New York Institute of Technology, 1995.
- Henderson, Bette Elaine. "Dress in a Postmodern Era: Definition of an Aesthetic Expression." PhD diss., University of Minnesota, 1995.
- Herndon, Carrie L. "Borrowed Plumage." Master's of Fine Arts thesis, Kent State University, 2005.
- Hix, John Lloyd. "An Inquiry into the Decision Criteria Used by Men's Wear Buyers in Department and Specialty Stores in Determining Whether to Include a New Product in Their Product Offering." PhD diss., University of Arkansas, 1972.
- Ho, Su-Hua. "Women's Dress Fashion in Taiwan: A Quantitative Analysis." Master's thesis, San Diego State University, 1988.
- Hopkins, Susan Key. "A Study of Selected Collegiate Women's Fashion Stores in Oklahoma." MBA thesis, University of Oklahoma, 1962.
- Horvath, Dora. "Bitte Recht Weiblich!: Frauenleitbilder in Der Deutschen Zeitschrift Brigitte 1949-1982." PhD diss., Universität, Zürich, 1999.
- Howell, Philip L. "The Activities of the International Ladies' Garment Workers' Union in Oklahoma." PhD diss., University of Pennsylvania, 1956.
- Jackson, Esther Cooper. "The Negro Woman Domestic Worker in Relation to Trade Unionism." Master's thesis, Fisk University, 1940.
- Jefferis, Keith. "The Performance of Worker Co-Operatives in a Capitalist Economy: British Co-Operatives in Printing, Clothing and Wholefoods, 1975-1985, a Study in Political Economy." PhD diss., Open University, 1988.
- Jenney, Karen Kliever. "Was Fashion Reality for Everyone?: A Comparison of Dresses Worn by Women from Different Economic Levels, 1883-1890." Master's thesis, Miami University, 1994.
- Johnson, Jill Robin. "They Were What They Wore: A Socio-Economic Explanation for Women's Fashion in England from the Post Napoleonic Era through Victoriana." Bachelor's thesis, James Madison University, 1984.
- Joseph, Marjory Lockwood. "Changes in Women's Daytime Dress as Related to Other Selected Cultural Factors During the First and the Third Decades of the Twentieth Century." PhD diss., Pennsylvania State University, 1963.
- Jurkovic, Maria. "Picketing in Paradise: The Garment, Laundry, and Hotel Workers' Unions in 1950s Miami, Florida." Master's thesis, Florida Atlantic University, 1995.
- Kasaba, Kathie Friedman. "To Become a Person": Immigrant Women's Experiences of Gender, Ethnicity, and Work, New York, 1870-1924." PhD diss., State University of New York at Binghamton, 1992.

- Katz, Daniel Lawrence. "A Union of Many Cultures: Yiddish Socialism and Interracial Organizing in the International Ladies' Garment Workers' Union, 1913-1941." PhD diss., Rutgers University, 2003.
- Kirkby, Diane Elizabeth. "Alice Henry: The National Women's Trade Union League of America and Progressive Labor Reform, 1906-1925." PhD diss., University of California, Santa Barbara, 1982.
- Kongrit, Ratkrow. "A Study of the Technology That Changed the History of Fashion in America between 1935 and 1975." Master's thesis, United States International University, 1986.
- Kontos, Paulette G. "Fashion and Social Change: A Look at the Flapper of the 1920's." Master's thesis, Indiana State University, 1974.
- Krugs, Melissa Inga. "Perceived Value of Fashion Magazines Versus Other Types of Fashion Information Sources by Florida State University Women Graduates." Master's thesis, Florida State University, 1991.
- Kugler, Israel. "The Woman's Rights Movement and the National Labor Union, 1866-1872: What Was the Nature of the Relationships between the National Labor Union and the Woman's Rights Movement and What May Serve to Explain Periods of Cooperation and Subsequent Divergence?" PhD diss., New York University, 1954.
- Landay, Donald M. "Union-Management Controls in the Men's Tailored Clothing Industry." PhD diss., University of Chicago, 1949.
- Larson, Simeon. "Union Impact on Price in the Dress Industry." Master's thesis, City College of New York, 1963.
- Latham, Angela J. "Performance Rights: A Historical Performance Ethnography of Contested Displays by American Women, 1920-1930." PhD diss., University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign, 1997.
- Laurentz, Robert. "Racial/Ethnic Conflict in the New York City Garment Industry, 1933-1980." PhD diss., State University of New York at Binghamton, 1980.
- Lee, Yumi. "Look at the Union Label: It Is Made in the U.S. Sweatshops: The Coming Back of Sweatshops in the U.S. Garment Industry." Bachelor's thesis, Brandeis University, 2001
- Leeder, Elaine J. "The Gentle Warrior: Rose Pesotta, Anarchist and Labor Organizer." PhD diss., Cornell University, 1985.
- Lewis, Mary Jane. "Godey's Lady's Book: Contributions to the Promotion and Development of the American Fashion Magazine in Nineteenth-Century America." PhD diss., New York University, 1996.
- Lin, Shu-Hwa. "Apparel Industry Sewing System Study." Master's thesis, Auburn University, 1990.
- Linowes, Richard G. "Strategy, Structure, and Information Processing: A Study of Apparel Retailing." Bachelor's thesis, Harvard University, 1983.

- Maddalena, Robert Peter. "Transition from Traditional to Quick Response Apparel Retailing: A Case Study." Master's thesis, North Carolina State University, 1998.
- Malon, Patricia Evelyn. "The Growth of Manufacturing in Manhattan 1860-1900: An Analysis of Factoral Changes and Urban Structure." PhD diss., Columbia University, 1981.
- Marks, Nancy. "The Relationship between Trade Unions and the Sexual Division of Labor: A Socialist Feminist Critique." Bachelor's thesis, Hampshire College, 1982.
- Massing, Dana Christine. ""Shoulder to Shoulder for a Common Cause?": Jewish, Italian, and Black Women Garment Workers in New York City, 1900-1930." Master's thesis, University of Alberta, 1995.
- Mata, Jennifer Rebecca. "Creating a Critical Chicana Narrative: Writing the Chicanas at Farah into Labor History." PhD diss., Washington State University, 2004.
- May, Anita Claire. "Effects of Instruction on Clothing Conformity at the Middle School Level." Master's thesis, University of Nevada, Reno, 1982.
- McCaffery, Isaias James. "Organizing Las Costureras: Life, Labor and Unionization among Mexicana Garment Workers in Two Borderlands Cities--Los Angeles and San Antonio, 1933-1941." PhD diss., University of Kansas, 1999.
- McCamy, Laura. "Out of the Closet: Feminist Perspectives on Women's Fashion." Master's thesis, Antioch University, 1990.
- McCreesh, Carolyn D. "On the Picket Line: Militant Women Campaign to Organize Garment Workers, 1880-1917." PhD diss., University of Maryland, 1975.
- McDonald, Kenneth D. "Fascist Fashion: Dress, the State, and the Clothing Industry in the Third Reich." PhD diss., University of California, Riverside, 1998.
- McDonald, Marilyn Lois. "A Comparison of the Behavioral Characteristics of Female Adolescent Fashion Opinion Leaders and Non Leaders and the Communication Channels Utilized." PhD diss., University of Connecticut, 1984.
- McDonough, Carla S. "Consumers' Preferences for Aesthetic and Performance Attributes in Selected Clothing Categories." Master's thesis, Louisiana State University, 1983.
- Melman, David. "The Cause and Effect of the ILGWU Dress Industry General Strike of 1958." Master's thesis, Bernard M. Baruch College, 1994.
- Milkman, Ruth Michele. "The Reproduction of Job Segregation by Sex: A Study of the Changing Sexual Division of Labor in the Auto and Electrical Manufacturing Industries in the 1940's." PhD diss., University of California, Berkeley, 1981.
- Mitchell, Amanda L. and Laura Edmondson. "Finding Futurist Fashion Lost Links to Haute Couture." Master's thesis, Florida State University, 2004.

- Montroll, Heidi Susan. "Women's Everyday Dress in the United States During World War I: An Analysis of Style Change." Master's thesis, George Washington University, 1974.
- Moore, Patricia Lee. "Reader/Viewer Response to the Rhetoric of Costume." Master's thesis, California State University, San Bernardino, 1990.
- Moretz, Joanne Marie. "Journey to America, 1890-1914." Master's thesis, East Stroudsburg University, 2002.
- Morgan, Rita. "Arbitration in the Men's Clothing Industry in New York City; a Case Study of Industrial Arbitration and Conference Method with Particular Reference to Its Educational Implications." PhD diss., Columbia University, 1940.
- Murphy, Amy Ketia. "The Arithmetick of Her Revenues: Changes in Fashion and Women's Social Status in London, 1660-1750." Master's thesis, Mississippi State University, 2002.
- Murphy, Laura. "Irish-American Catholics and Social Justice for Workers in the United States, 1890-1923." Master's thesis, State University of New York at Binghamton, 1999.
- Nelson, Doris Mae. "The Influence of Apparel Production Technology from 1880 to 1920 on Women's Apparel Styles and the Growth of Ready-to-Wear within the Department Store." Master's thesis, Northern Illinois University, n.d.
- Nutter, Kathleen Banks. "'The Necessity of Organization': Mary Kenney O'Sullivan, the American Federation of Labor, and the Boston Women's Trade Union League, 1892-1919." PhD diss., University of Massachusetts at Amherst, 1998.
- O'Donnol, Shirley Miles. "A Stage Costumer's Guidebook to American Fashions, 1915-1960." DDE diss., Columbia University, 1969.
- Olsen, Candice May. "Draping, Embroidery and Beading Techniques of the 1930's." Bachelor's thesis, Technikon Witwatersrand, 2003.
- Parsons, Jean Louise. "Dressmakers: Transitions in the Urban Production of Custom-Made Clothing, 1880-1920." PhD diss., University of Maryland, 1998.
- Parvis, Paul B. "From the Skin Out: Men's Fashion and Selected Accessories Appearing in New York City 1800-1840: A Thesis." Master's thesis, State University of New York, 1987.
- Pastorello, Karen Griffith. "A Power among Them: Bessie Abramowitz Hillman and the Amalgamated Clothing Workers of America." PhD diss., State University of New York at Binghamton, 2001.
- Peteu, Mihaela Cornelia. "Fashion and Function in Women's Dress as Revealed in Clothing Patents, 1846-1920." PhD diss., Michigan State University, 2004.
- Phophi, Lufuno. "Venda Traditional Female Dress Use and Significance." Master's Thesis, Department of Fashion Design and Technology, 2005.

- Prior-Miller, Marcia R. "Vogue, 1929-1942: A Graphic Profile." Master's thesis, University of Missouri, Columbia, 1981.
- Przybyla, Barbara Ann. "The Experience of Taking Responsibility in Leadership Roles among Selected Labor Union Women." PhD diss., University of Michigan, 1980.
- Pucciarelli, Anthony V. "A Study of the Problems Which Confront Women's Outerwear Manufacturers of New York City and the Ways Management Can Plan for Their Solution." MBA Thesis, St. John's University, 1969.
- Purdy, Daniel Leonard. "Reading to Consume: Fashionable Receptions of Literature in Germany, 1774-1816." PhD diss., Cornell University, 1992.
- Rao, Ramesh G. "An Architecture for an Intelligent Integrated Design System for Apparel Manufacturing." Master's thesis, Louisiana State University, 1992.
- Rayack, Elton. "The Effect of Unionism on Wages in the Men's Clothing Industry, 1911-1955." PhD diss., University of Chicago, 1957
- Reed, Stephanie Jeanne. "Scheduling Orders on Picking Stations in an Automated Storage-Retrieval Warehouse for Apparels." Master's thesis, North Carolina State University, 1993.
- Reid, Jeanne L. "Mary Elizabeth Dreier and the Use of Protective Legislation for Women Workers, 1909-1929." Bachelor's thesis, Harvard University, 1985.
- Reitz, Janice Johnson. "The Social and Economic Impact of the Spindletop Oil Boom on Women's Fashion in Beaumont, Texas at the Turn of the Century." Master's thesis, Lamar University, 1982.
- Remirez, Christine Marie. "Fashion as Communication: Jacqueline Kennedy's Rhetoric of Style." Master's thesis, Florida Atlantic University, 1999.
- Robinson, Nadine. "Improvement through Time: The International Ladies' Garment Workers' Union; Early Years Compared to Present Years." Bachelor's thesis, Maryville College, 1983.
- Robson, Jennifer Margaret. "The Role of Clothing and Fashion in the Household Budget and Popular Culture, Britain, 1919-1949." PhD diss., University of Oxford, 1998.
- Romero, Nannette Stephanie. "The Ballad of Dolores Huerta: Heroine of La Causa." Master's thesis, Sarah Lawrence College, 1997.
- Rowley, Nancy Johann. "Art Deco Expression in Selected 1920s Evening Wear from the Leila Old Historic Costume Collection." Master's thesis, University of Idaho, 1989.
- Roy, Catherine L. "The Tailoring Trade 1800-1920; Including an Analysis of Pattern Drafting Systems and an Examination of the Trade in Canada." Master's thesis, University of Alberta. 1990.

- Saccone, Dianne Miller. "The Waist and Dressmakers of New York City, 1919-1925." Master's thesis, Sarah Lawrence College, 1977.
- Sachs, Jonathan. "Pushing the Stone: The Amalgamated Clothing Workers of America and the Campaign to Organize the Baltimore Men's Garment Industry, 1914-16." PhD diss., Cornell University, 1991.
- Schaefer, Robert Joseph. "Educational Activities of the Garment Unions, 1890-1948 a Study in Workers' Education in the International Ladies' Garment Workers' Union and the Amalgamated Clothing Workers of America in New York City." PhD diss., Columbia University, 1951.
- Schofield, Ann. "The Rise of the Pig-Headed Girl an Analysis of the American Labor Press for Their Attitudes toward Women, 1877-1920." PhD diss., State University of New York at Binghamton, 1980.
- Schrank, Holly Lois. "Fashion Innovativeness and Fashion Opinion Leadership as Related to Social Insecurity, Attitudes toward Conformity, Clothing Interest and Socioeconomic Level." PhD diss., Ohio State University, 1970.
- Scott, Tanya F. "Fashion: From Textiles to Text." Master's thesis, Emerson College, 1995.
- Seitz, Kristina Nicole. "Historic Fashion Cycles of Women's Daywear in Television Sitcoms: 1952-1992." Master's thesis, Auburn University, 1993.
- Serebrenik, George I. "The Unionization of Farah in the Early Seventies." MBA thesis, University of Texas at Austin, 1975.
- Shaviro, Sol. "Cooperation: A Theoretical Model and a Practical Example." PhD diss., Fordham University, 1969.
- Sheehan, Theodore Beowulf. "Blur: Art and Fashion in Media-Driven Society." Master's thesis, New York University, 1996.
- Sherman, Kathy Lynne. "Woman's Changing Consciousness in the 1920's as Reflected through Her Fashions." Bachelor's thesis, Tulane University, 1981.
- Sibson, Sandra Joan. "A Study of French Influence Upon Clothing Available to Women in the United States from 1917-1927." Master's thesis, Cornell University, 1965.
- Smith, Bernard. "A Study of Uneven Industrial Development: The American Clothing Industry in the Late 19th and Early 20th Centuries." PhD diss., Yale University, 1989.
- Smith, Carol. "Women, Work and Use of Government Benefits: A Case Study of Hispanic Women Workers in New York's Garment Industry." DSW diss., Adelphi University, 1980.
- Spellers, Regina E. "Cornrows in Corporate America: Black Female Hair/Body Politics and Socialization Experiences in Dominant Culture Workplace Organizations." PhD diss., Arizona State University, 2000.

- Spingarn, Sandra Dawn. "Trade Unionism among the Jewish Workers in the Fur Manufacturing Industry in New York City, 1912-1929." PhD diss., State University of New York at Binghamton, 1981.
- Srinivasan, Arati. "Role of Distributed Databases in an Apparel Supply Chain" Master's thesis, Georgia Institute of Technology, 2001.
- Steele, Valerie. "Fashion and Eroticism: The Changing Ideal of Feminine Beauty, 1868-1928." PhD diss., Yale University, 1983.
- Stone, Nahum Isaac. "Wages and Regularity of Employment in the Dress and Waist Industry of New York City." PhD diss., Columbia University, 1915.
- Stuart, Irving R. "A Study of Factors Associated with Inter-Group Conflict in the Ladies' Garment Industry in New York City." PhD diss., New York University, 1951.
- Sullivan, Kathleen A. "The Impact of Real Estate Development on Manhattan-Based Apparel Firms: A Study of Locational Needs, Priorities and Proposed Solutions." Master's thesis, Columbia University, 1986.
- Sullivan, Pauline Cucciarre. "Quick Response Adoption by New York State Apparel Manufacturers." PhD diss., New York University, 1991
- Talbot, Melinda Grace. ""Dreadful Fashionable": The Work of Mary Anne Warriner, Rhode Island Milliner 1835-1841." Master's thesis, University of Delaware, 1999.
- Taylor, Adam D. "Celebrating Diversity through Fashion?: A Cultural Analysis of Tommy Hilfiger Online." Master's thesis, Florida Atlantic University, 2004.
- Teague, Leigh Ann. "Fashion and Aesthetic Judgment: Beauty and Objectification." Master's thesis, Emerson College, 1995.
- Thatcher, Jeanne. "Fashion, Fetishism, Female Body Modification and Related Health Issues." Master's thesis, California State University, 1992.
- Thomson, Ross David. "The Origin of Modern Industry in the United States: The Mechanization of Shoe and Sewing Machine Production." PhD diss., Yale University, 1976.
- Tingle, Jennifer. "The Meaning of Middle-Class Clothing in 1950s America." Bachelor's, thesis, Harvard University, 1985.
- Toy, Vivian S. "Women in New York's Garment Industry: A Comparison of Jewish Women in 1909 and Chinese Women in the 1980's." Bachelor's, thesis, Harvard University, 1985.
- Uzzi, Brian Dondiego. "The Dynamics of Organizational Networks: Structural Embeddedness and Economic Behavior." PhD diss., State University of New York at Stony Brook, 1993.
- VanRaaphorst, Donna L. "The Unionization Movement among Domestic Workers in the United States, 1870 to 1940." PhD diss., Kent State University, 1983.

- Vural, Leyla F. "Unionism as a Way of Life: The Community Orientation of the International Ladies' Garment Workers' Union and the Amalgamated Clothing Workers of America." PhD diss., Rutgers University, 1994.
- Wai, Hsu Ting Ting. "Social Influences on Fashion Change." Master's thesis, San Diego State University, 1982.
- Waldinger, Roger David. "Ethnic Enterprise and Industrial Change: A Case Study of the New York City Garment Industry." PhD diss., Harvard University, 1983.
- Weaver, Amy Marie. "Levi Strauss & Co.: A Strategic Examination." MBA thesis. University of Texas at Austin, 1985.
- Weinstein, Amy A. "The Americana Prints: An Experiment in Modern American Textile Design." Master's thesis, Cooper-Hewitt, National Design Museum and Parsons School of Design, 1998.
- Whelan, Lynne E. "Flappers and Flower Children: Relationships between Apparel and Society." Master's thesis, University of Wyoming, 1998.
- Winakor, Thora Geitel. "A Study of the Time Lag between High Fashion and Accepted Fashion as Evidenced by Selected Style Elements Featured in Magazines." Master's thesis, Drexel Institute of Technology, 1951.
- Wright, James Alan. "Fashion as a Subcultural Process: Guitars as Fashion Items in the Guitarist Community." Master's thesis, Western Illinois University, 1986.
- Yeung, Linda Lai-yin. "Consuming Designer Fashion in Hong Kong." Master's thesis, Chinese University of Hong Kong, 2000.
- Zaretz, Charles Elbert. "The Amalgamated Clothing Workers of America; a Study in Progressive Trades-Unionism." PhD diss., Columbia University, 1934.
- Zellweger, Holly Rae. "A Mini-Revolution: Hemlines, Gender Identity, and the 1960s." Bachelor's thesis, Harvard University, 1990.
- Zhao, Yu. "Modeling Reorder Activity for Short Season Apparel." Master's thesis, North Carolina State University, 2000.

IV. Audio-Visual

- Fabulous Fifties. VHS. New York, NY: Video Catalogue Co., 1990.
- Beeck, Johan. Benetton. VHS. Derry, NH: Chip Taylor Communications, 1999.
- Bender, Pennee, Joshua Brown, and Andrea Ades Vasquez. *Heaven Will Protect the Working Girl*. VHS. American Social History Project. New York: City University of New York, 1993.
- Bolles, Susan, and Louise Gugino Shanberg. *Louise Shanberg: Organizer for ACWA Interview*. VHS. New York: Bolles Productions, 1988.

- Burns, Ric, Lisa Ades, James Sanders, and David Ogden Stiers. *New York: A Documentary Film.* Episode Four: *The Power and the People*. DVD, VHS. Alexandria, VA: Public Broadcasting Service, 2004.
- Casseb, Chris. Owner, Casseb Clothing Co., Chris Casseb. VHS. Southwest Texas State University, 2003.
- Davis, Philip. Marching On. 1934. Reprint, VHS. New York: National Picture Bureau, 1990.
- Diamond, Jay, Ellen Diamond, and Steve Clements. Seventh Avenue: America's Premier Fashion Center. VHS. New York: Diamond Educational Productions. 1999.
- Garfinkel, Stanley, Thomas Ball, and Brian Neff. Shannon Rodgers for Jerry Silverman: Style and Quality on Seventh Ave. VHS. Kent, OH: Kent State University, 1995.
- Hershon, Eila, and Roberto Guerra. The Story of Fashion. VHS. Chicago: Home Vision, 1987.
- Hunkin, Tim, Rex Garrod, Elizabeth Queenan, and Andrew Snell. *The Secret Life of the Sewing Machine*. VHS. Morris Plains, NJ: Lucerne Media, 1988.
- Klein, James, and Julia Reichart. Union Maids. Film. Franklin Lakes, NJ: New Day Films, 1976.
- LaGuern, Marie-Anneck, and Annie-France Mistral. *A Stitch in Time*. VHS, 2 vols. Orland Park, IL: MPI Home Video, 2000.
- Legon, Gary, Sarah Legon, and Marcy Gensic. *Blue Jeans*. VHS. West Long Branch, NJ: White Star, 1995
- Little, Adam. New Suits. VHS. Princeton, NJ: Films for the Humanities & Sciences, 1997.
- Moore, Stefan, and Claude Beller. *Trouble on Fashion Avenue*. VHS. New York: Devlin Productions, 1982.
- Newman, Pauline, and Barbara M. Wertheimer. *Pauline Newman Interview*. VHS. Ithaca, NY: Cornell University, Institute for Education and Research on Women and Work at the Industrial and Labor Relations School, 1977.
- Szalat, Alex. *Clara Lemlich: A Strike Leader's Diary*. VHS. New York: First Run/Icarus Films, 2004.
- With These Hands. 1950. Promotional film. Reprint, VHS, New York: International Ladies' Garment Workers' Union, 1994.
- Wolensky, Kenneth C., Lois Hartel, Sam Bianco, Pearl Novak, David Kozemchak, and Kathleen Kapes. *The Growth and Decline of the Women's Garment Industry and the ILGWU in Pennsylvania's Northeastern Anthracite Region, 1930 to Present.* VHS. Nanticoke, PA: Luzerne County Community College, 1999.